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Financial Highlights
MBEE

Percentage

2018 2017 Change

2018 F 2017F EFAN
(Approximately) (Approximately) (Approximately)
(#49) (#40) (#40)

Revenue (RMB milion) BAARERET) 4,615.7 5,688.7 (18.9%)
Adjusted gross profit margin (Note) ICRBENE(f172) 15.4% 13.8% 1.6%
Consolidated net profit (RMB million) AFNEAREBET) 88.2 85.7 2.9%
Profit attributable to equity shareholders ARRIRREG ST

of the Company (RMB milion) (AR¥BET) 79.1 60.7 30.3%
Net cash generated from operating REEHEL 3RS

activities (RMB million) (AR®EEET) 98.2 85.6 14.7%
Basic and diluted earings per share BRERREERN

(RMB cents) (ANRED) 1.27 0.98 29.6%
Proposed final dividend per share (HKD cents) i B ARAR RS (B4L) NIL NIL

Note: Adjusted gross profit margin represents gross profit after Bat : EEBEMNRITEFNRLEERE S

impairment losses for trade receivables and contract assets. EWFREREEZRBEERKXE 2
Comparative figure has been adjusted to conform to the current R EHFEAE -

year’s presentation.
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Corporate Culture & Mission
EEX R FER
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Corporate Culture & Mission

AL A
EXb R fE D
PRODUCT CONCEPTS ERER
Service Bl 7
Quality BE
Cost BN
WEALTH CONCEPTS MEER
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TALENT CONCEPTS ATEZ
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Talent comes first AT E—
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Create value for the customers BERFEE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

“Yuanda China, like a giant vessel navigating the sea, has
neither lost direction in the mist, nor been deterred by
winds and storms. Instead, it has kept cleaving waves and
forging ahead, resolute and steadfast, towards its intended
destination”

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group” or “Yuanda China”), | hereby present to you the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting
Period”).

In 2018, intensified protectionism and populism coupled with
escalation in geopolitical conflicts have amplified the risk factors.
Therefore the uncertainties around the global economy may increase
the risk of slowdown in economic growth. As to China, investment
in fixed assets (excluding rural households) grew by 5.9% year-
on-year, representing a decrease of 1.3% over last year, which
means the growth of new construction projects keeps low. However
Yuanda China managed to increase the consolidated net profit for
2018.

[BERPERE-—BENEBTIMITHE
W AREMAXBAR FR—ER
Fifl BEMXBEMLEACEEND
T EEREUR - AT  J

EHH BN

RAABRRERPEIERBREAG(E
DFEDREMBAR (G5 2EMm] =k
(BAHE)E=S((ES])) AAT
SHRAEBEE2018F 12 A31BILFE
(TREBE ) 2 FERE -

018FE - BHREXE  REEE
WANE - AR EBOABRALESR
SEEBN - RIEEN ARSI L
MAERE RBENER - iR EmE -
2RETEERETEERR)ALER
5.9% & R K F TE1.3%  BEREE
NIRFMIBEEMREEER - A
RAPRBINENEET 2018 FEFH)E
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of the Group increased by
about RMB18.4 million or 30.3% as compared with last year to
about RMB79.1 million (2017: about RMB60.7 million), which was
mainly due to the fact that (1) the Group recorded a net foreign
exchange gain amounting to RMB99.5 million this year while incurred
a net foreign exchange loss of RMB67.7 million in 2017, which
resulted in a decrease in finance costs; and (2) the Group has initially
applied IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 and replaced the “incurred loss”
model in IAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” model to measure
loss allowances on trade and other receivables and contract assets,
resulting in the impairment loss for the year ended 31 December
2018 decreased by RMB269.1 million as compared with that of last
year.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

There are multiple challenges to the global economic outlook and
volatility in the financial market increases. Nevertheless opportunities
are expected to emerge from the crisis in 2019. The Chinese
government has set out stimulus policies, including expanding the
scope of tax reduction for enterprises and individuals and facilitating
financing channels available on the market to maintain a stable
economic development and to benefit the companies. Under this
background, the Group will pay close attention to the latest market
changes and arrange appropriate strategic adjustments. | will
continue to lead the Group management in an unreserved effort to
manage the Group’s businesses prudently, with particular attention
paid to improving quality and strengthening operational efficiency to
increase profitability and shareholder return in a long run.

Kang Baohua
Chairman

29 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER W R DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall performance

In 2018, the global economic environment was complicated and
uncertain under the slackened rate of economic growth. On one
hand, the United States outperformed the global economy, while
other economies were in a weak situation. On the other hand, the
macro-economy of China showed an uptrend followed by a decline
in 2018. The gap between different economies was broadening due
to the uneven rate of recovery among different economies.

In 2018, China’s investment in fixed assets (excluding rural
households) grew by 5.9% year-on-year, representing a decrease of
1.3% over last year, which means the growth of new construction
projects keeps low.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of the Group increased by
about RMB18.4 million or 30.3% as compared with last year to
about RMB79.1 million (2017: about RMB60.7 million), which was
mainly due to (1) the Group recorded a net foreign exchange gain
amounting to RMB99.5 million this year while incurred a net foreign
exchange loss of RMB67.7 million in 2017, which resulted in a
decrease in finance costs. (2) The Group has initially applied IFRS 9
on 1 January 2018 and replaces the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39
with the “expected credit loss” model to measure loss allowances on
trade and other receivables and contract assets, impairment loss for
the year ended 31 December 2018 decreased by RMB269.1 million
compared with that of last year.

Newly-awarded projects (including VAT)

During the year 2018, while the number of awarded projects
decreased from 52 to 42, the aggregate amount generated by the
newly awarded projects of the Group increased by about RMB428.2
million or 10.3% as compared with last year.

E 3 0]
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥¥OEE)

Newly-awarded projects (including VAT) (continued) HAZETIR(PEEER) (&

2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
Number of Number of
projects RMB million projects RMB million

HEHE ARWEER HEA#E ARKBRET

Domestic A 25 1,659.9 37 1,570.7
Overseas RN 17 2,924.4 15 2,585.4
Total S5 42 4,584.3 52 4,156.1

Details of certain landmark projects obtained by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

BZ2018F 12 A1 HFA  REEHE
KB THARIERR AT -

Project name

HE&®

Category of project utilization

HE REER

Nine Elms Square, UK

KRB ES

Vauxhall Square, UK

REDK R EI5

The Hundred, Indonesia

He—a

No.308 Exhibition Road in Melbourne, Australia
SEMERA 308 REK I

Tianfu Airport 3rd section, Chengdu, China
B EBR T 5 = 1R

Yintai Hotel in Wenling, Zhejiang, China

P EDRERFEE

Langfang Theatre, Hebei, China

A B R 5 K BB

West Lake in Hui zhou, Guangzhou, China

rh B 28 78 4R

Commercial Complex
[HE3 S
Commercial Complex
[HES S

Office Building
/NN

Public Facilities
NHZRE

Airport

35

Hotel

BE

Public Facilities
NHZRE

Hotel

B E
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1w, Management Discussion and Analysis
|5 EEENWR DT
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EMmEE)

Backlog

As at 31 December 2018, the remaining contract value of the Group
decreased by about RMB2,162.7 million or 13.4% as compared
with last year, which could support a sustainable development of the

R2018F 12 A31H » AEEMAERERT
THEREFRIBRDHARK2162.7H
Bk 13.4% @ BIAAKREB KRR 2-3F

Group for the next 2-3 years. RZERIZREA X E -
2018 2017
2018 F 20175
Remaining value of contracts Remaining value of contracts
RGBT EE aR%TERE
Number of Number of
projects RMB million projects RMB million
HEHE ARWEHER HE#HE ARKBEET
Domestic & 292 5,428.9 291 7,279.4
Overseas =] 87 8,529.0 89 8,841.2
Total &5t 379 13,957.9 380 16,120.6
Major technology achievements and awards T ERp R AR 18

In 2018, the Group obtained 37 patents, including 1 patent for
invention and 36 patents for utility model.

R20184F » AREEFEE | XAEI7 1A -
HApZeAER1IR - BERHIEFS6IA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDI

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

On 21 January 2019, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) released
the updated World Economic Outlook Report, which lowered the
global annual economic growth rate to 3.5% and 3.6% for the
year 2019 and 2020, respectively. It is expected that the rate hikes
by the Federal Reserve of the United States will slow down and
external pressure on emerging economies will decrease, but at the
same time, as the US economy slows, emerging markets will face
shrinking external demands and declining exports, particularly the
downside-pressure on Chinese economy. The Group will closely
monitor trends and developments in the macro-economy and sector
markets, focus on enhancing its sensitivity and perception of market
developments so that it could proactively formulate forward-looking
business strategies in response to changes in the external business
conditions.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Company aims to increase shareholder value through
sustainable revenue and earnings growth and free cash flow
generation. In order to achieve this objective, the Group uses the
following indicators to measure business performance:

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of the Group
decreased by about RMB1,073.0 million or 18.9% as compared with
last year to about RMB4,615.7 million (2017: about RMB5,688.7
million). The main reason for the change was the shrink of business
scale. Among which:

1. the revenue from domestic market of the Group decreased
by about RMB1,025.8 million or 31.3% as compared with last
year to about RMB2,247.6 million (2017: about RMB3,273.4
million), contributing approximately 48.7% of the total revenue
of the Group; and

2. therevenue from overseas market of the Group decreased by
about RMB47.2 million or 2.0% as compared with last year to
about RMB2,368.1 million (2017: about RMB2,415.3 million),
contributing approximately 51.3% of the total revenue of the
Group.

g

RBRE

2019F1H21H IR EBE S HE
(IMF) 34 B 3T A9t RASER B )iRE -
1520194 + 2020 F 2 IR EIL R D R T
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BRI AR - TR ERH N R S &
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EHiSHERENIFTRES  HOEE
RBZE  FREHPRELEMSFET
TBN - REBEREVEERBLEN
TEMBER  FTERSEMSHEX
EFRAR N - 67 AT M A4S & SR BK -
FEEL NP EIRIBE L o
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ARBEHEBEBUFREERRAREF
BERARELrSHASREAKRRE
B> REWBER AEERAATER
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EEIA

HZE2018F 12 431 H + AEBAEZEIRA
PWAREAB157TEETL(2017F : HAR
#5,688.7HET) REAFRHBISOAR
#1,073.0 BB Lk 18.9% - FE(LFERHA
WG o B

1. AEBEHBAWANARK2247.6
BEL(2017F : H AR3273.4
BET)  REFRBAMDHARE
1,025.8 &L 31.3% ' {HEEBKA
£48.7% : M

2. AEEMEINIADARY?2,368.1
BEL2017F : H AR24153
BET)  REFRAMDHARE
A72EH B ITL2.0% ' HEBKRAL
51.3% °



AP R AT B R

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cost of sales

In 2018, the cost of sales of the Group decreased by about
RMB725.0 million or 16.3% as compared with last year to about
RMB3,714.7 million (2017: about RMB4,439.7 million). With the
decrease in revenue, the related costs of sales were accordingly
decreased.

Adjusted gross profit margin

The Group’s adjusted gross profit margin increased by
approximately 1.6% to approximately 15.4% (2017: approximately
13.8%). Among which:

1.  the Group’s domestic adjusted gross profit margin increased
by approximately 2.8% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year to 16.1% (2017: about 13.3%); and

2.  the Group’s overseas adjusted gross profit margin increased
by approximately 0.2% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year to 14.8% (2017: about 14.6%).

MBERE(E)
HERA

20185 AEBEMEEXNANDARK
3,714.7 A8 L(2017 & : AR 4,430.7
BET) REFRBABSHOARKET25.0
AET16.3% ° BEEEFWARRL - 1
FASHE KA AL MAFT T FE o

AERERR

REBLAEEFEAEX15.4% (2017
F: M13.8%) L EFREAE M T 4
1.6% ° Hep :
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue generated from
the five largest customers of the Group accounted for an amount of
less than 30% of the total operating revenues of the Group. The five
largest customers were not connected to the Company in any way.
None of the Directors, senior management, key technical personnel,
shareholders holding 5% or more of the shares, de facto controller
and other connected parties of the Company had any direct or
indirect interest in any of the aforesaid five largest customers. None
of the Directors of the Company or their close associates or, to the
knowledge of the Board of Directors, any of the shareholders holding
5% or more of the shares of the Company had any interest in any of
the five largest customers of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, purchases from the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for an amount of less than
30% of the total annual purchases of the Group. The five largest
suppliers were not connected to the Company in any way. None
of the Directors, senior management, key technical personnel,
shareholders holding 5% or more of the shares, de facto controller
and other connected parties of the Company had any direct or
indirect interest in any of the aforesaid five largest suppliers.

Other income

Other income of the Group primarily comprised of government
grants, rental revenue from operating leases, net income from
provision of repairs and maintenance services and net gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment, land use rights and
assets classified as held for sale.

In 2018, the other income of the Group increased by about RMB63.8
million or 58.6% as compared with last year to about RMB172.7
million (2017: about RMB108.9 million). The increase in the Group’s
other income was mainly due to the net gain on disposal of the
property, plant and equipment and land use rights and assets
classified as held for sale during the Reporting Period.

g
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Selling expenses

In 2018, the selling expenses of the Group decreased by about
RMB4.1 million or 4.3% as compared with last year to about
RMB91.1 million (2017: about RMB95.2 million), accounting for
approximately 2.0% of the operating revenue of the Group (2017:
about 1.7%).

Administrative expenses

In 2018, the administrative expenses of the Group decreased by
about RMB405.7 million or 41.8% as compared with last year
to about RMB565.9 million (2017: about RMB971.6 million),
accounting for approximately 12.3% of the operating revenue of
the Group (2017: about 17.1%). As required by IAS 1 (as amended
by IFRS 9), the Group presented the expected credit losses as
determined under IFRS 9 as a separated item on the face of the
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Impairment losses under IAS 39 for the year ended 31 December
2017 was included in “Administrative expenses”.

Finance costs

In 2018, the finance costs of the Group decreased by about
RMB164.0 million or 70.4% as compared with last year to about
RMB68.8 million (2017: about RMB232.8 million), accounting for
approximately 1.5% of the operating revenue of the Group (2017:
about 4.1%). This was mainly due to the fact that foreign exchange
was recognised as a net profit during the Reporting Period rather
than a net loss as for the corresponding period of last year.

Income tax

In 2018, the income tax expense of the Group was about RMB66.0
million (2017: an income tax benefit about RMB27.5 million).

Br IS ERE (42 )
HEEHM

2018 - AKEMHEHEBRBANARK
N1BEETCOITE - WARKIB2EE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Consolidated net profit

In 2018, the consolidated net profit of the Group increased by
about RMB2.5 million or 2.9% as compared with last year to about
RMB88.2 million (2017: about RMB85.7 million).

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

In 2018, the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
increased by about RMB18.4 million or 30.3% as compared with last
year to about RMB79.1 million (2017: about RMB60.7 million).

Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2018, the net current assets of the Group
decreased by about RMB850.7 million or 33.9% as compared with
last year to about RMB1,658.1 million (31 December 2017: about
RMB2,508.8 million).

As at 31 December 2018, cash on hand and in bank of the Group
decreased by about RMB102.8 million or 5.7% as compared with
last year to about RMB1,702.8 million (31 December 2017: about
RMB1,805.6 million), mainly denominated in RMB, USD, Australian
Dollar (“AUD”), Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”) and British Pound Sterling
(“GBP”).

Bank loans and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the total bank loan of the Group
decreased by about RMB594.0 million or 20.2% as compared with
last year to about RMB2,349.6 million (31 December 2017: about
RMB2,943.6 million). The bank loan as at 31 December 2018 were
denominated in RMB and USD of which approximately RMB2,287.9
million were repayable within one year.

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total liabilities divided by
total assets) was 73.1% (31 December 2017: about 72.1%).
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BEER W R DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B CE(E)

Turnover days [E#E R 2L

Turnover days (day) 2018 2017
AEXE(X) 2018 2017
Receivables (note 1) FEURBR TR (KTat 1) 398 417
Trade and bills payables (note 2) B S RNRRENER(H7F2) 434 409
Inventory (note 3) HFE(#iE3) 63 54
Notes: Wit -

The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on the
average amount of trade and bills receivables and net contract
assets (contract assets less contract liabilities) as at the beginning
(after opening adjustment upon the adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS
9) and ending of the relevant period (net of provision) divided by
total revenue of the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables is
based on the average amount of trade and bills payables as at the
beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by cost of raw
materials and installation cost of the relevant period and multiplied
by 365 days.

The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the average
amount of raw materials as at the beginning and ending of the
relevant period (net of provision) divided by cost of raw materials
of the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated.
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During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of receivables REHIA - ANEE FEWER X EE K E L
decreased by approximately 19 days to 398 days (2017: about 417 308 K (20174 : Y9417 K) » /L 419
days). X e

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of trade and bill SREHN - NEBENEARENERE
JEBERBIK) 434 K (2017 4F : £9409°K) -
EINKI 25K °

payables increased by approximately 25 days to 434 days (2017:
about 409 days).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Inventory and inventory turnover days

The Group’s inventories primarily consist of materials used in
fabrication of curtain wall products, including extrusion of aluminum,
glass, steel and sealant.

As at 31 December 2018, the inventory of the Group increased by
about RMB129.9 million or 46.9% as compared with last year to
about RMB407.1 million (31 December 2017: about RMB277.2
million). During the Reporting Period, the inventory turnover days
increased by approximately 9 days to 63 days (2017: about 54
days).

Capital expenditure

In 2018, the Group’s payment for capital expenditure amounted to
approximately RMB10.5 million (2017: about RMB2.7 million), which
was mainly related to the payment on land acquisition, construction
of plant and purchase of equipment.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated in USD,
GBP, AUD, Euro, Swiss Franc (“CHF”) and Singapore Dollar (‘SGD”).
To hedge any foreign exchange risks, the Group has entered into
forward foreign exchange contracts which hedge the forecast
transactions and monetary assets denominated in foreign currencies
of the Group. The Group ensures that net exposure to currency risk
arising from assets and liabilities maintained at an acceptable level.

Contingent liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018
are set out in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank loans of approximately
RMB780.0 million were secured by property, plant and equipment
and land use rights and assets classified as held for sale of the Group
with an aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB843.2 million.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank loans of approximately
RMB157.9 million were secured by time deposits and trade
receivables of the Group with a carrying value of approximately
RMB173.0 million and USD161.9 million, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on its
assets as at 31 December 2018.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of its subsidiaries and associated
companies.

Resumption of Land in Shenyang

On 12 July 2018, Shenyang Yuanda, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a land resumption agreement with
(i) Shenyang Economic & Technological Land Reserve Center;
and (ii) Shenyang Economic & Technological Land and Housing
Expropriation and Compensation Service Center (the “Local
Representatives”), pursuant to which the Local Representatives
resumed, and Shenyang Yuanda surrendered, a total of 5 parcels of
land located at Shenyang Economic & Technological Development
District, Shenyang City, Liaoning Province, PRC with an aggregate
gross floor area of 233,942 square metres in consideration of
a compensation of RMB550,000,000 (the “Resumption”). The
Resumption constituted a very substantial disposal for the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). For
further details, please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 17 July 2018 and 27 August 2018, respectively.
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Resumption of Land in Shenyang (continued)

Details of the Resumption as at 31 December 2018 are set out in
Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Significant investment

The Group did not make any significant investments during the
Reporting Period.

Future plans for significant investments or capital assets

The Group does not have any future plans for significant investments
or capital assets as at the date of this report.

Global offering and use of proceeds

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering (the “Global
Offering”) through which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares
were offered at a price of HK$1.50 per share. Net proceeds raised
were approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April 2011 and
the supplementary prospectus dated 5 May 2011 (collectively, the
“Prospectus”), the Group intended to use the proceeds from the
Global Offering for expansion of its production capacity, repayment
of its existing debts, investment in research and development,
expansion of its sales and marketing network.

As at 31 December 2018, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$2,029 million of proceeds from the Global Offering (of which
expansion of production capacity: HK$586 million; repayment of
bank loans (mainly comprised the bridge loan of Standard Chartered
Bank): HK$962 million; expenses in research and development:
HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and marketing network:
HK$220 million) was utilized in accordance with the intended use as
stated in the Prospectus. It is intended that the remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$374 million will be used in accordance to the
proposed allocation as stated in the Prospectus.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 4,604 full-time employees
in total (31 December 2017: 6,094). The decrease in number
of full-time employees was the result of the Group’s headcount
optimization. The Group has sound policies of management
incentives and competitive remuneration, which align with the
interests of management, employees and shareholders’ alike. The
Group sets its remuneration policy with reference to the prevailing
market conditions and the performance of the individuals concerned,
subject to review from time to time. The components of the
remuneration package consist of basic salary, allowances, fringe
benefits including medical insurance and contributions to pension
funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus and share
options.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties
in addition to those shown below which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be material
in the future.

Business Risk

As most of the Group’s customers are property developers or
main contractors of public infrastructure and commercial buildings,
the business and prospects of the Group heavily depend on the
performance of the construction and real estate industries, which
are cyclical and could be significantly affected by fluctuations in
economic conditions.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Business Risk (continued)

The time and costs involved in completing construction can be
adversely affected by many factors, including shortage of materials,
equipment and labour, adverse weather conditions, natural
disasters, labour disputes with contractors and subcontractors,
accidents, changes in government priorities, and other unforeseen
problems or circumstances. The occurrence of any of these factors
could give rise to delays in the completion of a project, which may
result in cost overruns and potential disputes and claims from service
recipients. This may also result in the profit derived from the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain wall system
not being recognised in the year in which it was originally anticipated
to be recognised.

The Group may also be exposed to the risks of foreign policy
changes, foreign currency fluctuations, territorial disputes, interest
rate changes, demand-supply imbalance, terrorism, the overall
economic conditions.

Industrial Risk

The risk of fierce competition among industry may erode the Group’s
business development capabilities and the returns of its projects.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with
every function at divisional and departmental levels.

The Group recognises that operational risks cannot be eliminated
completely and that it may not always be cost effective to do so. Key
functions in the Group are guided by their operating procedures,
limits of authority and reporting framework. The Group will identify
and assess key operational exposures from time to time and report
such risk issues to senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk response can be taken. The Group will continue
to enhance refined management, and continuously implement and
improve activity-based costing and the refined management system
with management accounting as its core, and comprehensively
strengthen management over financial, financing, investment and
operational risks.

Credit Risk

The Group is serving a large customer base with differing credit
status, and its business development will inevitably be affected by
the varied credit profiles of these customers. The Group seeks to
reduce the aforesaid impact by identifying and managing credit
risks through internal credit management measures, such as credit
search, credit rating, credit limit management, overall credit risk
assessment and stringent credit control against customers with
faulty payment records, as well as by transferring credit risks through
the purchase of credit insurance.

Financial Risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in note 29 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (B & %), aged 65, is the founder and chairman
of the Group, and was appointed as an Executive Director on
February 26, 2010. Graduated from Liaoning University (E% X
E2) with a diploma in politics in 1984, Mr. Kang has over 25 years
of experience in the curtain wall industry and has been responsible
for the overall management and strategic development of the Group
since 1992. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Kang was an executive
director of Shenyang Strong Wind Group Company (3#&F% 58 & & &
73 a]). Since the establishment of the Company, Mr. Kang has been
involved in the management of the Company, including business
development, finance and corporate strategy formulation. Mr. Kang
is also a director of various other subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Li Hongren (Z3# A ), aged 52, the chief executive officer of
the Group and an Executive Director of the Company, obtained
his bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Northeastern Industrial
College* (BBt T E2B7) (currently known as Northeastern University
(BR4EKE2) in 1990 with a major in machinery manufacturing
processes and equipment. Mr. Li was qualified as a senior engineer
by Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s
Republic of China in 2006. Mr. Li joined the Group in 1999 and has
more than 19 years of experience in manufacturing and marketing
of curtain wall products. Since 2006, Mr. Li has been a manager of
various Eurasian subsidiaries of the Group. Since 2014, Mr. Li was
promoted to the vice president of the Group and is responsible for
managerial matters of the Group.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Liu Futao (2J3&%), aged 54, an Executive Director of the
Company, obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
Shenyang Correspondence University (&5 & & B4R A E) in 1987
with a major in machinery manufacturing. Mr. Liu joined the Group
in 1997 and has more than 21 years in manufacturing and project
management. Since 2008, Mr. Liu has been a manager of various
Mideast subsidiaries of the Group. In 2012, Mr. Liu was promoted to
the regional manager of the northeast China of the Group.

Mr. Ma Minghui (588#), aged 38, an Executive Director of
the Company, obtained his bachelor’s degree in Management
from Shenyang Institute of Aeronautical Engineering (& &Mt %=
T ZET) in 2003 with a major in public administration. Mr. Ma
joined the Group in 2007 and has accumulated more than 11
years of experience in human resources management and budget
management. Since 2011, Mr. Ma has been the secretary to the
president of the Group. In 2015, Mr. Ma was promoted to the
director of human resources of the Group.

Mr. Wang Hao (E£2£), aged 38, the chief financial officer of the
Company and an Executive Director of the Company, obtained his
bachelor’s degree in Management from Jilin University (Z/AER)
in 2002 with a major in accounting. Mr. Wang Hao joined the Group
in 2007 and has accumulated more than 11 years of experience in
financial management.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Zhang Lei (385 ), aged 46, since June 2013, he acted as an
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Group
in July 2002 and has over 16 years of experience in curtain wall
industry. Before joining the Group, from 1994 to 2000, Mr. Zhang
held various managerial positions in Northeast Refractory Plant,
including vice director in charge of production and equipment and
director of equipment department in No.4 branch of Northeast
Refractory Plant. From 2001 to 2002, Mr. Zhang acted as a
management intern in Japanese YKK company. From 2002 to 2005,
Mr. Zhang held various key positions including quality control and
technology minister in Northeast Branch of Shenyang Yuanda. He
acted as a designer in Zhongdong Branch of Shenyang Yuanda
from 2005 to 2006. From 2006 to 2008, he acted as chief designer
in Dubai Branch of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for the Group’s
ACC44 residential buildings, imperial buildings and commercial bay
administration building and other projects. From 2008 to 2012,
Mr. Zhang held various positions in Shenyang Yuanda, including
assistant to chief engineer in International Operation of Shenyang
Yuanda, deputy director of International Curtain Wall Manufacturer
under Shenyang Yuangda, factory controller and factory president of
Shenyang Yuanda. Mr. Zhang graduated from Shenyang Electrical
Industrial School with a diploma in electrical and mechanical
engineering in 1994.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (FEMEl), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr. Poon
obtained a Master’s degree in international accounting, a Bachelor’'s
degree in laws and a Bachelor’s degree in business studies. He
was awarded a postgraduate diploma in laws by the University of
London. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia, the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute (also an associate instructor), a
fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS”)
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He is
also a member of the Technical Consultation Panel, Mainland China
Focus Group and Audit Committee of HKICS.

Mr. Poon has years of experience in regulatory affairs, investment
panking and listed company management. He now serves as an
executive director and company secretary of Huabao International
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 336). Currently, he
is also an independent non-executive director of the following
companies: Sunac China Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 1918), Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (Hong
Kong stock code: 1292), Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 1249), TUS International Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 872), AUX International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 2080), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings
Company Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 631), Greentown Service
Group Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 2869), Jinchuan Group
International Resources Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 2362),
Honghua Group Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 196) and Yanzhou
Coal Mining Company Limited (Hong Kong stock code:1171). Mr.
Poon was a non-executive director of Chong Kin Group Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1609) from 5 January 2018 to 6
June 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#Z &), aged 49 was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April, 2011. Mr.
Woo has over 25 years of experience in the accounting and financial
services industry. He began his career as a certified accountant
at Arthur Andersen & Co where he qualified. Subsequently, he
was employed in senior positions as an investment banker at ING,
CITIC Securities and Credit Suisse. Mr. Woo holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree. He is a member of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Woo is an independent
non-executive director of IRC Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
1029), and an independent non-executive director of SMIT Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 2239).

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny (&), aged 46, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr.
Pang is a member of each of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Pang
is the managing partner of Benny Pang & Co. which specializes
in capital markets and general corporate and commercial work.
Between 1997 and 2009, Mr. Pang practiced as a lawyer with
several international law firms in Hong Kong and Sydney. Mr. Pang
received his bachelor’s degree in laws (honors) from Bond University,
Australia, in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang obtained his Graduate Diploma
in Legal Practice and master’s degree in laws from The College
of Law, Sydney and the University of New South Wales, Australia,
respectively. He has been admitted as a legal practitioner of the
Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia since 1997 and as a
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since 2009. He is a member
of both the Law Society of New South Wales, Australia and the Law
Society of Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Pang is also an independent
non-executive Director of Sanbase Corporation Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 8501). Mr. Pang has been re-designated from an
executive Director to a non-executive Director and ceased to be the
Vice Chairman of Huabang Financial Holdings Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 3638) with effect from 12 April 2018. Mr. Pang was also
an independent non-executive Director, a member and the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee of China Regenerative
Medicine International Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8158) during
the period from 2012 to 2018 and resigned from the said positions
with effect from 1 June 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAER

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no change to any
information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(a) to (e) and (g) of the Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 December 2018. All Directors are not involved in
any matters concerning Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip (R &), aged 42, was appointed as the
company secretary and authorized representative of the Company in
June 2012 and has over 12 years of experience in corporate services
field. He was an auditor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2000 to
2001. Since 2001, Mr. Yu joined Fung, Yu & Co. CPA Limited and
is currently the managing partner of Fung, Yu & Co. CPA Limited.
Mr. Yu has also been appointed as the company secretary of Beijing
Media Corporation Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 01000), Sany
Heavy Equipment International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 00631) and Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 02293), and independent non-executive director
of Realord Group Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 01196),
all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong, since 2010, 2017,
2018 and 2014, respectively. Mr. Yu graduated from the University of
Toronto with a bachelor’s degree in commerce in 2000 and from the
University of London with a bachelor’s degree in law in 2005. He is
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Certified Practicing Accountants of Australia and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Hongren (Z=# A ), Chief Executive Officer of the Company
— see the paragraph under “Executive Directors” above.

Mr. Wang Hao (£ &), the chief financial officer of the Company —
see the paragraph under “Executive Directors” above.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s Annual
Report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate governance principles
emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective internal
controls and accountability to shareholders of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own
code to govern its corporate governance practices.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices regularly
to ensure compliance with the CG Code. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the Company has complied with all code provisions
of the CG Code, except the following deviation:

Code Provision E.1.2 — Chairman Attending Annual General Meeting

Mr. Kang Baohua, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) on 29 May
2018 as he had business engagement. Mr. Ma Minghui was elected
as the chairman of the AGM to ensure effective communication with
the Company at the AGM.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance with the objective of enhancing shareholders’
value including setting and approving the Company’s strategic
implementation, considering substantial investments, reviewing the
Group’s financial performance and developing and reviewing the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance. The Board
has delegated to the chief executive officer, of whom the directors
also undertake, and through him, to the senior management the
authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, membership of the Board is
made up of nine members in total, with six executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. The composition of the
Board is set out below:
Executive Directors
Mr. Kang Baohua Chairman
Mr. Li Hongren Chief executive officer
Mr. Liu Futao
Mr. Ma Minghui
Mr. Wang Hao
Mr. Zhang Lei

Chief financial officer
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B FHTES i

Executive Directors

Independent Non-executive
Directors

[ J @ @
IFEIEES
3 Elected Directors

TES

6 EEEAEREE
6 Directors Appointed From The Group

counnon  [EEE s0-60

3RES

3 Directors

2RES

2 Directors
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with the Group 18EE

1 Director
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4 Directors
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Other Public

Companies

6EES

Directorship(s)
6 Directors

EZEmEEEAER AR
Board Expertise and Skills
FEEETE R EEHAE/Budget
management and leadership skills
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WEEEREEE
Sound judgement and
effective oversight of and
guidance to management
A3 T 35 5 2 A18/Mainland market
expertise

L R Y LS B AR
Experience in manufacturing and
marketing of curtain wall products

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive directors
are expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to
the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

The biographical details of the members of the Board are disclosed
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report. None of the members of the Board is related to
one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive directors to be independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive directors are
invited to serve on the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees of the Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship) between any
member of the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments are based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits of the
selected candidates and their contribution to the Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are carried out by different individuals and have been
clearly defined in writing.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the chief
executive officer is Mr. Li Hongren. The positions of chairman and
chief executive officer are held by separate persons in order to
preserve independence and a balance of views and judgments. With
the support of the senior management, the chairman is responsible
for ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings. The chief executive officer focuses
on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board. The chief executive officer is in charge of
the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The chief
executive officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the organizational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive directors of the Company is engaged on a
service contract for a term of three years, and the appointment may
be terminated by not less than one month’s written notice. Each
of the independent non-executive directors of the Company has
been appointed for a term of one year and the appointment may be
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new director appointed by the
Board to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee established on 12 April
2011 is to be responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least 14
days before the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

The Company’s senior management, including chief executive
officer, chief financial officer and company secretary, attend all
regular Board meetings and where necessary, other Board and
committee meetings, to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory and regulatory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking
and keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and final versions are open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.
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BOARD MEETINGS (CONTINUED) BEEegeR (&)

Directors’ Attendance Records EEH R0k

The attendance records of each director at the Board meetings HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFE @ 2= 1
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and the annual general FEEeexAREFER201845 A 29
meeting for the financial year of 2017 held on 29 May 2018 (the HEHB 2017 EFREEIRRBFFEA=

“2017 AGM”) are set out below: (2017 ERRBERE ) WEERS I 10
™
Attendance/Number of Meetings
LR/ EE8E
Chairman’s
Annual  Extraordinary Annual

Name of Nomination Remuneration Audit General General Meetings
Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting with INEDs

IRRBY

FUTES
4.2 Eze REZEe  FMZEE ENZEE RRASEAE RREAAE  MEEERE
Kang Baohua 5/6 11 0 11 11
Li Hongren 5/6 il 0/ 11
EIN
Liu Futao 5/6 11 11
2eE
Ma Minghui 5/6 11 1/
il
Wang Hao 6/6 11 11
iz
Zhang Lei 5/6 0/ 11
K&
Poon Chiu Kwok 6/6 il 2/2 il il 1N
AR
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 6/6 1 2/2 1 1 1
FiER
Pang Chung Fai, Benny 6/6 1 11 212 11 11 1
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company would provide to each newly appointed director or
alternative director an induction package covering the summary
of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of a Hong Kong
listed company, the Group’s businesses and the statutory
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company as well
as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure that he/
she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Group also provided briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the directors’ knowledge and skills from time to time.
Further, the Company continuously updates directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follow:

Directors ==
Executive Directors HITES
Kang Baohua FEEE

Li Hongren FHA
Liu Futao 2=
Ma Minghui SR
Wang Hao =
Zhang Lei RER
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES
Poon Chiu Kwok &R EY
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond IERIA
Pang Chung Fai, Benny THE

ST

EXANBRFARELE  A2REE
EX2HFEERER  UBRMEE
BEMBR B - KRB HRAGHRAE
TESFHBTESREABRGN - B
BMEFBE LT AREFNRENREME
AEEXBHR LM RBESHNEAERE
BERRARBEBHIF - AEREF
DEBRER EMRAMEMREELT
MBENEE - AEBETRBTHN S
HMEIIRE AR ERENEZES
A MAREE © AN ARB T EHRES
s EMARA R EMERRE R RERER
MBR - WRREBTHRE  LNBRESF
HRFMEERTAMRA -

EENHE2018F12A31BILFELE
BIINFBOT

Types of training

EINER

AB,CD,E
AB,DE
ABDE
ABDE
AB,DE
ABDE

AB,CD,E
AB,CD,E
AB,C,DE

By



YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

Notes:
A. Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)

B. Reading materials relating to general business, real estate
development, directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

C. Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)
D. Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)

E. Directors E-Trainings in HKex

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Appendix 10”) and
devised its own code of conduct regarding directors’ dealings in
the Company’s securities (the “Company Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and
the Company Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
Company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the chief executive officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full support of the chief
executive officer and the senior management for the discharge of its
responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of senior management of
the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the directors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note
8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the
Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available to shareholders
on the Company’s website. Each of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Kang Baohua (chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and Mr. Pang Chung
Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning of directors, and
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and
made recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least one-
third of the Board;

° assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

° made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of Directors; and

° made recommendations to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, ethnicity, professional experience, knowledge
and length of service.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. One Nomination Committee
meeting was held during the year under review.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (chairman), Mr. Li Hongren and Mr.
Pang Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the directors’ remuneration and other benefits.
The remuneration of all directors is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level of their
remuneration and compensation are reasonable. Their written terms
of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the CG Code.
Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the Remuneration
Committee would make available its terms of reference, explaining its
role and the authority delegated to it by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) BEEZER(E)
Remuneration Committee (continued) TNEEE(E)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration HZE2018F 12 B31 BILFE @ HNEE
Committee: eXrEHT

° made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° conducted an annual review with reference to companies with
comparable business or scale and recommend remuneration
adjustments, if appropriate;

° reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior management by
band in the annual reports; and

RERFEEFRERERAENS
BHEMBR NS - IBLRIIER
M £ 375 BA [E 6032 7 1 5T S e
MEESRLEE

REEESMICETHEBEM
TR ML IR B RO B N

BE2EZRURBARBRNRAE
TR - YREERERED
&

o A R 1 A R P 42 380 B < A 38
BREMNSREEABNTAMEF
B &

o conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its performance e ZEeREDTFHIIXKESTEMR
as it may consider appropriate. IH o

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration BELCEE SR ZFREYEBA.5
of the members of the senior management by band for the year & BEEEEKENEE2018FE 12 B

ended 31 December 2018 is set out below: 31 BILFEZEHNSESZ 0T :
Number of
individuals

In the band of B E A

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 BT 6

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 70 2,000,000 /&7

HK$2,000,001to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 /7T 3,000,000 BT 2

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year HME B @l EE2018F12 A31 HIFE
ended 31 December 2018. BEITT1RES -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond and Mr. Pang
Chung Fai, Benny, all of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
and to provide advice and comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

° reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 as well as significant issues on financial
control, internal control and risk management systems;

° reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for 2018,
and received periodic updates on the status of internal audit
activities;

° discussed the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion included the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

° developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and made recommendations to the
Board.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors of the Company
twice without the presence of the executive directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the Company
performing the corporate governance duties as below:

o to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

° to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements of inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the
Group. The internal auditor and senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors on a regular
basis, and reports to the Audit Committee on any findings and
measures to address the variances and identified risks.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, the external company secretary service provider of
the Company, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary since 30 June 2012. The primary corporate contact
person at the Company is Alice Li, the secretary of the Finance and
Securities Department of the Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26 to 31 of this report.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the company secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills
and knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the Company
is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 106 to
113.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to approximately RMB9.8 million. The external auditors
of the Company provided non-audit services with contract-value
of about RMB3.3 million to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS IR ERER
Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general AR BRI K= (B IR R ERIK
meeting (including making proposals/moving a resolution at the = FIRHIEER SRR )NEF

extraordinary general meeting)

° Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary’), to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, including making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.

° Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for the purpose of making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1121, 11/F
No.1 Block, Grand Central Plaza 138 Shatin Rural Committee
Road Shatin Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

° The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, the agenda proposed to be included the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the extraordinary
general meeting, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting (including making proposals/moving a resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting) (continued)

° If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board
has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any outcome to
the contrary and fails to proceed to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of associations, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.

Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”
are for reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The
information does not represent and should not be regarded as legal
or other professional advice from the Company to the shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the
Company. The Company disclaims all liabilities for losses incurred
by its shareholders in reliance on any contents of this sub-section
headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.

Making enquires to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the principal place of business of the Company

in Hong Kong by post through the following means:

Telephone number: (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic &
Technological Development Area,
Shenyang, 110027, China
Attention: Finance and Securities Department
By email: investors@yuandacn.com
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s articles of association is also available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Investors Communication Policy

The Company regards the communication with institutional investors
as important means to enhance the transparency of the Company
and collect views and feedbacks from institutional investors. To
promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.yuandacn.com, where up-to-date information and updates
on the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are posted are available for public access. During the year under
review, the directors and senior management of the Company
participated in numerous road shows and investment conferences.
In addition, the Company also maintains regular communication with
the media through press conferences, news releases to the media
and on the Company’s website, and answering enquiries from the
media.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders face-to-
face dialogue with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and, where applicable, the
chairman of the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (“AGM”) will be held on 31 May
2019. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report and
the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year under review and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and outlook
of the Company’s business, possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing and important events affecting the Company
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2018 are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 10 to 25 of this annual report. An account of the Company’s
relationships with its key stakeholders is included in the paragraph
headed “Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and Customers”
of the report of the Directors on page 55 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2018 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 10 to 25 of this annual report and the Group’s “Five Year
Financial Summary” on page 288 of this annual report.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company
are provided in the report headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance” on pages 73 to 105 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for the Group.
The conscientious use of resources and adoption of best
practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its commitment
to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection and complies with environmental legislation
and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to the
employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

The PRC government has imposed strict requirements of the laws
of production safety and environmental protection for enterprises.
Since the PRC government is adopting laws on strengthening
environmental protection from time to time and implementing stricter
environmental protection standards, it is expected that the Group will
have to comply with more regulations in the future. In addition, the
Group predicts this trend will continue and additional expenses may
be incurred for complying with new regulations, thus increasing the
Group’s operating costs.

To cope with the risk, not only is the Group certified with ISO 14001
Environmental Management System, but the Group has also set up
an Environmental Division to monitor and manage the environmental
performance of our plants and maintain communication with the
Ministry of Environmental Protection. In addition, the Group has been
optimising its management system for safety and environmental
protection, regularly keeping abreast of the relevant laws and
regulations of environmental protection in order to ensure full
compliance with local laws of environmental protection. Further
details are set forth in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report as set forth in this annual report.

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of one-stop
integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet the
technical specifications and performance requirements of their
projects. The analysis of the revenue of the Group for the year is set
out in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
financial condition of the Company and the Group as at that date are
set out in the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 114 to
287.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the year are set
out in Note 27(c) to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any annual dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

BOOK CLOSURE PERIOD AND RECORD DATE

For the purpose in determining who will be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 28 May 2019 to Friday, 31 May 2019 (both days
inclusive), during which time no transfer of shares will be registered.
To ensure that the shareholders are entitled to attend and vote at the
AGM, the shareholders must deliver their duly stamped instruments
of transfer, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, to
the Group’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 May 2019 for registration of
the relevant transfer.

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity of the Financial Statements. Details of movements
in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in Note
27(a) to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution of dividends to
the shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Associations, and with the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividend may be declared and paid out of share premium account or
any other fund or account which can be authorized for this propose.
As at 31 December 2018, the distributable reserves of the Company
were RMB574.0 million (31 December 2017: RMB574.0 million).
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note
27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of
factors including our earnings and financial conditions, operation
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions that
any other Directors may deem or are relevant and will be subject
to the approval of our shareholders of the Company. There can
be no assurance that dividends of any amount will be declared or
distributed in any given year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

The changes in property, plant and equipments of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 12 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest suppliers and the Group’s
five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately
2.1% and 7.5% of the Group’s total purchase, respectively. The
percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customers
and the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 7.3% and 23.2% of the Group’s total turnover,
respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors or his/her close associates and none of the
shareholders possessing over 5% of the interest in the share capital
of the Company possessed any interest in the abovementioned
suppliers and customers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture.
The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate
and long-term goals. To maintain its market competitiveness within
the industry, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards
and high quality products to its customers. During the year under
review, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year and as of the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)

Li Hongren (Chief Executive Officer)
Liu Futao

Ma Minghui

Wang Hao (Chief Financial Officer)
Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

Poon Chiu Kwok
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Biographical details of the directors and senior management are set
forth in the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for the executive Directors and non-
executive Directors of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors” of the Corporate
Governance Report. There was no service contract entered by the
Company and any Directors to be re-elected in the coming AGM
stipulating that the Company may not terminate the appointment
within one year without compensation payment (other than the
statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the
CG Code, Mr. Kang Baohua, Mr. Li Hongren and Mr. Liu Futao will
retire at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM. Please refer to Note 8 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for details of the remuneration of Company’s
directors for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 28 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance between any member of
the Group as the contracting party and a Director or an entity which
the Directors of the Company possessed direct or indirect material
interests, and which subsisted as at 31 December 2018 or during
such reporting period and related to the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

The Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, owns and through his interests
in Best Outlook Limited (“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited
(“Neo Pioneer”) owns in aggregate approximately 57.65% of the
issued share capital in the Company as at the date of this annual
report. Mr. Kang Baohua, Best Outlook and Neo Pioneer are the
controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also
owns 100% interest in Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Yuanda Singapore”) through Yuanda
Group, which is owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Yuanda Singapore
is primarily engaged in curtain wall works and trading as well as
investment holding. Although the Company has established a
wholly-owned subsidiary in Singapore to carry out curtain wall
contracting projects, the ability to contract for large-scale public
curtain wall projects in Singapore is dependent on local contracting
experience. Given the lack of direct local contracting experience,
the Group has been cooperating with Yuanda Singapore on the
contracting of large scale public curtain wall projects in Singapore
during the last five years and will continue to supply curtain wall
products to Yuanda Singapore until the Company’s wholly owned
subsidiary will be able to undertake such projects in Singapore on
its own. Please see the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011 (the
“Prospectus”) for details. For the aforesaid purpose, Yuanda
Singapore has been excluded from the deed of non-competition
(“Deed of Non-competition”) provided by the controlling
shareholders to the Company on 21 April 2011.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the Company’s controlling shareholders in respect of the
compliance by them and their associates with the Deed of Non-
competition. Each of the controlling shareholders of the Company
have also confirmed that all of them have abided by the Deed of Non-
competition during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS
(continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-competition, the confirmation given by each of the Company’s
controlling shareholder and whether the controlling shareholders
have abided by the non-competition undertaking under the Deed
of Non-competition. The independent non-executive Directors
confirmed that they had determined that the controlling shareholders
have not been in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective connected
persons possessed any interests in any business that competed or
might compete with the business that the Group conducted.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he or she may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise
in relation thereto in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under review.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available

to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
listed securities.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 April 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board of Directors can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees of the Group and those
other persons that the Board of Directors considers that they will
contribute or have contributed to the Group (the “Participants”)
as described in the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as
compliment and to reciprocate their contribution to the Group. The
maximum number of shares that may be issued under the Share
Option Scheme was 600,000,000 shares which is equivalent to
10% of the issued capital of the Company after completion of
the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus). The number of
shares that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares of the
Company immediately after the completion of the Global Offering.
Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to
the Participants under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
1% within any 12-month period (other than those granted to the
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)), or the
total number of shares that may be granted under the options to
the independent non-executive Directors or any of their respective
connected persons shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of
the Company from time to time. There is no minimum period that
the options must be held before they become exercisable, and the
options granted shall be exercised within the period decided by the
Board of Directors, and however no options shall be exercised 10
years after they have been granted. The exercise price of the option
shall be the highest of:

(@ the closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(o)  the average closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

() nominal value of the Share. Each grantee shall pay a
consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is
adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from
that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have been
granted.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted
on 10 April 2013 to recognize and motivate the contributions made
to the Group by its employees and to give incentives in order to
retain them for the continuous operation and development of the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2018, no shares had been
awarded under the Share Award Scheme. Details of the rules of
the Share Award Scheme are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 April 2013.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of
10 years commencing on the date of adoption on 10 April 2013.
Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the shares will be acquired
by the independent trustee at the cost of the Company and be held
in trust for the selected employees until the end of each vesting
period. The maximum number of shares which may be granted to
the selected employees under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed five percent (5%) of the total issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to a selected employee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed one percent (1%) of the total issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. Since the adoption of
the Share Award Scheme, a total of 72,116,596 Shares have been
granted pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Award
Scheme.

DEBENTURE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company, its holding
company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting parties of
any arrangements from which the Directors could make a profit by
purchasing the shares or debentures of the Company or any other
companies.
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which would be required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which would be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to Model Code, are as follows:

(i) Interest of the Company

Latest Information of Share Capital and Major Shareholders

Name of Director Nature of Interest

EEps BEME

Kang Baohua Beneficial owner

REE EnEEA
Interest of controlled corporation
REFERE S

Li Hongren Beneficial owner

?//\ gﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁ/\

Liu Futao Beneficial owner

L EHEBA

Wang Hao Beneficial owner

2 EHEBA

Zhang Lei Beneficial owner

RE EafiBA

EERERG - HERORESNERR
023 )

MR2018F 12 A31H » EERARN RS
TERABRA R B EA AR EE (F
EAESH RIS KRGIEXVER) D « 18
RN RESFT  BEREEFRHE
I&MIEXVERE 7 K 8D ERBME RN A K&
BRI R SOAR (BIERIEE S K
BRPIZEBRIESHEEIWR A
BREZIAR)  IREBFES RS
Il 28 352 14 7B 50 A% 16 Fr e /& e M A4
AR RIRBIRESTRIZEANE AR
A MBI SOR B AT

() WRARRQBEER
RITRABLLAE ZRE

Approximate Percentage

Number of Shares of Shareholding
Ro8E REBNEDLL
228,636,000 (L) 3.68%
3,346,926,694 (L) 53.91%
831,333 () 0.01%
3,608,333 (L) 0.06%
150,000 (L) 0.01%
3,000,000 (L) 0.05%
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN EERKRS - HERORESHNERR
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES RE(E)
(continued)
()  Interest of the Company (continued) () AR ARHEZR(E)
Notes: Vo
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities. (1) FEILIRKERZEEFHTE °
(2)  Of the shares held by Mr. Kang Baohua, 2,582,971,923 @ REEELEMBEEHNRMG
Shares were held by Best Outlook Limited and 763,954,711 EHEE AR AREEA
Shares were held by Neo Pioneer Limited, both companies 2,582,971,923 (&% 1 » mFElH
of which are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. [R AR BI4E5 763,954,711 R AZRR
B MRABEIRREELES
BHEA o
(i) Interest in associated corporations (i) PRAEEEEAER
Name of Associated Percentage of
Name of Director Corporation Number of Shares Shareholding
EEME HEREEERE RGEEHE RETDL
Kang Baohua Best Outlook Limited 1L 100%
FREZE FEEBR AT
Kang Baohua Neo Pioneer Limited aR(] 100%
FREZE EIEMRAR]

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities. (1)  FEIL] RERZEFHFNLT

o

m
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at the date 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed
or taken to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or
the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of SFO, or who was directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company:

Interest of the company

Name Capacity

2% =27

Best Outlook Limited Beneficial owner
ERERAFO ExBERA
Neo Pioneer Limited @ Beneficial owner
HEIBRAR® ExBERA
Notes:

(1)  Best Outlook Limited and Neo Pioneer Limited are companies
incorporated in the BVI and are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua.

(2)  The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

TERROEZERAR

R20184F 12 A31 8 » KN A A ]
BIEFEH R EEGKPIEI6IEBEFED
Eif TIAL(ZEZERARRZST
A BBRIN RS HR BSE ER IR DK
AR P A RIBE S RS KIS
XV EFEE 2 & 39 BBV SE T IR B A2
R/ KR KEEXEERELAAT
B EITIRARN 5% sk A _E RRERS ¢

AR RBE R

Approximate Percentage

Number of Shares of Shareholding
RO #E RESNEDL
2,682,971,923 (L) 41.60%
763,954,771 () 12.30%
Hiat -

(1) EEBRARIEFMEIGRARRNIE
HERBEEMAZH AR - YHEEE
TEEZEHA -

@ FEILIRRRZEESFNGTR °

5] NG

ARAFIFHR2018F 12 A31 HHEEMEBA
RIFHBEN A TSR E IR 14 -
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of independence
issued by all the independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board of Directors was
satisfied with the independent status of all the independent non-
executive Directors.

The Board has noted that as at 31 December 2018, Mr. Poon Chiu
Kwok was an executive director or an independent non-executive
director of a total of 12 Hong Kong listed companies (including the
Company). However, the Board is of the view that Mr. Poon would
still be able to devote sufficient time to the Board. Mr. Poon as a
FCPA (Aust.), Chartered Secretary, Executive Director of a listed
company and an experienced trainer to the securities participants
and listed company management keeping himself abreast of the
latest governance trends of the companies listed in HK by attend
seminar and self-studying of related articles with over 80 hours
in 2018 and has strong experience in corporate governance and
is familiar with management of Hong Kong listed companies.
During the year 2018, based on the attendance record in the
meetings of the Company, Mr. Poon has participated in all Board
meetings and has good communication with the Board and other
independent non-executive Directors and performs his obligations
and responsibility gives impartial advice and suggestion as an
independent non-executive director.

The Board considers that his role as an independent non-executive
director is in the best interest of the Company and Shareholders as
a whole.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
The details are disclosed in the paragraph “Global offering and use

of proceeds” under the section “Management Discussion and
Analysis”.

RRE Y55
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS

The Group owns only 49% of the equity interests of its operating
companies, Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting for Buildings
Underes (“Yuanda Kuwait”) and Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., W.L.L. (“Yuanda Qatar”), in Kuwait and Qatar
respectively, as both Kuwait and Qatar laws do not allow foreign
companies to own a majority interest in a local operating company.
The Group had no operation in Qatar prior to the establishment of
Yuanda Qatar and prior to the establishment of Yuanda Kuwait,
the Group supplied products to a local company for projects it
undertook in Kuwait.

Yuanda Kuwait

Under Kuwait law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable it to govern and
control the financial and operation of Yuanda Kuwait and capture
its entire economic interest from its operations, the Group entered
into an agreement on 30 March 2009 (the “Kuwait Incorporation
Agreement”) with Mr. Mohamed Tareq Al Essa (the “Kuwait Local
Partner”), an independent third party, pursuant to which the Kuwait
Local Partner agreed to be the facilitator of the Group in relation
to the conduct of the Group’s business in Kuwait. Pursuant to the
Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, the Kuwait Local Partner has
declared that:

o all the capital and assets belong to Shenyang Yuanda;

o he has no share (and hence no voting rights) or the right to get
any share in Yuanda Kuwait or any entitlement to the profit of
Yuanda Kuwait;

o he is not involved in the day-to-day operation of Yuanda
Kuwait, save for assisting Yuanda Kuwait with coordination
with the local government authorities;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Kuwait under

the management of Shenyang Yuanda;

° he would not be held liable for any losses; and

MBSk FERRE

HRBES R RERERITFIER
AEAEHEERRNS B LD &
AEBNRMER R RE®R - E05EA
HELBRRERAMBRGRARERER
REAAR(MREBEKR]) REKRE
(RER)IRRARLA(FEFEK])
B 49% AX 4 ° $EIFF @Lﬁﬁi
Al EREEYEXEEE - MAERE
%Eﬁﬁi%*ﬁﬁlﬁﬂm%ﬁ—%
3 N AR (S m R I R P AR
HIRBFTA -

R &R

BRIBRIEE AR  NEETAHBEM
LENAINZEER REEAER
ZEHIRIBEFE RN REE - WHHE
LERRGEE2HLCENRE  AKREER
2009 4F 3 A 30 H 2% 37 55 = 75 Mohamed
Tareq Al Essat & (MBS EBH])
I —EmpE( BB IR - B
I BEFENBEHREXNAASEER
REFETAREEXEBENHAA - BE
BRI HE SRS EREHEE
R :
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

° the above terms in the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
irrevocable for three years effective from the date of signing
and will be automatically renewed for a similar period unless
and until terminated by both parties with a notice at least 90
days in advance.

Through the above arrangement, the Group is able to control the
operation of Yuanda Kuwait. As advised by the legal advisors of the
Company as to Kuwait law, the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
legal, valid and binding to its parties and constitutes legally binding
and enforceable obligations against the Kuwait Local Partner under
Kuwait law and is in compliance with the laws and regulations
of Kuwait. Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant
accounting standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Kuwait into
its consolidated financial statements as a wholly-owned subsidiary.

As disclosed in the Prospectus and the annual report of the
Company in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011,
notwithstanding that the Company considers that it is able to
effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda Kuwait
under the present arrangement, the Company has undertaken that in
order to protect the interests of the Company, it will introduce further
measures, including using our best efforts to amend the terms of
the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, by entering into supplemental
agreements that would include, among others, revisions that the
Kuwait Local Partner will not transfer any of its shares in Yuanda
Kuwait without the prior written consent of the Company, it will
vote for any resolutions of Yuanda Kuwait in accordance with the
instruction of the Company, and if there shall be any change to
the Kuwait laws or regulations and/or policies such that a foreign
entity becomes legally entitled to hold a majority interest in Yuanda
Kuwait, it will promptly transfer its relevant interest in Yuanda Kuwait
to the extent permitted by the then applicable laws or regulations to
Shenyang Yuanda to enable the Company to become the majority
shareholder of Yuanda Kuwait.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there
will not be any legal consequences assumed by the Company
arising solely as a result of the Company’s failure to enter into the
supplemental agreements to implement these additional measures.
However, in order to better protect the Company’s interests,
the Company will search for a replacement for its existing local
partner who is willing to enter into a cooperation agreement with
the Company that will contain the terms of the abovementioned
additional measures which are in compliance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still in negotiation
with the Kuwait Local Partner on the implementation of the above
additional measures and the Company will disclose any measures
implemented and/or replacement of existing local partner in the
Company’s future annual reports.

Yuanda Qatar

Under Qatar law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable the Company
to govern and control the financial and operation of Yuanda Qatar
and capture its entire economic interest from its operations, the
Company has entered into the memorandum of association of
Yuanda Qatar dated 20 January 2008 (the “Qatar Articles”) with
Mr. Ahmed Omar Bbhaa Ahmed (the “Qatar Local Partner’), an
independent third party, and an agreement dated 16 September
2017 (the “Qatar Incorporation Agreement”) entered into
between Shenyang Yuanda and Actrade for Trading & Contracting,
a company of which the Qatar Local Partner was the authorized
signatory with respect to the governing of the operation of Yuanda
Qatar.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

Pursuant to the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement, Yuanda Qatar was established and held as to 51%
by the Qatar Local Partner and as to 49% by Shenyang Yuanda.
Pursuant to the Qatar Articles:

° representatives of Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing the company during the entire term of its existence;

° profits of the company will be distributed as to 95% to
Shenyang Yuanda and as to 5% to the Qatar Local Partner;

The Qatar Articles were supplemented by the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that:

° the Qatar Local Partner will facilitate Shenyang Yuanda to
conduct business in Qatar;

o instead of receiving dividends from Yuanda Qatar, the Qatar
Local Partner will be paid an annual service fee of US$40,000
plus a scalable commission calculated based on 1% to 5% of
the contract value of projects that Yuanda Qatar won with the
assistance of the Qatar Local Partner;

° the dividends declared by Yuanda Qatar may be used to offset
and settle any service fees due or payable to the Qatar Local
Partner;

° save for assisting Yuanda Qatar with coordination with the
local government authorities, the Qatar Local Partner is not
involved in the day-to-day operations of Yuanda Qatar;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Qatar under
the management of Shenyang Yuanda.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

As advised by the legal advisors of the Company as to Qatar law,
subject to the Qatar Articles, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is
legal, valid, binding and enforceable under Qatar law, and as the
Qatar Incorporation Agreement and the Qatar Articles are related
to the same subject matter, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is
considered to be an explanatory to the Qatar Articles under Qatar
law. The Company’s legal advisors as to Qatar law has further
advised that the Qatar Articles is a validly binding and legally
enforceable document and constitutes legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of the parties thereto with respect to the
governance of the affairs of Yuanda Qatar and is in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations of Qatar and the Qatar
Incorporation Agreement is enforceable against the Qatar Local
Partner.

The Company entered into this arrangement in Qatar in order to
enable it to control and operate Yuanda Qatar and capture the
economic interest from its operations, and these are supported by
the following terms in the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement:

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are entitled to
similar responsibilities and authorities in Yuanda Qatar as
board members in other subsidiaries of Shenyang Yuanda;

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing Yuanda Qatar during the entire term of its existence
and they may not be removed without the approval from
Shenyang Yuanda;

° resolutions of the shareholders of Yuanda Qatar will only be
valid by approval from a majority of the shareholders holding
75% of the shares in Yuanda Qatar;
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

° Yuanda Qatar is managed exclusively by Shenyang Yuanda
and its representatives for the period of its existence.
Shenyang Yuanda and its representatives shall have full and
absolute authority and exclusive right to manage and operate
the business of Yuanda Qatar. Such powers are irrevocable
and the Qatar Local Partner may not intervene in managing
the company or bind or commit Yuanda Qatar in any way
whatsoever except with prior written consent from Shenyang
Yuanda;

o Pursuant to the Qatar Articles, the profits of Yuanda Qatar
will be distributed as to 95% to Shenyang Yuanda and as to
5% the Qatar Local Partner, while the dividends declared by
Shenyang Yuanda may be used to offset and settle any service
fees due or payable under the management of Shenyang
Yuanda under the Qatar Incorporation Agreement.

Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant accounting
standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Qatar into its
consolidated financial statement as a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group.

As disclosed in the Prospectus and subsequent annual reports of
the Company, notwithstanding that the Company considers that it
is able to effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda
Qatar under the present arrangement, the Company has undertaken
that in order to protect the interests of the Company, it will introduce
further measures, including using its best efforts to amend the terms
of the Qatar Incorporation Agreement, by entering into supplemental
agreements that would include, among others, provisions that the
Qatar Local Partner will not transfer any of its shares in Yuanda
Qatar without the Company’s prior written consent, it will vote for
any resolutions of Yuanda Qatar in accordance with our instruction,
and if there shall be any change to the Qatar laws or regulations
and/or policies such that a foreign entity becomes legally entitled to
hold a majority interest in Yuanda Qatar, it will promptly transfer its
relevant interest in Yuanda Qatar to the extent permitted by the then
applicable laws or regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable the
Company to become the majority shareholder in Yuanda Qatar.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there will
not be any legal consequences to the Company arising solely as
a result of our failure to enter into the supplemental agreements to
implement these additional measures. However, in order to better
protect the Company’s interests, the Company will search for a
replacement for its existing local partner who is willing to enter into a
cooperation agreement with the Company that will contain the terms
of the abovementioned additional measures which are in compliance
with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still negotiation
with the Qatar Local Partner on the implementation of the above
additional measures and the Company will disclose any measures
implemented and/or replacement of its existing local partner in its
future annual reports.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules
regarding the provision of advances by the Company to an entity.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in the
past five years is set out on page 288 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association of the Company or the ordinance of Cayman Islands,
stipulating that any new shares shall be offered according to the
respective shareholding of the existing shareholders of the Company
when new shares are issued by the Company.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Group and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Group maintained adequate public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018.

AUDITOR
The Company appointed KPMG as the Auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The Company will submit a

resolution in the coming AGM to re-appoint KPMG as the auditors of
the Company.

By order of the Board

Kang Baohua
Chairman

29 March 2019
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INTRODUCTION

This is the environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”)
report (the “ESG Report”) of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018. The principal activities of the Group
are the design, procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall systems.

The Company believes that this ESG Report enables the Company
to communicate the Group’s sustainability related matters in a
transparent and accountable manner, which is key to gaining
the trust of its stakeholders. The Group is committed to making
continuous contribution to the sustainable development in China
and overseas, and fulfilling corporate social responsibilities at
various operational levels. This ESG Report provides an overview
of the Group’s performance related to sustainable development
in the areas of the environment, community, employment and
labor practices and operation convention for the year ended 31
December 2018, with a coverage of the Company’s PRC office and
its operation sites in overseas.

Reporting Standard and Scope

This ESG Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG
Reporting Guide as set forth under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules
A detailed ESG content index has been included at the back of this
report to aid the reader and facilitate greater transparency. This
ESG Report describes the initiatives of the Group and its progress
with regard to ESG issues for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018.

Operating in compliance with the laws

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure basically
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on its operations, including but not limited to laws and
regulations in relation to product safety and liabilities, customer
rights protection and employment and occupational safety. The
management will monitor the impact for any changes in the relevant
laws and regulations from time to time and seek external advice if
considered necessary.
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Communication with stakeholders

Stakeholders are groups which directly related to the Group’s ESG
and play an important role in the Group’s decision-making process.
The Group has always been committed to various communication
and dialogue with all stakeholders via different communication
channels for different stakeholders, so as to understand their needs,
collect their opinions, share and discuss various issues closely
related to the development of the Group, and to actively respond
to the opinions and appeals of the stakeholders in the course of
the operation, and achieve the Group’s overall and sustainable
development.

The Company has identified seven major categories of stakeholders
who have decision-making power or influence over the Group and
are closely related to the Group’s business.

The Group communicates with its stakeholders to understand their
concerns, and regularly reviews the effectiveness of the relevant
actions and improves communication channels to gain a broader
and more intensive understanding of its stakeholder’s opinions.
The following table sets out the issues that different stakeholder
categories are particularly concerned about during the Reporting
Period:

Table 1
Topics that stakeholders are primarily concerned about

Stakeholder  Topics that stakeholders are Communication or
Categories primarily concerned about response methods
Employees o Compliant operation o Trainings on regulations

o Quality guarantee o Solicit rational suggestions

¢ Remuneration and benefits ¢ Survey on the development of

¢ Health and safety employees and their satisfaction

o Care career developmentof ¢ Workers’ congress

employees o Day-to-day work communication

Shareholders/  »  Compliant operation o Shareholder general meeting
Investors ¢ Quality assurance of on-

going profitable projects
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Communication with stakeholders (continued)

Stakeholder
Categories

Government
authorities

Subcontractors

Proprietors

Suppliers

Communities

Topics that stakeholders are
primarily concerned about

o Compliant operation

¢ Promote local employment
and economic and social
development

o Fulfill social responsibility

o Compliant operation
o The environmental impact of
construction work

o Quality guarantee

¢ Protection of commercial
information

o Provide satisfied services

¢ Industry participation

o Requirements of suppliers
on environmental and social
influence

¢ Supply chain management

o Keep good cooperative
relationships

o Charity

¢ Promote local employment
and economic and social
development

Communication or
response methods

o Obtain permits for projects

o Communicate through meetings

o Formulate specifications and
exchange of ideas

o Special topic meeting (report) and
information reporting

o Business communication with
counterpart departments

o Daily communication throughout
the process, including changes of
design and construction

o Communication of sales and
inspection

o Documents and mails

o Customer assessment and
management

o Dally transactions

¢ Qualification review

o Communication throughout the
tendering and bidding process

o Charity activities
o Activities to promote
community’s development
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Materiality identification

Based on the social responsibility standards both in China
and abroad, the policy requirements of Chinese government,
benchmarking with leading enterprises, and investigation and
research of stakeholders as well as its own development plan, the
company has established social responsibility topic pool, and then
classified the topics into five categories of corporate governance,
environment, employment and labor, community, operation practice,
covering a total of 18 items.

Table 2
Identification of topics

Category No.  Topics

Corporate governance 1 Compliant operation
2 Risk management
3 Prohibit bribery and corruption
4 Stakeholder communication

Environment Establishment of environmental management systems
Energy-saving and emission reduction

Resource recycling

@0 ~N o O

Green concept

Employment and labor 9 Remuneration and welfare system
10 Occupational safety
11 Training and career development
12 Caring about employees

Community 13 Public welfare and charity
14 Volunteer activities of employees

Operation practice 15 Product responsibility and project quality assurance
16 Supply chain management
17 Requirements of suppliers on environmental and social impact
18 Intellectual rights protection
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group proactively responses to the national environmental
protection policies with an objective (i) to reduce the adverse
effect that the operational production may bring to the
environment; and (i) to ensure the harmonious development
of the Group and environmental sustainability. The Group
strives to reduce energy and other energy consumption,
reduce waste emissions, to fully utilise recyclable resources,
increase area of greening and introduce the concept of green
environmental protection in the Group’s products.

A.1  Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction

The Group always concerns itself with environmental
protection and works on energy saving and emission
reduction.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
strengthened energy saving, emission reduction and
waste reduction in various aspects of its production
process as follows:

Related policy and Management
Production process method

Product Design e The Company has instilled the
concept of green-building into
the products and gained the
certification of green building
materials and products.

Choice of Supplier o Suppliers are asked to provide
environmental assessment reports
or guarantee of environmental
protection to help suppliers to
enhance energy conservation and
emissions reduction in production.

e Purchasing materials according
to order demand, the Company
preferentially chooses the nearby
suppliers to reduce the energy
consumption of delivery.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1 Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction
(continued)

Related policy and Management
Production process method

Production o Dust Control: For dust generated
during sealant processing, the
Group uses filters to control and
recover dust. For dust generated
during spraying process, the Group
has adopted both filter method
and cyclone method to control and
recover dust.

o Noise Control: The Group has
adopted various measures to
control the noise generated from
our production process, including
implementation of shock absorption,
appropriate design of factory layout,
and cultivation of plants at our
production facilities.

o Waste Water Control: Waste
water generated from our
spraying process is gathered and
reused in our spraying process
in a closed loop after flotation,
flocculation, sedimentation and
other procedures. The Group also
generates waste water during
material pre-treatment in our
production. Such waste water
is discharged into municipal
sewage processing plant after
flocculation, sedimentation, sand
filtration, carbon filtration and other
procedures.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1 Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction
(continued)

Related policy and Management
Production process method

¢ Air Emission Control: The air must
be purified before emission and
shall meet the relevant requirements
stipulated by the laws. Air emissions
generated during the production
process of the Group include
nitrogen oxide, particulates, sulphur
dioxide and organic waste gas
(benzene and xylene).

Policies e Regularly conduct a comprehensive
energy audit to analyze the energy
management and give suggestions
for improvements.

o The Company is effectively operating
the Environmental Management
System 1ISO14001:2015.

o The Group implemented “Safe,
saving energy and reducing
consumption” management in all
the operation sites to regulate the
behaviour of employees and lower
energy consumption. Production
planning department reasonably
arrange the production shift to
avoid electric usage rush hour. Al
the office room equipped with the
curtain wall to ensure efficient usage
of sunlight and save energy.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1 Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction
(continued)

Related policy and Management
Production process method

o The Group has a comprehensive
non-hazardous treatment and re-
utilisation system to recycle and re-
use the waste

In 2018, the Company has not been challenged or
questioned by any competent government authorities
of relevant bodies in relation to issue on environmental
pollution caused by emission.

Plan for the year 2019
° To increase our transparency by developing
company-wide guidelines for energy consumption,

as well as setting greenhouse gas emission target
of 3% reduction from 2017 to 2019.

° To further reduce paper use by enhancing the

paperless system for internal communications.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. RE(ZE)
A1 Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction A1 BRRE R BERHYRE D (&)
(continued)
Energy and resource Consumption and Pollutant KEEBREER - B HFER T
Emissions of the Group RHEY)
The main greenhouse gas emissions of the Group NEFEREEHRYE =R 2
are carbon dioxide, nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide FTELAE -G RELE
and particulate matter which are monitored to ensure Y- Z& s - BRY - FTA
compliance with standards before being discharged. B HE U 4R im0, A RE IR I
As the Company’s statistics and monitoring system SIEEBBEIT - BEE A RIHEIT
for emission indicators is fully installed, the accurate ESAINE XRENTE B
statistics of organic waste gas (benzene and xylene) MR RS (B R —FR R By Al
indicators. In 2018, the emission of benzene is 23,610kg FE1Z A] A XERE S0 8% © 2018 4F
and the emission of xylene is 6,400kg, which is purified B BREERE A R R g2
before emission and do not exceed the specified #4)23,610T 7 * SHEFRRFE
environmental standard. #76,400 T 5% - L RAEEHEA
A& EF LR E B N ERIR
RIFTEIFLE o
Table 3 )
Resources consumption of the Group REEFEFEZE
Power Water
consumption Diesel Gasoline consumption
(KWH) L (L (m?)
HEEE Le5m i FKE
(FEE) (#) (F) (IZFK)
Annual Consumption of 2018 13,881,845 543,710 100,255 132,441
2018 F 2 FHKEE
Annual Consumption of 2017 14,611,801 270,643 83,418 340,741

2017 E2FHfEE
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. REE)
A1 Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction A1 BRRE RBERRHYR D (42)
(continued)
Table 4 x4
Indirect emissions of the Group KEF LY
Co, No, So, Particulate
emissions emissions emissions matter
(kg) (kg) (kg) (kg)
—S|w FE=EY —F iR
BEmE B E B E R
(=) (%) (F=) (F=)
Annual emissions of 2018 15,498,060 * 563,777 416,455 3,775,862
2018 F 2 FHWE
Annual emissions of 2017 15,473,293 514,596 438,354 3,974,410
2017 FEFHNE
* Scope 1 -Co2 from the combustion of petroleum, * Hrh#E— B =RmERE S
diesel, kerosene and LPG is about 1,657,860 kg; W= c: I - =: 1 R by
Scope 2 —Co2 from the use of purchased electricity SR EE © 491,657,860 F
and thermal power is about 13,840,200 kg. 7 B RERERAN
BT - INERHER
4913,840,200 F 7% °
A.2 Green Concept A2 #HEES

In order to be more effective in utilisation of resources
and achieve waste reduction and environmental
protection, all the operation sites of the Group began to
implement ‘Green’ office, ‘Green’ material and ‘Green’
filing management. Employees are also encouraged
to save documents, files and product information
electronically and go paperless, thus resolving the
difficulty in file searching and management and realising
resources sharing. In term of production technology,
selects and uses lighter and more environmental-friendly
materials to ease the burden to the environment.

The Group focuses on the greening of production bases.
Total carbon dioxide annually absorbed by green plants
is 634,570 kg.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A.2 Green Concept (continued)

Table 5
Green planting area

Production base in Shenyang

RHAESN

Production base in Chengdu

PREEER

Production base in Foshan

FhlEERN

Production base in Shanghai
R

Including rented area

A.3 Waste Management

A.
2018
2018
Green area Absorbed
of the base Co, (kg)

HERLER" RR-SILHE ko)
100,000 m? 634,570
8,167 m?

4,000 m?

25,783 m?

As for classification of wastes, due to the industry

attributes, main wastes of the Group are non-hazardous

wastes other than hazardous wastes. The non-

hazardous wastes are mainly the waste steel, waste
paint, waste water, exhaust gas even the waste packing
materials which the Group has a comprehensive non-

hazardous treatment and re-utilisation system to recycle

and re-use.

BRIE(E)
A2 HEES(E
RIES5
AREEHEE
2017
2017
Green area Absorbed
of the base Co, (kg)
BEGEEE RRZELHE ko)
120,000 m? 726,570
8,167 m?
4,000 m?
25,783 m?

A3
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A.3 Waste Management (continued)

The Company have strictly complied with the
Environmental Protection Law, Cleaner Production
Promotion Law, Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law, Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard, etc.
A designated department was set up to monitor the
wastewater discharge in daily production, to ensure
clean production.

The amount of industrial and domestic wastewater
discharged and concentration of pollutants are greatly
reduced after onsite treatment, recycling and reuse.
The Company have established a sewage treatment
plant in the factory for treating chemicals to meet the
environmental standard before discharging to municipal
sewage pipe network according to regulations.

Table 6
Waste recycling management

2018
20185

Metal  Wood  Plasic  Paper
t® A BH %

Recycling weight (kg) -
production base in Shenyang

A EERN-IWEE )

Recycling weight (kg) -

6,207,104 1,482,240 388,602

production base in Foshan 1,067,850 185,554 55510
rilEERY -EHEE k)
Recycling weight (kg) -

production base in Chengdu 186,151 - - 3,000

RAEERN-HWEE )
Recycling weight (kg) -
production base in Shanghai

FRAEEN-ENEES ko)

801,983 29,8271 7,256 41,525

A.

Other
waste

S

31,840 384,180

7,000

BIR(E)

A.3

Metal

423,627 1,249,392 4,956,790

572,330

341,170

563,728

EMER(E)

ARBFRECREFREL) B
BEEREZR) - OK5RME
EYRITKER A IR E LR
FARER  RUFFMWTIE
B8P - 8 B E AR KRR
EITER  BRBREE -

T3 REK R A T R K A TR N B
BRAERBAK  KBERE
BEKBEMEFSREE © K
MRS EEIBER - BERAT
ETILERIE » DUEEIRRE
® . FAIREEHERETBUS
IKEH o

*RI%6
JER BB FE

2017
017%
Other
Wood Plasic ~ Paper  waste

At B & Eft

770460 110,120 502,800 596,460
320,270 - 33930 434140
= - 14460 245
44,331 - 344960 11,685
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group’s sustainability and development cannot be
separated from the value of its employees. The Group strives
to continuously establish and improve its staff management
system, including the recruitment of quality employees,

EEREIRE

REENAFELEMBERBETHE
TEEE - AEEL DN EEA
TERBTEERAR  BREEENH
BET 2v fEmEfEgs-

establish and improve the welfare system to provide

employees with a safe working environment, improve the
professional development of employees with an objective that
employees can grow together with the Company.

Provide a good Clear job description, appointment criteria and

working environment  performance appraisal standards

to attract outstanding

employees

Cultivate staff Regular business training and education

development

Well-being of Conduct regular physical examination, games,

employees convenient staff commuting and sudden disaster
weather timely evacuation

Importance of work Regular equipment maintenance, safety training,

safety dangerous operating practices

Promote a fair and Anti-corruption, anti-discrimination awareness of

honest corporate publicity, reporting as well as internal audit and

culture other measures
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.1

Working Environment

To enable the growth and development of the Group’s
employees, the Group strives to build a collaborative
and harmonious working environment. The Company
rewards its employees with competitive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits which commensurate
with their experience and job task. Staff members are
also informed of requirements on expected professional
conduct. The Company adheres to the “fairness,
equality, diversity” principle for its staff management
and does not tolerate discrimination or harassment in
any form, and allow its staff members to realise their full
potential at work.

The Company adopted a transparent system for
assessing staff performance. At the end of each
year, the Company will appraise the performance of
all employees, and together with the results of the
assessment results and employees’ personal desire
to adjust their job nature and pay arrangement as
appropriate.

In terms of talent recruitment, the Group attracts the
best talents through various channels such as social
recruitment, internal recommendation and campus
recruitment, and strengthen the talent deployment
between different regions. All employment with the
Group is voluntary. The Group complies with national
and local laws and all employees are voluntary and do
not employ any child labor. The Group is dedicated to
ensuring that operations remain free from child labor,
and is developing systems and procedures to handle
the management of such incidents. Should a child be
discovered working on our premises, he or she will
immediately be transported back to their hometown
or place of origin. The Group will then file necessary
documentation with the local authorities while consulting
with the child’s guardians on avenues for his or her return
to school.
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.2 Cultivate Staff Development

The Company encourages its staff to undertake training
and further studies to enhance their job-related skills
and knowledge. This training shall contribute to a
more productive and effective workforce that is able to
address the challenges that the Company may face as
a company. In 2018, the Company further improved
the Company’s training management system. The
Company uses internal and external training resources to
actively organize 4-level education and trainings covering
“company level”, “headquarter level”, “subsidiary level”
and “department level”.

Changes in social and business environments may
require updated skill sets to deal with new market
opportunities. The Group has devoted plenty resources
in offering staff training and development programmes.
The Group encourages continuous learning via training
and further studies to enhance our staff’s job-related
skills and knowledge. It does not only increase staff
satisfaction and reduce staff turnover but also enhances
ability for staff to adapt to change.

The Company also has a strong desire to develop
its own pool of talents in view of the uniqueness
and diversity of its business. The Company provides
graduates with the opportunity to make their way up in
their career as qualified professionals. Other training,
such as seminars, workshops and technical visits are
aligned to the specific needs of individuals, covering
professional development as well as management and
technical skills.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
organised a total of 30 training targeted at employees
of the Group. The Company also built E-platform for
sharing training materials for employees to study anytime
and anywhere.
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued) B. EREREIREE)

B.2 Cultivate Staff Development (continued) B2 EEET%R(E)

B.3

Employees Type of trainings ETER BEIRE
Management level  Managerial and compliance SRR B A

Design department  Software operation

EGEN

B AR

Workshop and Safety operation, safety installation training and E[EIERPY - TEEE 2R

construction site raw material production RN B - EERMENE
BEIE

Sales department  Business etiquette and language $HEEPM EsEE  EEE

Well-being of Employees

A healthy work-life balance is encouraged among the
Group’s staff members. The Group has organised a wide
array of staff activities including badminton contest, ping
pong contest and Yuanda Marathon, amongst others, to
cater to the diverse interests of its employees.

As the fast pace and pressure of life, the Group and
the specialized medical institutions reached a long-term
cooperation agreement, pursuant to which staff can
enjoy a medical check-up and examination on an annual
basis. Further, the Group also arranged and invited
relevant medical specialists to the factory and production
site to arrange physical examination for staff free-of-

charge.
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued) B. BREREIREE)
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B.4 Occupational Safety B4 BFELE
The health and safety of the Group’s employees ETHERMNLZERAE
are of utmost concern. The Group has adopted the FEOHEE NE B K
Management System GB/T28001-20110HSAS18001: BT &R ¥ RXGB/T28001-
2007 as a standard to guide our approach in mitigating 20110HSAS18001 : 2007 1A
occupational health and safety hazards. SRR FE R PIE R AR
VEBERRLERREE -
Different safety-related initiatives and measures TEAREEFBH R EESRERE
have been rolled out in the Group’s operations. Risk REM T ZRBELEE M
assessments are also conducted to identify risks in vk o [Blfm s L RE N RS 5% Bl Tk
special working environments, while detailed safety B TEERIE A &P, (B B ]
instructions have been formulated and communicated to FEAN LS| HEW AR
workers as part of their safety training sessions. Safety IO RNBEZELTA o &
officers are appointed to coordinate and communicate 2HEEB S ABEIRIES T A
safety-related matters to workers on site. FAEBL MR -
Safety instructions In order to clarify the operational steps and R2BE ATHEIIFNRES
risk points of each process, the Group has Bl BHERE EEGRST
prepared a number of safety instructions. AT RRe e o
Training In order to ensure the safety of employees in 24| ATEERDBRETH
practice, the Group conducts training on theory Th o EETHAETHE
and field safety on a regular basis to promote TERREMZ2E
safety awareness. HELZ2EH -
Inspection Perform regular maintenance and inspection BE HAIEZRNEERS
on the production sits with higher tendency of ETRRNERRE - 4
safety issues. IR AT TTE B2 o
|
x: aam R
- —— safasiaumen
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.4

B.5

Occupational Safety (continued)
Certification The Group has passed the GBT28001-2011/
OHSAS18001:2007 safety management
certification, during the process of which, a
comprehensive review of the Group’s safety
risks had been conducted and thorough
rectification.

Accountability Strengthen the Group’s safety management by
way of annual assessment of the responsible
person responsible the safety issue of each
workshop and production site.

The Group also seeks to influence its subcontractors and
collaborate with them to heighten their understanding of
safety concerns at the workplace.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there
was no confirmed material non-compliance incident
or grievance in relation to human rights and labour
practices. Reported lost days due to work related injuries
amounted to a total of 240 days.

Fair and honest corporate culture

The Group adheres to high standards of business ethics
and integrity, all staff members are required to abide by
the requirements of professional conduct specified in the
employees handbook. Strict rules have also been laid out
on accepting gifts from business partners during festive
$easons.
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.5

B.6

Fair and honest corporate culture (continued)

In order to promote a corporate culture with high
integrity standard, the Company not only regularly
conducts lectures on anti-corruption, it also encourages
all employees to participate in anti-corruption activities.
Complementing this effort is the implementation of an
anti-fraud policy as well as a whistle-blowing policy,
which provides a reporting channel for employees and
stakeholders such as customers, suppliers, amongst
others to report any misconduct or malpractice. During
the reporting year, there had been no confirmed case of
corruption.

Compliance

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
had no material incidences of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations regarding employment and
labour practices.

Plan for 2019

o To offer the opportunity to employees to further
enhance their skills.

° To increase employees’ knowledge on health
protection and introduce health and hygiene
knowledge.
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued) B. EBREREIREEE)

B.6 Compliance (continued) B6 A#(#&)
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 4,604 HZE2018F12831H » ~KEE
employees. The formation of our staff was as follows: HEEBEAHAEFT4604A -
REBESBBRESWT -
Table 7 RIRT
Employees of the Group REFE TSR
2018 2017
2018 20175
Number of Training hours Number of  Training hours
employees per capita employees per capita

BIAE NG BTAR A

Total B% 4,604 6,094

Gender 215l Male Bt 3,928 3.50 5,210 3.70
Female 676 3.40 884 3.30

Age RFH#R Under the age of 30 451 4.00 839 4.20
N
Between the age of 30 and 50 3,686 3.60 4,869 3.64
30-505%
Above the age of 50 467 2.32 386 2.45
507 £

Region ¥&i[& Northeast of China H B 5 1t [& 13 3,384 3.60 3,839 410
Other regions £ it &3 1,220 3.30 2,255 2.86

Job category B4 Senior management B2 /8 191 4.30 265 5.30

Ordinary emplyee & T 4,413 3.45 5,829 3.57



94

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE - B8 RERRSE

OPERATION PRACTICES

Since establishment, the Group has been committed to
building and improving the supply chain of products. On the
basis of traditional curtain wall products, the Group adopts
relatively complex designs, uses new materials or advanced
technology to develop a variety of products, which has
proven to be able to provide different functions, such as
environmental protection, energy saving and intelligent control.
A comprehensive product supply has laid a solid foundation for
the Group’s development in the China and overseas markets.
In order to ensure products are of high quality, the Group
screens its suppliers strictly in terms of quality provided, and
pay close attention to maintain a good relations of cooperation
with customers to ensure efficient and smooth operation of the
Group.

C.1 Product responsibility

The Group performs a number of product performance
tests before, during and after installation to ensure a high
level of safety as follows:

Before Safety test for  The test will usually be conducted during the
installation  curtain wall embedment and after the embedment of the
connectivity  curtain wall parts. The Group willfirstly apply

for testing, and then conduct sample testing on
site as approved by the site supervisor. Testing
will be conducted by a professional testing
company, which will issue a test report to quide
the Group on the rectification step thereafter, if
any.

Re-testingof  This is a quality test of curtain wall

materials components. The site supervisor will select
the material samples from the site. Thereafter,
samples will be sent to the laboratory
for chemical and physical testing, with
conclusions being delivered by the laboratory
with reference to the national and industry-
related standards.
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C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

CA

Material
compatibility
testing

Curtain wall
performance
testing

During Conformance

installation testing of

lightning

Product responsibility (continued)

This is a safety and performance test to
determine if the sealant and curtain wall
components have any bonding problems

or harmful chemical effects. Samples of
curtain wall components will be provided to
the relevant sealant manufacturers who wil
conduct the tests and provide written reports
to the Group.

This test is used to ensure that the
performance of the curtain wall in use, with
four basis tests to be conducted, including
wind pressure, water-tightness, air tightness,
in-plane deformation. Inspections may also
include insulation, sound insulation, seismic
and optical performance as part of the test, as
appropriate. Performance testing is conducted
by national laboratory with reference to the
relevant project curtain wall performance and
performance indicators.

The purpose of the test is to ensure that
people and property in the building will not be
damaged by lightning. Detection will be carried

protection grid  out in each lightning protection grid.
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C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

C.1

C.2

Product responsibility (continued)

Strength The structural adhesive is used to connect
testing of the curtain wall panel and aluminum. This is
structural what is required to be done after applying the
adhesives structural adhesive and applying the sealant to
the curtain wall component.
After On-site water ~ This is a field test of whether the curtain wall
installation  spray test has water leakage, i.€., a five-minute water
spray test for each cross-connector.
Incaseof  Tobehandled Any complaint to our operation sites will be
complaint(s) as soonas recorded and dealt with immediately.
possible

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
customers’ complaints rate of the Group is under 1%.
The Company will continue to enhance its product
quality to strive to reduce the number of complaints in
the future.

Supply chain management

The Group relies on an extensive network of suppliers
and subcontractors to ensure the quality and
consistency of its services. The proactive management
of the Group’s supply chain helps the Group mitigate
and manage related risks that may affect its operations.
The Group continuously engages with its subcontractors
and raise their awareness on occupational health and
safety issues. The Group also monitors and assesses its
suppliers and subcontractors by reviewing their services,
product quality, safety, financial performance on an
annual basis. Substandard suppliers and subcontractors
will be suspended or even removed from our approved
vendor list.

Environmental, Social and Governance
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C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)
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C.2 Supply chain management (continued)

The Group has established a supplier evaluation system,
evaluation factors include not only the strength and
credibility of the supplier, the quality control system,
technology, production capacity, supply ability,
management and product price, also consider whether
the factors such as environmental protection, harmless
to the human body. According to the evaluation results,
compiled annually qualified supplier list, and qualified
suppliers can be divided into A, B, C three categories,
and the Group usually only buys from this year’s list
of qualified suppliers in the purchase of raw materials,
including class A is preferred, class C as A last resort.
In order to reduce carbon emissions in the process
of transportation and save the transportation cost at
the same time, we give priority to local quality qualified
suppliers.

Preliminary review of documents and discussion on
bidding proposals will be conducted. When the final
decision is made after deliberation, the Group will enter
into a purchase agreement with the selected supplier.

Necessary due diligence is also performed where
required, with site visits and verification of products or
services arranged to ensure that suppliers conform to
the Group’s high standards.
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C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

C.2

C.3

Supply chain management (continued)

Table 8
Qualified suppliers of the Group

Number of suppliers

HrEmsE

Geographical region

iR
Northeast of China
ESld
Other regions of China
Hfb&
Overseas
=2

Intellectual Rights Protection

In order to provide consumers with genuine high quality
products and protect our product and installation
method of intellectual property rights, in 2018, the Group
obtained 37 patents, including 1 patents for invention
and 36 patents for utility model.

minE%(E)

C2 HERER(E

=~i%8
REFE B HREEEL
2018 2017
2018 & [E 2017 &

124 135
324 566
138 124

C.3 HMBERRE
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COMMUNITY D. #E
The Group as a corporation, should take up and be EE—EA AR EFZzAaaHtes
accountable for social responsibility. The Group actively F o REBRBRAONDE2MBETD
cares about the society and fulfills its corporate social EHEET - BXUAKR  AEE
responsibilities. Ever since the establishment, the Group has —EREZYEREE RN E
been maintaining close communications and interactions with BR(BEESHAER - S8 - NE
local communities in order to contribute to local development. EiEfR2HEA R MMBTEREE) -
As a result of which, the Group actively participates in BelE—ANZEreaEt = °
community and government livelihood activities, to create a
harmonious society.
Table 9 FRIR9
Social responsibility activities HEEMETE
Date Community activities
B EENERE
2018.1.19 Organized long-distance race
=3}
2018.1.31 Alleviated poverty of military families
HE
2018.2.14 Arranged for employees’ return to their hometown to celebrate the chinese new year
EXETRBEFE
2018.3.12 Organized health knowledge lectures
{2 JB KM 8k s R
2018.3.24 Made contribution to win the honor title “well-civilized, good-sanitary condition, eco-
friendly” for the local city during the rating period by volunteer community services
= B3R T AT IR A R A AL I AR TS
2018.3.31 Organized free medical consultation clinic for employees and their families
BT RFRBEDEH
2018.4.13 Honored the martyrs of the War to Resist US Aggression and Aid Korea
KFENEERFRLE
2018.4.14 Made contribution to win the honor title “well-civilized, good-sanitary condition, eco-
friendly” for the local city during the rating period by volunteer community services
= S B T AT 5 AR PR A AL [ AR S
2018.4.15 Made contribution to win the honor title “well-civilized, good-sanitary condition, eco-
friendly” for the local city during the rating period by volunteer community services
= S B T AT 5 AR PR A AL [ AR S
2018.6.15 Organized a visit the World War Il Memorial in Shenyang

2018.6.1-2018.6.30

BB RE N RS
Organized tug-of-war competition

BOR LB

99
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D. COMMUNITY (continued) D. #HE(#E)
Date Community activities
B SEENERE
2018.7.28 Organized stride race
fEE
2018.8.31 Organized a visit the World War Il Memorial in Shenyang
BESBHEREZNERRBLSEE
2018.9.1 Organized Yuanda Marathon
BRANBHNMLLE
2018.9.13 Participated the precise poverty alleviation activities in Chaoyang
S G TIRERE S
2018.9.20 Sent gifts to employees at Chinese traditional Mid-Autumn festival
FRRKER D A8 AR A
2018.11.23 Organized a visit the Urban Planning Exhibition Hall in Shenyang
2EEGHTREREHE
In 2018, total expense of community activities is about 2018 2 HEEFHELHA A

RMB1.2million. AREA2HBET °
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AWARDS AND HONOR

The Company have long been striving for innovation and
providing qualified products to customers. In 2018, the Group
was awarded the following awards and honors:

20181

2018.3

2018.3

2018.4

2018.9

2018.11

Honors

HERTE

Awarded with Luban Prize for Construction Project
for 2016-2017

1§ 2016-2017 EE BT i

Awarded with “Most popular curtain wall projets” in
13th AL-Survey

ESE13E [RREERRIRE] &8
Awarded with 2017 Shenyang Mayor Quality Prize

EB2017FEREETREEH

Awarded with “Top 20 international contractor for
construction projects in 2017”

EE[2017 FEEINVAB T IRAB BB 2054 |
Awarded with “Top 10 Most Influential Brands” in
3rd FC Awards
FZEeHE [+ RKATE ) mhE
Awarded with “the 3rd China Quality Prize”

ESE-ETRHEE%E

BERERRE

KRB —EHIKEF  BRFPIRMHE
SmEMNER - R20184F - AEEH
KESTUTHEEIEREE

Awards Sponsor

EIRENL

Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the People’s Republic of
China and China Construction Industry
Association

S EYNEEEHES =y IS =f e
PEREXRGS

China National Association for
Construction Metal Structure
TERESBABRS

Shenyang municipal people’s
government

&S ARBA

China International Contractors
Association

REINEB TIRES

China National Association for
Construction Metal Structure
TERESBABRS

China Administration of Quality
Supervision

BREmER
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ESG content index ESG Z 5|
Aspect KPI Description
Em BE g

A. Environmental

A RE
A1 Emission Al General Disclosure
A1 B —MRIKER
Al Types of emissions and respective emissions data
PEr i 28 M AR R BE R
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where appropriate,
intensity
RERBAFERER(NER)EE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate,
intensity
FEABREREZEYEEN (WER)TE
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and where
appropriate, intensity
FEABREREZMEENRTE
A1.5 Measure to mitigate emissions and results achieved
o URE PR E B0 15 b S PRTS BCR
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
R IR R ENBEEZMN A  RIEEEENTEE
PGIREIPES
A2 Use of Resources A2 General Disclosure
A2 ERERA —MRIXER
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total

and intensity

ERAEDNEREREEEREREREE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
REXERTE
A2.3 Energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved
et B TR (2 A e at & M P1S BCR
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water,

water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
FIUSKEGE FRZKR LRI EAIERE - AR AR
B ISGEEHES

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products
X mATABREMENEE R(NER)BEESBUEE

Remarks

B

A.A1
Table 4

&4
Table 4

RI%4
Not Applicable

AAA
A.3, Table 6

A3, k%6
A.2, Table 5
=185

A.3, Table 6

A3, RI%6

A

A.1, Table 3
A1, RT3
A.1, Table 3
A1, &3
A1

A.1, Table 3

A1, K& 3

A3



ESG content index (continued)

Aspect
[EmE

A3 The Environment

and Natural
Resources

A3 RERRRER

B. Social
B.i&
Employment and

Labour Practices

EERS TER|
B1 Employment
B1 {Ef&

B2 Health and Safety

B2 REHEZE

B3 Development
and Training
B3 & & K&

B4 Labour Standards

B4 55 T#R|

KPI
BE

A3

A3.1

B1

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

B3

B3.1

B3.2

AP BERARAT ZF— 4FEHR

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE - HERERRSE

ESGZ5|(#&)

Description
Haat

General Disclosure

— MR EE

Significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them
MR EBHRERARAERNEATE R HRRE
BEBEZENTY

General Disclosure

—MRIKER

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region

IR - EERE - FhoER KRS e ES a2

General Disclosure

—MRIKER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

BT EREMmETAIAB R E

Lost days due to work injury

HIGEARTERE

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored

R PTER AN BB R ER 22 245 7 - DA RBRARR T I B
BAE

General Disclosure

—MRIKEE

Percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category

RUERREERESNXIMEER DT

Average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category

IR REERRE S - BREE TRE I TR
General Disclosure

—MRIRE

Remarks

B
A

A1, Table 3A.2,
Table 5

A1, ®I& 3A2,
=I5

B.6 Table 7

B.6 R1&7

B.1
B.4, Table 7
B.4 &I&7
B.4, Table 7
B.4 &kI&7
B.4

B.2
B.6, Table 7

B.6 &I&7
B.6, Table 7

B.6 RI&7
B.3, B.4
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE - B8 RERRSE

ESG content index (continued) ESG#3|(#&)
Aspect KPI Description
EBE B it

B4.1 Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and

forced labour
iR ET S B FI B e AB R T Kok §l% T

B4.2 Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered
Rl A 3R 2 AR B IR B R 2 T N 58 /1l 85 TA5 0 BT ERER
ks A
Operating Practices
B5 Supply Chain B5 General Disclosure
Management —fRIETE
B5 {it fE S =1 B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
iR 8 R A
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored
A R AEEEAED - MERTERBEN & HIE
FEE - AREBEBOINNITRERS A
B6 Product B6 General Disclosure
Responsibility —fRIETE
B6 ERE1{F B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons
EENEEXRERBE T REL L EERIEH AR UK
Aoth

B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints
received and how they are dealt with
BB Em MRS RFEE AREETTE

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights
ot B o X ARPS AR EE R A RO 1E 1D

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures
LS S E @2 R ZE m g fr

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,

how they are implemented and monitored
RMUE B E ERMRE RALBBER - ARBEHITRER
A

Remarks
Zx

B.1

B.1

C

C.2, Table 8
C.2. k18
CC.2

C.A

C.A

C.A

C.3

C.A

C1



AP RAT —B— A

o EL Environmental, Social and Governance
n 5 il

R HEREBRE

ESG content index (continued) ESG&3|(#&)
Aspect KPI Description
[EmE B i
B7 Anti-corruption B7 General Disclosure
B7 RES —MRBEE
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases
RERANEEITASEEEREWEEFENETHA
KB E MFRER

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

fst e ra it M B IIE R - A RAERETT M EERTTA

B8 Community B8 General Disclosure
Investment —RH =
B8 HtE&=1F B8.1 Focus areas of contribution
EIERERE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area

EEIREABAER

B g

L o
CSREAS 5 o AiE

Remarks

B

B.5, B.6

B.5 B.6

B.5, B.6

Table 9

=I%9
Table 9

=1%9
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

KPMIG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuanda
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 114 to 287, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

SRR S GCEEAE )

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

RRETER

FARETFREREESNERALE - R
REAYPEHPBHRRNBARREEN
B REFASEESETREAHY
BHRALBAEBRBETREN - BFT
SYREERREHEBNER -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recognition of construction contract revenue
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

in Note 2(t)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group is primarily engaged in the
design, production and installation of
curtain wall systems for commercial
buildings and high-end residential
buildings. The Group normally enters
into construction contracts with main
contractors or real estate developers.

The Group recognises construction
contract revenue progressively
overtime using input method based
on the proportion of total contract
costs incurred at the end of reporting
period compared to the estimated total
budgeted contract costs to complete
the contract when control of the good or
service is transferred to the customer.

The measurement of the revenue
therefore relies on estimations of total
budgeted contract costs. Changes to
estimated total budgeted contract costs
could give rise to material variances in
the amount of revenue recognised.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our procedures to assess the recognition
of construction contract revenue included
the following:

e assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the budgeting
process for construction contracts;

e scrutinising the key clauses of
construction contracts on a sample
basis, and assessing whether these
key clauses had been appropriately
reflected in the estimation of total
budgeted contract costs applied in
revenue recognition;

* challenging the Group’s estimates
of budgeted costs to complete
the contract on a sample basis by
considering the Group’s historical
records of gross profit margins for
similar contracts;

* assessing whether costs incurred
were accounted for in the
appropriate period and comparing
costs incurred during the current
period to purchase invoices
and other relevant underlying
documentation on a sample basis;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
o WE R S CIESEC )

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recognition of construction contract revenue (continued)
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies
in Note 2(t)(i).

How the matter was addressed in our

The Key Audit Matter audit

We identified the recognition of e performing a re-calculation of
construction contract revenue as a revenue recognised for individual
key audit matter because there is a contracts based on the estimated

high degree of risk and associated
management judgement in estimating
total budgeted contract costs and the
amount of revenue to be recognised by
the Group.

total budgeted contract costs,
the costs incurred to date and the
agreed contract price;

e performing site visits for the selected
major contracts in progress,
physically observing the stage of
completion of the contract and
discussing the status of the contract
with the site supervisor; and

e assessing the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements
with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHAIHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Loss allowance for contract assets and trade receivables
Refer to Notes 16, 17 and 29(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies in Note 2(j)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s contract assets and trade
receivables arise from the Group’s
construction contract business. As at
31 December 2018, the aggregate
amount of contract assets and trade
receivables totalled RMB5,636.5
million.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 9
on 1 January 2018 and recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as
an adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2018.

The Group measures loss allowances
on contract assets and trade
receivables at amounts equal to lifetime
expected credit losses (the “ECL”)
using a provision matrix which involved
significant management judgement
in estimating loss rate and adjusting
factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

We identified the loss allowance for
contract assets and trade receivables
as a key audit matter because of
the significant balances at the end
of the reporting period and because
the recognition of ECL is inherently
subjective and requires the exercise of
significant management judgement.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our procedures to assess the loss
allowance for contract assets and trade
receivables included the following:

* assessing the design and
implementation of key internal
controls over the credit control and
estimation of the ECL;

e assessing the reasonableness of the
ECL by examining the information
used by management to form such
estimates, including testing the
accuracy of the historical loss rates
and historical transition rates, and
evaluating whether the historical loss
rates and historical transition rates
are appropriately applied in the ECL
model;

* assessing whether items in the
ageing report were categorised
appropriately for contract assets and
trade receivables by comparing a
sample of individual items with the
underlying documentation; and

e assessing the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements
with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B % BE R ()

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

SRR S GCEEAE )

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
o WE R S CIESEC )

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B A% B R (0

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is YU Wai Sum.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”))  For the year ended 31 December 2018
(AARB(TARE ) REf) #HZE2018F12H31HLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Expected credit losses of
financial and contract assets

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests
Profit for the year

Earnings per share
(RMB cents)

— Basic and diluted

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative

L'ON

HERAR

5

HA A
HEEM
TR
TRMEERAREEZ
TBHEREX
e
AR
BRI RE
PSR

FRFIHE

BT A P
NS
FEIEI RS

FRFIHE

BREFN
(AR¥2)

—EA RS

information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 123 to 287 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note

27(0).

Note
HizF

2(c)(i)

6(a)

6
7

11

y=
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
(Note)
(H1zE)
4,615,704 5,688,650
(3,714,701) (4,439,731)
901,003 1,248,919
172,741 108,949
91,112) (95,217)
(565,949) (971,578)
(193,754) =
222,929 291,073
(68,767) (232,801)
154,162 58,272
(65,991) 27,457
88,171 85,729
79,119 60,652
9,052 25,077
88,171 85,729
1.27 0.98

Hfat - AREER 201841 B 1 B &)X e RBR BT 5
R F AR R BRI A RS9
55 o RIRFTRIZRAE 5L - LRERT
FE5 - BEAFIERE2ME20) °

F£ 128 BE 5287 B 2 MIsE At S0k
2 — 25 o FERASRA BIRR R FEAE F A F)E

Z RS FHBERMIEE 27 (D) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EffEEREMZEKER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2018
(UARBAER) HZE2018F12A31ALFE

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®T AREFIT
(Note)
(H1zE)
Profit for the year FERFE 88,171 85,729
Other comprehensive income FREMEEWE
for the year (after tax and (BRBEREH2E
reclassification adjustments): FAEE) 10
ltems that may be reclassified Higr&EhoiaE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmMIEE
— Exchange differences on —EARRNE R
translation of financial ETHEAR
statements of the Company SRR AE
and certain subsidiaries B HRE K =R
into presentation currency (17,017) 94,903
— Cash flow hedge: —REMEEH
net movement in the P REEE)FRE
hedging reserve (1,221) 9,981
Other comprehensive income ERHEMEEKE
for the year (18,238) 104,884
Total comprehensive income FRAEENSHATE
for the year 69,933 190,613
Attributable to: U AL HE(h -
Equity shareholders of the Company "N &R 58,345 183,615
Non-controlling interests JEFEAS RS 11,588 6,998
Total comprehensive income FREEWKZEEE
for the year 69,933 190,613

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January Hfat - AREER 201841 A1 B &K FE R BFR e 15

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative REAERE 1555 MBI IS RE &R E 9
information is not restated. See Note 2(c). 5% o MIBFTERRBE L - LRERT

TE7 - BRFITHE2HMEE2(C) °

287 B2 M BRIt FM B MK

&
P \U]H

The notes on pages 123 to 287 form part of these financial

N #
Evl:t

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2018
(AARBRER) R2018F12A31H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Lease prepayments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories and other contract costs

Contract assets

Gross amount due from customers
for contract work

Trade and bills receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Cash on hand and in bank

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Contract liabilities

Gross amount due to customers
for contract work

Receipts in advance

Accrued expenses and
other payables

FRBEE

BENES
EXETIREE

REBEE

FEREME R
BREE
EKREFAR
TRERAER

B 7 MG & MR
wE - BNRK

H At FE YR
FERE MIRTTIFK
DERHEREEE

RBAE

B S REMNRRENZE
ERARE
EREEER
TEREE

FBUs FRIE

FEET BT R At FE AR

Bank loans RITER

Income tax payable FES SR

Provision for warranties RIS
Net current assets REEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities #EEERATERE

The notes on pages 123 to 287 form part of these financial
statements.

2018 2017

2018 & 2017 4

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE ARET T ARETIT
(Note)

(H1zE)

12 427,829 617,302
13 368,358 600,490
25(c) 558,844 454,312
1,355,031 1,672,104

15 407,125 277,198
16 2,831,703 =
16 - 4,027,183
17 2,838,648 3,035,194
18 789,864 663,842
19(a) 1,702,751 1,805,591
20 136,241 =
8,706,332 9,809,008

21 2,998,632 3,314,858
16 881,998 =
16 = 891,455
- 16,282

22 592,280 591,806
23(a) 2,287,877 2,222,000
25(a) 224,084 211,528
26 63,365 52,277
7,048,236 7,300,206

1,658,096 2,508,802

3,013,127 4,180,906

F123 B EF 287 B i A EMERE
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F=
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
A B =
S PF B AR R 3R ()
(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2018
(AARMARERN) R20185F12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®T AREFIT
(Note)
(H1zE)
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Bank loans RITER 23(b) 61,769 721,551
Deferred tax liabilities BREHIEBE 25(c) 2,858 3,971
Provision for warranties RIS B 26 240,373 257,118
305,000 982,640
NET ASSETS BEE 2,708,127 3,198,266
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E 27
Share capital B&ZR 519,723 519,723
Reserves G 2,188,404 2,817,332
Total equity attributable to equity 74~ TR ERE(L AL
shareholders of the Company 2,708,127 3,337,055
Non-controlling interests FEFERR R - (138,789)
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,708,127 3,198,266

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 B EE2N201943 A 29 H b R IRAE T -
March 2019.

Kang Baohua Wang Hao
EEE EE
Director (Chairman) Director
EE(FE) o
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January Kiat - AREER2018F1 A1 H & X &R BB 1%
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative REAERZE 155 R BRI 5 R 5 2RI 9
information is not restated. See Note 2(c). 5% o IRIBAMEEMBIE T - LRERT

TE5| - BREFIEELHMEE20) °

The notes on pages 123 to 287 form part of these financial
statements.

E£%287 A Z MR FMEHRE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ," 2
SOERBER M

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2018
(AARBAER) BE2018F12A31BILFE

Attributable to equty shareholders of the Company

RRARERL

Shares

held

under

share PRC Non-
Shae Shae  awad Oher sttty Exchange  Hedging  Retained controling Tota
coptdl  premium  scheme  reseve  resees  resene  resene  profs Told  interests  equity

ERI

LORE PEEE Fik

B ROEE HERG  EbER B ENBR WMRR REME &t BE 48R
RVMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOO0 RMBOO0 RMBOO0  RMBUOO0 RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00
NRETT ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR

Note27 ~ (Note27 ~ (Note27  (Note27  (Note27  (Note27
Nole2) 0 @6 O ) @ O
Wy Wiz Wz Oy Ko (Wi
2/ /A /A /N /N /A

peifte

=

=

Balance at 1 January 2017 ROTEIR1RZER 51978 574047 (2100 189698 368869 (110964  (B760) 1621087 3153440  (145787) 3,007,663
Changes in equity for 2017: WTE2REEE:

Proft for the year Eil - - - - - - - 60g2 6062 %0 8579
Oer compehensive come LR e : - - - S % 9% - 1D (18079 104884
Total comprefensive income 2ENHLE = = = - - 112982 991 60652 183615 6998 190613
Appropriaton to reserves PINE - - - - ux - - ) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2017 RO1TE12A 3B
(Note) BB 519728 574047 PI0 189698 336 2008 1220 1657352 3397055 (18789 3198266

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January Kiat - AREER20185 1 A1 B &KX E AR5

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative REAERF 155 KBRS REERFE
information is not restated. See Note 2(c). 5% o IRIBFTEENMAE L - LREBD

TE7 - BRFEH2HME2(0) °

The notes on pages 123 to 287 form part of these financial F123 5 £ % 287 B 2 W AL SRR
statements. L85 o
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onsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
B RS ER @

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2018
(UARBAER) BE2018F12A31BILFE

n % of

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KAARRES
Shares
held
under
share
award PRC Non-
scheme statutory controlling
Share  Share  RERH  Other reseves Exchange  Hedging Retained interests Total

capital  premium  REiE  reseve FEEE  resene  reseve  profts  Totdl  FHER  equity

Bx  BHRE HERR  AfERE fiff EXBE MR REHR it B s

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETn ARETn ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
(Note27 ~ (Note27 ~ (Note27  (Note27  (Note27  (Note27

(Note2ric) () (@) @) i) ) (i)

G777/ 7/ 7/ 7/

(kene) @) @ G ) e )

Balance at ROTE12831 A
31 December 2017 (Note) W h) 519,723 574,047 (2100 189,698 393,206 2018 1221 1657352 3337,085 (138,780 3,198,266
Impact on inital applcation of mEEERERSE 0
IFRS 15 (Note 261 EHE5RHEE

W26 - - - - - - - [8AT) @6 Q1) (924
Impact on il applcation of MrERERYRHE
IFRS 9 (Note 26)1) EZoSmTE

Wiaen) - - - - - - - (45684) (4S6844) (3080  (4608%0)
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 201851 A 18

pa s 5 519723 514047 (2100 189,698 393,206 2018 1,220 1103991 27836094  (145,500) 2,636,194
Changes in equity for 2018: neEzEERE:
Proft for the year ERiE - - - - - - - 9419 79,19 9052  881M
Other comprehensive income el e - - - - - (19589 (1221) - T 25%  (18.2%8)
Toal compehensie core 3 et - - - - -9y (2 MY M 158 6993
Acaisttion of non-controling S
Interests (Note 14) () - - - (133919 - - - - (133912 133912 -
Aopropriation o reserves DizE - - - - %% - - (269) - - -

- - - (19891 2695 - - (695 (13391 133912 -

Balance at 31 December 2018 RNWBERANAZER 519728 514047 (210) 55786 420131 (17,53

1,166,185 2,708,127 - 08127

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January Hfat - AREBR2018F1 A1 H &K FE R EER 875

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative MR E 155 KBRS REERF 9
information is not restated. See Note 2(c). 5% o MIBATRIBNBES X - LERERT

FTE - BAFIEFEZ2 R 2() °

The notes on pages 123 to 287 form part of these financial £
statements. 7 —=R4

87 B2 M Rt FH 5K

N
W
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2018
(AAREBAEN) BZE20185F 12831 ALLFE

Note
HizF
Operating activities ReETE
Profit before taxation GIRANE
Adjustments for: HEIEE
Depreciation and amortisation e N 6(c)
Interest income FEMA 6(a)
Interest expenses and other MBS MEM
borrowing costs BERA 6(a)
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEK&
plant and equipment, land use A - b AR
rights and assets classified as RS ERFELE
held for sale BEWEFE 5
Changes in working capital: EEESED
Decrease in inventories and FEREMERKA
other contract costs Ve
Decrease in contract assets/gross ARIEE/
amount due from customers for EWEFERIER
contract work HAER D
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 W R R
bills receivables (3gm), md
Increase in deposits, prepayments e ERRK
and other receivables A YR IE AN
Decrease in trade and bills payables & 5 &2k & FE
Y
Decrease in contract liabilities/gross ~ &RIAE FEREE
amount due to customers for AR IR 4E%E
contract work and receipts NSEL G OEY
in advance
Decrease in accrued expenses and FEstF S A
other payables FES TR
(Decrease)/increase in provision RMEBHE CRd) /1 hn
for warranties
The notes on pages 123 to 287 form part of these financial F£1238 &

statements. Z—E5

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
(Note)

(Hiat)

154,162 58,272
52,471 59,404
(4,797) (4,749)
173,027 169,804
(147,893) (98,383)
25,221 80,740
758,051 970,959
(172,795) 78,846
(113,450) (10,442)
(341,890) (664,542)
(89,538) (401,367)
(199,418) (160,392)
(4,248) 35,225

287 B 2 iz Bt E8 sk
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
BHRERER @

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2018
(UARBAER) BE2018F12A31BILFE

2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 &
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Htaz ARET T ARET T
(Note)
(K17%)
Cash generated from operations K& i8R E 88,903 113,375
Income tax paid BERATEE 25(a) (12,675) (27,7693)
Income tax refund Fr{S iR 5K 25(a) 21,971 -
Net cash generated from operating K& EE TSRS TR
activities 98,199 85,612
Investing activities REEE
Payments for purchase of property, — EEEW% - B=E M RE
plant and equipment and land LA Ko 4 b5 FRRE (P X
use rights (10,547) (2,694)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  ME K&K
plant and equipment and land VAR - Hb s FR#E 2
use rights FriSskIE 118,302 102,474
Proceeds from disposal of assets HESEARELE
classifieds as held for sale BEFTSKIA 100,000 -
Interest received AL ERIRSN 4,797 6,249
Payments for time deposits with ZERBB=TEH
a maturity of over three months TEHFERN R - (51,559
Net cash generated from investing RE&EEFFE
activities REFE 212,552 54,470

The notes on pages 123 to 287 form part of these financial E1283 B EFE 287 BT RILFUERE
statements. Z—E7 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
EHEERER @
(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2018
(AARBEBEN) HZE2018F12A31 BILFE
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HizF AR®T T ARET T
(Note)
(K1)
Financing activities BMEEF
Proceeds from new bank and other FTIERIT R EME R
loans PRiS5IA 19(b) 2,180,718 3,605,551
Repayment of bank loans EEBITENK 19(b) (2,565,697) (4,222,000)
Net decrease in advances IR R Bl S 42 AR R 2
received from the Controlling STEPEHIA R
Shareholder of the Company and A FER
the companies under his control 19(b) - (219)
Payments for time deposits to secure X E HITF ik 1EA
the bank loan RITE AR (173,000) -
Borrowing costs paid ERHEEKA 19(b) (168,344) (170,970)
Net cash used in RETE AR T
financing activities (726,323) (787,638)
Net decrease in cash and cash REeERRLEEY
equivalents R FREE (415,572) (647,556)
Cash and cash equivalents at R1A1HHRER
1 January REZEEY 19(a) 1,708,772 2,362,694
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEETE RSB RE
changes 6,210 (6,366)
Cash and cash equivalents at W12 831 HHNES
31 December RBSZEEY 19(a) 1,299,410 1,708,772

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January Kiat - AEER2018F1 A1 B &K FE A BB 75

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative AR 1557 R BB 75 w5 2ERIZE 9
information is not restated. See Note 2(c). 5% o IRIBAMERMBE A - LREBT

TE - ARFITELHMEE2() °

The notes on pages 123 to 287 form part of these financial F123 B £ %287 B 2 W AL ET B #REK
statements. Z—EB7 e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 February 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 17 May 2011. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). The
principal activities of the Group are the design, procurement,
production, sale and installation of curtain wall systems.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and related Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”). These financial statements also comply with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RBHEEBEIN - UARKRER)
RAER

BAPEZBRAERAR(ARFDR
20102 H26 AR EH S B S A A
SEHE22F (1961 FE=50AM - &&4R
ARIE) ERERS MK LA
MEER AT o AREIRKD I 2011 F
SA1TBEBBHAERSMBR AR
(TBERFT)) 71« NARIMA GFEF TS
HERBEARBRENB AR (FHE
[REEDHER - NREBEMEEH
AR KB £E - HERTE
HERRRG -

EXg

=113

BUR

@ EHREHRA

It E B mE HIREFT A #E A
) 2] % B 75 i 45 2 B (T B B B
BmEEL])  EEGHBARE
EEE e ENREEe ([EER
S ENBREE ) BHHFAE
i A E B B BR B s s AR B -
B BR & 5T 2E BN ( B BR & 5+ 28
Al )RR EMRR - 1tF
MR IGE BB R THERA
BEAERBIMES LR
AT EmRAD e EARER
X o REBEFRMNERG K
KRR o

BERetEl e BhE
T 5] R ASAE 7T B B B B 75
SR - WEEAGRAEE
E R AT HAM BN A S AT 1R
FERM e ERERAZEEAE
= 5 8 9 B R B 75 s o5 2 Al B
SIMERI RBESFEHEANE
A2 BOREEHE RERILE
Wk - B#EER ST RH
FE2(c) °
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B 765 3 2R B & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BEHEHIN

2

PARE REA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments which are stated at their
fair values (see Note 2(g)).

The Company has its functional currency in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”). As majority of the Group’s operation are
conducted by the subsidiaries of the Group in mainland
China, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2

EXEBEE)
(b) MBEImRARBEELE

RIS MR AR E AR A
BEEE HETEASRT AR
HAREETIRR(RKEE26e) °

ARBNEEERET(E
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P N £R B A B 7 4 B R A B
17 BAHBMBHRETIAAR
BTARKE] 27 -

BT R Ty B B R B s S 5
Al—BRR HATEEER
HEERREAREE A
& WA KRR X B RS R
HE - EET KRR - W FEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and
amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

° IFRS 9, Financial instruments
° IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
o IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and

advance consideration

Except for IFRS 9 and IFRS 15, none of the other
developments has had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented in these
financial statements. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

The Group has been impacted by IFRS 9 in relation to
measurement of credit losses, and impacted by IFRS
15 in relation to satisfaction of performance obligations,
contract modifications, and presentation of contract
assets and contract liabilities. Details of the changes in
accounting policies are discussed in Note 2(c)(i) for IFRS
9 and Note 2(c)(ii) for IFRS 15.

Under the transition methods chosen, the Group
recognises cumulative effect of the initial application of
IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2018. Comparative
information is not restated. The following table gives
a summary of the opening balance adjustments
recognised for each line item in the consolidated
statement of financial position that has been impacted by
IFRS 9 and/or IFRS 15:

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARKRERL)

2 EXREHBEE)

(@)

BR et ElEEEE RS
HRAKEE e BEE R
AR HT AT B BR B 75 3R 2 A
Ko BIRR B 75 ¥ 5 ZE A RO B AT -
Hoeh DA 8 5 H A SR [ B TS R
Z<ARR -

e [EERBHEHREEDNFEI
R 2F LA

e BB HBHEEAFEIS
% R EEFE RIEKA

e [BRBBHEZREF22
SR INELZS G RFETEHE

BERH SR EEFE R RE
BREHS R e R E 155850 - %
S THAREN G BB
#9092 348 T B SRR AE A Bt
5 95 2% 7R 0 AR B 2 311 S
BEAYE - ARERARS
T3 4 1 P £ 1 14 5K A 2
HATERISRIE -

AEBEEHRBLANFESE
XERTHREEAFIRE
2 YHERTENEE  &F
EakaREERGRAER
251177 ™ X B B 7 S R
F16WFE - BT BRNE
BT EE 2(0)) (BLEIBR B 5 ¥k
HRRE IR T ) M PIEE 2(c)ii)
(BLEIBR B 75 5 22 I 2B 15 52 M
5 ) Emit

RIBFMEERBEE - ANEE
1S B FE B B 1R s 220 58
O 5% N BN B i s 42 RI 55 15 5%
R AR AN 20181 A
1B BRI - Wi
FIILLEER o TREYIBERE
BRSO IR P X B B T R 5 2
RIZE 958 K/ ok B B B 5 R 45 42
BIZE 159 2/ %18 B FERH
BRI AR TR
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P=
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3% 2% B & (0
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEHEMEIN - UARK ABELL)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EAREHBEKE)
()  Changes in accounting policies (continued) © BEIABERNEH(E)
Impact on
initial
application
of IFRS 9 Impact on initial application of IFRS 15
BRERER
HRREE
295MzE ERERERaHREEAE 58NS
Satisfaction Presentation
A3 of of contract At
December Expected  performance Contract assets and 1 January
2017 credit loss obligations  modifications liabilities 2018
17 AHEER 20185

128878 EHERE%X  BOBNER A6y AEEENHZS 1A18
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  AR¥Tn ARt ARETR
Nole2c)  Nole2)  Mole2eli)  Note2())

W22en) — W2zem) (R0 (FE26H)

Deferred tax assets EREEE 454,312 143522 9,070 - - 606,904
Total non-current assets FREEREE 1,672,104 143522 9,070 - - 1,824,696
Inventories and offer confract costs & REMARA 217,198 - 155,148 - - 432,346
Contract assets AREE - - - - 3578,362 3,578,362
(Gross amount due from EhEPARTEZ &S

customers for contract work 4,027,183 (241,900 (121,061) (8,860) (3,578,362) -
Tradle and bils receivables ARG RENER 3,035,194 (362.452) (6,889 - - 2,665,853
Total current assets THEELE 9,809,008 (604,352) 21,198 (85,860) - 9,145,994
Contract iabiies AEAR - - - - 971,53 971,53
Grossamount duetocustomers B REARTIZEEE

for contract work 891,465 - 62,653 332 (964,440) -
Recaipts in advance Bl 16,282 - 814 - (17,096) -
Income tax payable FEfiMEH 211528 - (1,220 (12,929) - 197,379
Total current liabiities THEELE 7,300,208 - 62,247 (12597) - 7,349,856
Net current assets THEETE 2,508,802 (604,352) (35,049) (73,263 - 1,796,138
Total assets less BEERTBEE

current liabilties 4,180,906 (460,830) (25,979 (73,263 - 3,620,834
Net assets EEFE 3,198,266 (460,830) (25,079) (73.269) - 2,638,194
Reserves i 2,817,332 (456,844) (23,254) (73,263 - 2,263,971
Total equity attributable to ADARFELERS

equity shareholders

of the Company 3,337,055 (456,844) (23,254) (73,263) - 2,183,604
Non-controlling interests FERES (138,789) (3,986) (2725) - - (145,500)
Total equity B 3,198,266 (460,830) (25,979 (73,263 - 2,638,194
Further details of these changes are set out in sub- EHEZEEHNE — T EEH

sections (i) and (i) of this note. FAZRBARE (i) K (i) 22 & ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring
financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively
to items that existed at 1 January 2018 in
accordance with the transition requirements. The
Group has recognised the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, comparative
information continues to be reported under IAS 39.

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to IFRS 9 on retained earnings and
reserves and the related tax impact at 1 January
2018.

Retained earnings

Recognition of additional expected credit losses on:
— Financial assets measured at amortised cost
— Contract assets

Related tax

Net decrease in retained earnings at
1 January 2018

Non-controlling interests

Decrease in non-controlling interests at
1 January 2018 due to recognition of
additional expected credit losses (after tax)
on financial assets measured at amortised
cost and contract assets

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B SBEHEBIN - UARK BER)
2 EAREHBER(E)
(© EERNEH(E)

() EERMBEEENE
iR &MIR

B R B 7% i 5 22 RIS 9 5%
B BB & 5T 2RI 39
S oA T A - R KA
B Hp AR NTE
TREE SRABENRE
BEFCREBEANSBIAR

TEHRE °

REEDREBREZESE
20184F1 A1 BFEMIE
B B9 A B R B i i
ERIFEQS - AEEE
BXIERR R 2R
ABR20184% 1 A1 B H 4
A TR - FIL - R
RIEBIRR & 5T 4RI 55 3997
E2MEEER o

TR EE T B B A
R ER|SE 95 Y 2018 £F
1 A1 BMRBEF KiHEE
RSB RBBARSE

RMB’000
ARBTT

REZF
BA TS IBREREINE R EREX

—RE R AT ENEREE (360,506)
—GREE (238,887)
1BRETRIE 142,549
R 2018F 1 B 1 BIRERBF

A (456,844)
FERER

A S ANt 2R 2R
BEREREERREIN

TBHEREX (FiE) 55

R2018%F1A1H

FEE AR R R (3,986)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition approach are set out below:

a. Credit losses

IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model
in IAS 39 with the expected credit loss (the
“ECL”) model. The ECL model requires
an ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset and
therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under
the “incurred loss” accounting model in IAS
39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash on hand and in
bank, trade and bills receivables and
deposits and other receivables);

2

BEXREHEEE)

n W

(€ EFBERHES (#)

() ERMESEEANSE
Wo&mMIR(E)

BESHBRESNEE
R EARBIE T AR
—HHBEIIWT

(Vb

B [ B 75 3R 5 £ R
FORIAEHAEA
BR(BEHERE
KDBEEBAKTH
BR & 5t £ RIS 3955
WIEEEEE]E
B MHIERERX
BEBRFETE
TREERBNE
SRk Fi R
BHERBRNE
BARREEREF
HERIE K2 [EE
R | @t RIVEE
RZBRERF

7 5 55 37 & 78 1
ERBELARIER
ZEUATNIAR ¢

—  IREHEARAE
ENERE
E(BEFH
R RRITHE
R BEHEK
AR ERZEE
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il FE UK
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

a.

Credit losses (continued)

contract assets as defined in IFRS15
(see Note 2(1)).

Derivative financial instruments measured
at fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

For further details on the Group’s accounting
policy for accounting for credit losses, see
Note 2())(i).

Opening balance adjustment

As a result of this change in accounting
policy, the Group has recognised additional
ECLs amounting to RMB604.3 million, which
decreased retained earnings by RMB456.8
million and non-controlling interests by
RMB4.0 million and increased gross
deferred tax assets by RMB143.5 million at
1 January 2018.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - AAREREN)

2 EXREHBEE)
(€ EFBERHES (&)

() ERMEREENE
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a IEHRX(HE)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

"B

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EASHBEE)
()  Changes in accounting policies (continued) ©) EFTBURMES (£&)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

a. Credit losses (continued)

Opening balance adjustment (continued)

The following table reconciles the closing
loss allowance determined in accordance
with IAS 39 as at 31 December 2017 with
the opening loss allowance determined in
accordance with IFRS 9 as at 1 January
2018.

BRMEBEENF
Wo&mMIR(E)

1EH1EX ()
BRI 4R ()
TRIRK2017F 12

A31BREEES
SHER|FE 39 EF

LLoss allowance at 31 December 2017
under IAS 39

Additional credit losses recognised
at 1 January 2018 on:
— Trade and bills receivables
— Contract assets recognised
on adoption of IFRS 15

Loss allowance at 1 January 2018
under IFRS 9

REIRE B EER
20184F 1 A1 BiRIE
B B 75 i 45 2 Al
28 O SR E T BV B VS
BREEITER -
RMB’000
ARBFIT
R 2017412 A 31 R
BIFR =514 R 5 39 SREE
HIES1E R 1,480,051
R 201841 A 1 HERRZESN
EREX
— B S REUGR KR R % 362,452
— BRANBIR B IS TR 5 2R
FASRERNEREE 241,900
20184 1 A 1 ARE R
W TR 223 QSR
BB R 2,084,403
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARKRERL)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EBEAREHBEKE)

() Changes in accounting policies (continued) € EFHBURES (£&)

BRMEBEENF

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) (i)

Credit losses (continued)

Presentation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss

IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
(as amended by IFRS 9) requires the
expected credit losses as determined under
IFRS 9 to be presented as a separated item
on the face of the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses under IAS 39 for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was included in
“Administrative expenses”.

Hedge accounting

The Group has elected to adopt the new
general hedge accounting model in IFRS
9. Depending on the complexity of the
hedge, this new accounting model allows
a more qualitative approach to assessing
hedge effectiveness compared to IAS 39 to
be applied, and the assessment is always
forward-looking. The adoption of IFRS 9 has
not had a significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements in this regard.

i &MIR(E)

a 1EHRX(E)

ReatBaRAN

el

RERTERS 155
2N BHE (KE
PR F R ERIF 9
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PR B 75 R RIS
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B % B 75 3 5 22 Al
ISR HETH —AR YT
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

b.  Hedge accounting (continued)

For an explanation of how the Group applies
hedge accounting, see Note 2(f).

C. Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting
from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been
applied retrospectively, except as described
below:

= Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised
in retained earnings and reserves
as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
the information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under IAS 39
and thus may not be comparable with
the current period.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(i)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

@ Transition (continued)

- If, at the date of initial application,
the assessment of whether there has
been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition would have
involved undue cost or effort, a lifetime
ECL has been recognised for that
financial instrument.

- All hedging relationships designated
under IAS 39 at 31 December 2017
met the criteria for hedge accounting
under IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 and
are therefore regarded as continuing
hedging relationships. Changes to
hedge accounting policies have been
applied prospectively.

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue and some costs from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 replaces IAS
18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and IAS
11, Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARKRERL)
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2

AR RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

IFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative
effect transition method and has recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2018. Therefore, comparative information
has not been restated and continues to be
reported under IAS 11 and IAS 18. As allowed
by IFRS 15, the Group has applied the new
requirements to all the construction contracts
before 1 January 2018.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii)

2

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

The following table summarises the impact of

transition to IFRS 15 on retained earnings and the

related tax impact at 1 January 2018:

Retained earnings
Later revenue and profit recognition

from the construction activities that

are not yet considered as transferred
Later revenue and profit recognition

from unapproved contract modifications
Related tax

Net decrease in retained earnings at
1 January 2018

Non-controlling interests

Decrease in non-controlling interests at
1 January 2018 due to later revenue
and profit recognition from the
construction activities that are not
yet considered as transferred

RERF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARKRERL)

BEREHEE(E)

© EHEEHZD ()

(i) BEFRMBEEENE15
i REAEFSREZBA
(%)

TR 2018 F1 A 1
BB K = BRI B S 2%
BIZE 15 SR ¥R B8 B I R 4
ATIER R E

RMB’000
ARETT

FERTERIK B 5 AR S
MEEIRE) 2 WA KA

(33,096)

EEFERREREHESH

e 2 WA R FHE

HHRATEIA

(86,192)
22,771

7201841 A 1 BIREE & F

W HE

FERER

(96,517)

BN ER IR B MR AR AR
M SEE) 2 1B B K
AHEHN 201851 A1 H
B FE1E AR R 2 R

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes on previous accounting policies are set

out below:
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PARE REA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

a.

Satisfaction of performance obligations

Previously, the Group recognised revenue
arising from construction contracts over time
generally when outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably. Under
IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
Group satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring control of promised goods or
service to the customer. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group shall assess
whether the revenue from the sale of goods
and rendering of services fall into any one
of the following three situations identified
by IFRS 15 in which the Group satisfies
a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time:

- the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance, as the
Group performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or

enhances an asset (for example work
in progress) that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced;

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - AAREREN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EBEXREHBERAE)
(€)  Changes in accounting policies (continued) ) EETEERMES (&)
(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with (i) BEFRMBEEENE15
customers (continued) W RKBEEFSRZEKA
(&)
a.  Satisfaction of performance obligations a. BITEAEML(E)
(continued)
- the Group’s performance does not - EBAXAEEREXD
create an asset with an alternative I % Bl 3E AR
use to the Group and the Group has EEmME S
an enforceable right to payment for REAH—IE
performance completed to date. EE BA%
HRiEes
HARHAFT
5 Il FT HE A
B o
The Group identified that the control of REERER  BIE
the work in progress in the construction BB B & 215
activities, such as uninstalled materials, g RESEEIRE
was not considered as transferred until they Em (Blank 225
are delivered to the construction site of the ) Bl E R
customer under IFRS 15, thus the time to BEHTREGEIR
recognise revenue and profit related to the % 2 BN 8 AR
work in progress should be delayed than that EEE Bt ®
under IAS 11. REZTRMAR

WA B R Y By
e AR B B R & 5t
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

b.

Contracts modifications

Under IAS 11, a variation is included in
contract revenue when it is probable that
the customer will approve the variation and
the amount of revenue can be measured.
Under IFRS 15, contract modifications are
required to be approved to be recognised.
If a change in the scope of the contract has
been approved where the corresponding
price undetermined, the underlying variable
consideration is estimated at either its
expected value or most likely amount and is
only permitted to be included in revenue to
the extent that it is highly probable that the
revenue will not reverse. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group shall update
the estimated transaction price to represent
circumstances at period end.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

C.

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under IFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right
to consideration. If the Group recognises
the related revenue before receiving the
consideration or being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration for the promised
goods and services in the contract, then
the entitlement to consideration is classified
as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract
liability, rather than a payable, is recognised
when a customer pays consideration, or is
contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue. For
a single contract with the customer, either a
net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis
(see Note 2())).

Previously, contract balances relating to
construction contracts in progress were
presented in the statement of financial
position under “Gross amount due from
customers for contract work”, “Gross
amount due to customers for contract work”
or “Receipts in advance” respectively.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EAREHBKE)

()  Changes in accounting policies (continued) ) EETEERMESR (E)

(ii) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with (i) BIEMERSERNE15
customers (continued) M RAEESGRZEKA

(#&)
Disclosure of the estimated impact on the d  BEZE2018F12 A

amounts reported in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the
adoption of IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018.

The following tables summarise the
estimated impact of adoption of IFRS
15 on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, by comparing the amounts reported
under IFRS 15 in these consolidated
financial statements with estimates of the
hypothetical amounts that would have been
recognised under IAS 18 and IAS 11 if those
superseded standards had continued to
apply to 2018 instead of IFRS 15. These
tables show only those line items impacted
by the adoption of IFRS 15:

JIBLEFEHEEA
R20184F1 A1 B
7 2 PR B S R S 2
Bl 25 15 5% if 51) =R Y
SR (AR o

T Z= 48 s B AR B R
B s E2ERE 15
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B %5 R R B = (0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARBAERL)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EAEHBEE)
(€)  Changes in accounting policies (continued) € EEBERMES) (&)
(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with (i) BIEMERSEANE15
customers (continued) i RXAEFRASRAZBA
(#&)
d.  Disclosure of the estimated impact on the d. — FEZE2018%12 A
amounts reported in respect of the year S1EIEFEHER
ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the R2018F 1 A1 B
adoption of IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018. 1 B B B T i o 4R
(continued) B 25 15 5% i 51) R &Y
SREZEFTRE-
(#&)
Difference:
Estimated
Hypothetical impact of
Amounts amounts adoption of
reported in  under IASs 18 IFRS 15
accordance and 11 on 2018

with IFRS 15 EIRRE:HER Z8: RHER
REEMHE F18RRER BERSER
HEEE SR F15%R
F15HER  FUHER 2018
HeHE HBTEE FHEZ
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR¥ETT

(A) (B) (A)-(B)
Line items in the consolidated HZ2018F12731H
statement of profit or loss for year LEEEHERRS
ended 31 December 2018 impacted ~ SHRAEMREGKHRLE
by the adoption of IFRS 15: BRIZE155EMER
Revenue A 4,615,704 4,630,485 (14,781)
Cost of sales HEMA (3,714,701) (3,727,129) 12,428
Gross profit 7 901,003 903,356 (2,353)
Profit from operations REFE 222,929 225,282 (2,353)
Profit before taxation BAIRIE 154,162 156,515 (2,353)
Income tax FiEH (65,991) (67,113) 1,122
Profit for the year FRFE 88,171 89,402 (1,231)
Attributable to: T AL
Equity shareholders of the Company RRERE 79,119 80,174 (1,085)
Non-controling interests SR 9,052 9,228 (176)
Earnings per share (RMB cents) SREF(ARED)
—Basic and diluted ~HAREE 1.21 1.29 (0.02)
Line items in the consolidated HZ2018F12A31H
statement of profit or loss and other It EEAHHEHRR
comprehensive income for year Hit2ERERT
ended 31 December 2018 impacted ~ SIRMEIMEKTE
by the adoption of IFRS 15: ERE15KTEMER
Total comprehensive income forthe A2 EKFEELE
year 60,933 72,583 (2,650)
Attributable to: T ALRES
Equity shareholdlers of the Company KRARE 58,345 60,751 (2,406)

Non-controling interests R R 11,588 11,832 (244)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREAIN - UARK AELL)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

a. Disclosure of the estimated impact on the

amounts reported in respect of the year

ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the
adoption of IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018.

(continued)

Line items in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018 impacted by the
adoption of IFRS 15:

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Inventories and other contract costs

Contract assets

Gross amount due from customers for
contract work

Trade and hills receivables

Total current assets

Contract liabilities

Gross amount due to customers for
contract work

Receipts in advance

Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets

Resenves

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Total equity

BZ2018%12A31R
ILEEAHHBRRRR
ZRMEREHRE

EB|E 155 FEMER .

EEHAAE
FRBEEAE
FEREMARKA
ARAE
hEPARIE LR

BB REURR
RBRELE

AREE
ENEPARLEEE

BlFA

TR ASH
RBRRAR
RBEERE
AEEARDAR
BERE

FfE
FRARREEERAR

REAE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

EXERBEE)
(© EEIBERMER(E)

(i) BEFMBBEBEELENFE15
W REAEFEGRAZEA
(%)

d FEZE2018F 12 A
STHIEFEHER
R20184F1 A1 B
7 B B B 7 i o 4
Bl 25 15 5% if 51) =R Y
CREZEFTE-

(%)
Difference:
Estimated
Hypothetical impact of
Amounts amounts adoption of
reported in  under IASs 18 IFRS 15
accordance and 11 on 2018

withIFRS 15 EIR&:rERl 28 RHEK
REBBEE F18%RER  BEHEEL
REED hp ] Z15%R
%2R ENHET 2018
k] WEESE EHE% |
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEET T ARETT AEETT

(A B) (A-(B)
558,844 560,301 (1,467)
1,355,031 1,356,488 (1,457)
407,125 239,649 167,576
2,831,703 - 2,831,703

= 2,992,100 (2,992,100)
2,838,648 2,838,648

8706332 8,699,153 7,179
881,098 - 881,998

- 660,659 (660,659)

- 88,610 (88,610)
224,084 249,199 (25,115)
7048236 6,940,622 107,614
1,658,096 1,758,531 (100,435)

3,013,127 3,115,019 (101,892)
2,708,127 2,810,019 (101,892)
2,188,404 2,290,296 (101,892)

2,708,127 2,810,019 (101,892)
2,708,127 2,810,019 (101,892)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

a. Disclosure of the estimated impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the
adoption of IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018.
(continued)

Line items in the reconciliation of profit EZ 2018128318
before taxation to cash generated ILEER AR ERLE
from operations for year ended 31 RS HRTHM
December 2018 impacted by the il g s

adoption of IFRS 15: E15RHEMER -
Profit before taxation HAIAE
Decrease in inventories and other contract ~ F& REMA RIFAHD
costs

Decrease in contract assets/gross amount & RAE /EREFAR
due from customers for contract work TRREBHD

Increase in trade and bills receivables SR R ERERE M
Decrease in contract liabilities/gross AREE/ENEF
amount due to customers for contract ARIRZERER
work and recelpts in advance LGN

The significant differences arise as a result
of the changes in accounting policies
described above.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARBAERL)

BEREHBEE)

(© EFIBERMER(E)

pa[ll}

(i) BEFMBEEENE15
i REAEFSRAZBA
(%)

d  BEZE2018F 12 8
STBIEFEHERA
R20184F1 A1 HE
1 B B B T i o 4R
B 25 15 5% i 51) R &Y
SRR -

(&)
Difference:
Estimated
Hypothetical impact of
Amounts amounts adoption of
reported in  under IASs 18 IFRS 15
accordance and 11 on 2018

with IFRS 15 EIRE&:HER Z5: FHEK
REBKEE £18%RER  BHH5EL
HEED eS| £15% R
F5H2R  FUHEET 2018 )
itk HBREEE LHE% 4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETT

(A) (B) (A)-(B)
154,162 156,515 2,359
25221 37,649 (12,428)
758,051 805,311 (47,260)
(172,799) (165,906) (6,889)
(89,539) (158,469) 68,930
BRI REHE
EMBEREZBER L

o -
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2

PARE REA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. WWhen assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those equity interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those equity interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative equity interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant
gain or loss is in accordance with Note 2(f).

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from changes in foreign exchange rates (cash
flow hedges). The hedge accounting policy applied
from 1 January 2018 is similar to that applicable prior
to 1 January 2018. However, under the new hedge
accounting policy, depending on the complexity of the
hedge, the Group applies a more qualitative approach to
assessing hedge effectiveness, and the assessment is
always forward-looking.

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as
a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective
portion of any gain or loss on the derivative financial
instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset such as
inventory, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost of the non-financial
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Hedging (continued)

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss
(such as when a forecast sale occurs).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting (including when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. When hedge
accounting is discontinued, but the hedged forecast
transaction is still expected to occur, the amount that
has been accumulated in the hedging reserve remains
in equity until the transaction occurs and it is recognised
in accordance with the above policy. If the hedged
transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
amount that has been accumulated in the hedging
reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
immediately.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(j)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see Note 2(v)).

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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PARE REAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Plant and buildings 30 years
15 years

5 years

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles and other equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the estimated useful life
of an asset and its residual value are reviewed annually.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research and development activities is

recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U)

L eased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series

of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group

determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use

a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time

in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such

a determination is made based on an evaluation of

the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Payments made on the acquisition of land held
under an operating lease are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(j)(ii). Amortisation is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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ARBRER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)} Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash on hand and in
bank, trade and bills receivables and
deposits and other receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in IFRS 15
(see Note 2())).

Derivative financial instruments measured
at fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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(BRRAEEBEN  AAREAEN)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EAREHBEKE)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) 0] EREXNEERME(Z)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and () eMIARSFAEEREH
contract assets (continued) Rk (&)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EARBHBEE)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () 1ERBEXNEEREE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and () &eMIARSFAEEEH
contract assets (continued) Rk (&)

a.  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 a  H2018%F1A1HE
(continued) FRER ()
Measurement of ECLs (continued) SrEEEEREX

(#&)
ECLs are measured on either of the following TEH (= 1B K i R
bases: FRATEESZ
—  12-month ECLs: these are losses that —  12{@AFEHE
are expected to result from possible Mgk 53R
default events within the 12 months = A EE 121
after the reporting date; and AR geEAE
HEE A S
BHWTEEE
B R
- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that - REFEHXN
are expected to result from all possible EHEAE
default events over the expected lives K IgTEHAE
of the items to which the ECL model B RIERE
applies. I8 B 285
A A A
FrB Al g 49
EHmMERA

BHEER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 BAEHBEE)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () ERBEEAREEREE)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and () &eMIARSRAEEEH
contract assets (continued) Rk (&)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 a  H2018F1H1H#E

(continued) FARER ()
Measurement of ECLs (continued) STEEEEREX

(#&)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and BRWA KA
contract assets are always measured at an BEZEERE—
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on HERERNEERF
these financial assets are estimated using EHNESRERE

a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)} Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)} Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continued)

a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

= failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

= existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to
the Group.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(BrREEAN - AR RER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continued)

a.

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account.

4
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2 EARESHBEE)
() ERERREEREGE)

(i) &MIARSEAZEEH
Bk (E)

a  HB20184%141H#E
FHEIB R ()

EER®
(%)

2 AR £ Tt

BUAR S/ T AR
HE - FERBRAKX
8 AR TR
1IE|J ok HREE
T WTEB
RHREEELT
SR T ARZEHER
Mz BERBR R (1
ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ&Zf’f
BRaTAR) AT AE o

BHRERBERRE
REAHETERN
AFEUARBRERT
BB HERIAR
B {5 & [ B &

BEHERBANE
f] & B39 N 18 5 B
A% R (B W 25 3K S
B ARBAA
SR T AERRE
Was sk B8 - B
BEREERE R
FZEREEELA



&l

KPP R AT % R

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)} Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continued)

a.

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(t)(v) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EARBHBEE)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () 1ERBEXNEEREE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and () &eMIARSFAEEEH
contract assets (continued) Rk (&)
a.  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 a  H2018%F1A1HE
(continued) FRER ()
Basis of calculation of interest income 5T E F B U A B
(continued) £ (&)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit- CREELREE
impaired includes the following observable AR B B IR B IA
events: TRAIEEREM -
- significant financial difficulties of the - BEBABEKX
debtor; B TSI 2
—  abreach of contract, such as a default —  EX - flunH
or delinquency in interest or principal RS GEB AT
payments; FMEHAES :
- it becoming probable that the borrower - BEBATR
will enter into bankruptcy or other ESuEITHAM
financial reorganisation; or BIT5E4R sk
- significant changes in the technological, — BE - -mH-
market, economic or legal environment R B R R IR
that have an adverse effect on the %I EB
debtor. A & B 7

Z L PN
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
ot 75 3 = B = (40

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

4

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EARBHBEE)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () 1ERBEXNREEREE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and () &eMIARSRAEEEH
contract assets (continued) Rk (&)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

a  H2018%F1H1H#E
FAEIE R ()

FHEMBWANE

(continued) £ (&)
Write-off policy EHBUR
The gross carrying amount of a financial EABRER LT

asset or contract asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there

YW ElsKIE - NE
AlgisE (Ao %2

is no realistic prospect of recovery. This ) B EKA R
is generally the case when the Group BEEMNRKREE-
determines that the debtor does not have ZERBEEHRE
assets or sources of income that could REEREBRBA
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the REBEENXAEE
amounts subject to the write-off. B IR B2 H I

A PRJR R {5 12 FE
Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was B& 1% W [81 5E BT 9 45
previously written off are recognised as a 2 & E AU A
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the EEZRNER AR
period in which the recovery occurs. {E#T -
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(BBHEBEN - UARKREN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EARBHBE(E)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () 1ERBEXNEEREE)
() Credit losses from financial instruments and (i) E&MIARASFRBEEEH
contract assets (continued) Rk (&)
b.  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 b.  R20184F 1.4 1HFI
BFRIEE
Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” 7K2018%F 1 H1H
model was used to measure impairment Al [EEXEEE]
losses on financial assets not classified as HARARGTERD
at FVPL (e.g. trade and bills receivables BREARBEG
and deposits and other receivables). Under ABENEREE
the “incurred loss” model, an impairment (I8 S W % E
loss was recognised only when there was WEERIEZS RE
objective evidence of impairment. Objective fto FE WK ) 2 1B &
evidence of impairment included: B RIEBEELES
BB - REEE
EREBREDRE
FERER - WA
EEFBERE
- significant financial difficulties of the - [EBALRE
debtor; RIS REE
-~ abreach of contract, such as a default - ERE&R: A
or delinquency in payments; L0HE /R 3% 380 HA
B
-~ it becoming probable that the debtor - BB AR
will enter bankruptcy or other financial EskiETEAM
reorganisation; and BIigE &
- significant changes in the market, - TG B
economic or legal environment that ERIRIRHIR
have an adverse effect on the debtor. £ NG
B AR

MEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)} Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continued)

b.  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(continued)

If any such evidence existed, any impairment
loss was determined and recognised as
follows:

- For receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss was
measured as the difference between
the receivable’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
receivable’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of
these receivables), where the effect
of discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively
where these receivables shared similar
risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for receivables
which were assessed for impairment
collectively were based on historical
loss experience for receivables with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EARBHBEE)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () 1ERBEXNEEREE)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continued)

b.  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

) S&MIARAGAREER
E ENE )

b.  R2018%F 1.4 1HEi

(continued) BAMEE ()

If in a subsequent period the amount (EEREYSE=E)
of an impairment loss decreased RN B H
and the decrease could be linked R A - MR
objectively to an event occurring after 8 AT £ e 5R Rk
the impairment loss was recognised, BEEEEEAE
the impairment loss was reversed 7 = 1 & B B
through profit or loss. A reversal of an Z . BIRES
impairment loss was only recognised B EEEs
to the extent that it did not result T LABE[O] o
in the receivable’s carrying amount [BR EEEE
exceeding that which would have been AIETNSERN
determined had no impairment loss JE W R /Y BR T
been recognised in prior years. BEfRLETR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)} Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continued)

b.  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(continued)

When the recovery of a trade debtor
or other financial assets carried at
amortised cost was considered
doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded
using an allowance account. When
the Group was satisfied that recovery
was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against
the gross carrying amount of those
assets directly. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BEHEHIN

2

PARE REA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified

as being held under an operating lease; and

investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measureable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

2

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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IAR®RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)} Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see Notes 2(j)(i) and 2(j)(ii)).

(k) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Inventories record the cost of raw materials waiting
to be assigned to specific construction contracts.
The cost of inventories includes design costs,
costs of purchase, direct labour, other direct costs
and production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
cost of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(i)

Inventories (continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the year the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the year in which the reversal
oCcCcurs.

When inventories are assigned to specific
construction contracts, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the year in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the year the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the year in which the reversal
occurs.

2

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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PARE REA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or
the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer which
are not capitalised as inventory (see Note 2(k(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained e.g.
an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will
be recognised in a future reporting period and the
costs are expected to be recovered. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used
to provide goods or services in the future; and
are expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs
that are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only because
the Group entered into the contract (for example,
payments to sub-contractors). Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(i) Other contract costs (continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (i) any costs that relate directly
to providing those goods or services that have not
yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue to which
the asset relates is recognised. The accounting
policy for revenue recognition is set out in Note 2(t).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(t)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 2(j)()) and are reclassified to receivables when
the right to the consideration has become unconditional
(see Note 2(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see Note 2(t)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see Note 2(m)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

In the comparative period, contract balances were
recorded for construction contracts at the net amount
of costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings. These net balances were
presented as the “Gross amount due from customers
for contract work” (as an asset) or the “Gross amount
due to customers for contract work” (as a liability), as
applicable, on a contract-by-contract basis. Progress
billings not yet paid by the customer were included
under “Trade and bills receivables”. Amounts received
before the related work was performed were presented
as “Receipt in advance”. These balances have been
reclassified on 1 January 2018 as shown in Note 16 (see
Note 2(c)(ii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see Note 2(l)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses
(see Note 2())(i))-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out
in Note 2(j)(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note
2(v)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Employee benefits

(i)

(1)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are charged to profit or loss
when incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

Share-based payments

The shares awarded under the share award
scheme are acquired from open market. The
net consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as
“Shares held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.

For shares granted under the share award
scheme, the fair value of shares granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares on grant date plus any
directly attributable incremental costs. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the shares,
the total fair value of the shares is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the shares will vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of shares
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of shares that vest with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the
awardees upon vesting, the related weighted
average acquisition cost of the awarded shares
vested are credited to “Shares held under share
award scheme”, and the grant date fair value of
the awarded shares vested are debited to the
capital reserve. The difference between the related
weighted average acquisition cost and the grant
date fair value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.
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PARE REA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
g EE R AC

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.
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PARE REA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(M

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Income tax (continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

@

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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PARE REA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has
a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received
from the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts
are measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services or
the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. The Group takes advantage of
the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing
is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:
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PARE REA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the
contract relates to work on curtain wall under the
control of the customer and therefore the Group’s
construction activities create or enhance an asset
under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be reasonably measured, revenue from the
contract is recognised progressively over time
using the cost-to-cost method, i.e. based on the
proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to
the estimated total contract costs.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual
bonuses for early completion or suffering
contractual penalties for late completion are taken
into account in making these estimates, such that
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are
expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount
of the consideration under the contract, then a
provision is recognised in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 2(s)(ii).

Revenue for construction contracts was
recognised on a similar basis in the comparative
period under IAS 11, except for those changes in
accounting policies discussed in Note 2(c(ii).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()  Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Service income

Service income from the rendering of services
is recognised when the related services are
rendered.

Sale of raw materials

Sale of raw materials is recognised when control
over the raw materials is delivered to the location
designated by the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue from
sale of raw materials excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
sales discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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PARE REA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(v) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(vij Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or completed.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EARBHBEE)
(w) Related parties (w)  FEEs
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s @ fHELATAL BIEZAL
family, is related to the Group if that person: iz AL AR EARNEE
B e -
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () ¥l gk R4 ) A
£H
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HEAEBBEEKRY
25k
(i) is a member of the key management (i) AAEBEKAE
personnel of the Group or the Group’s FRAFMNEEZEER
parent. B8 -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(i)

(v

(viil

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 24 and 29 contain information about the assumptions

and the risk factors relating to fair value of shares granted

under share award scheme and financial instruments. Other

key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@)

Revenue recognition

As explained in accounting policy Note 2(t), revenue
from construction contracts is recognised over time.
Such revenue and profit recognition on uncompleted
projects is dependent on estimating the total budgeted
contract costs of the contract, as well as the contract
costs incurred to date. The actual outcomes in the terms
of total cost may be higher or lower than estimated at
the end of the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in the future years as an
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Impairment of receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets are reviewed
by management at the end of each reporting period to
determine the expected credit losses. The management
bases the estimates on the historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and assessments of both current and forecast
general economic conditions. Credit risk assessments
focus on the customers’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability and willingness
to pay, taking into account the financial position of the
customers and the macroeconomic environment in
which the customers operate. The credit assessments
also consider the status of the construction project,
i.e. whether there is any delay, any unresolved lawsuits
or contentious matters with customers. If the financial
conditions of the customers and/or the macroeconomic
environment of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to repay, additional
impairment provision may be reputed.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHEHIN

3

ARBRER)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(©)

Provision for warranties

As explained in Note 26, the Group makes provisions
under the warranties it gives on construction of curtain
wall systems contracts, taking into account the Group’s
recent claim experience. As the curtain wall systems
required by customers become more complex, it
is probable that the recent claim experience is not
indicative of future claims that the Group will receive in
respect of past construction of curtain wall systems. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit
or loss in future years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.
In determining the amount of deferred tax assets to be
recognised, significant judgement is required relating to
the timing and level of future taxable profits, after taking
into account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 W

(@)

Revenue @)

The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems. Further details regarding the Group’s
principal activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).

() Disaggregation of revenue

All of the Group’s revenue is arising from
construction contracts. The majority of the
Group’s revenue is recognised over time.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by timing of revenue recognition is as

follows:

Revenue from contracts R B R 5 22 B
with customers within the E15REE AR
scope of IFRS 15 REEFERZBA

Over time R—ERERER

Point in time 7 37 {18 By T By

Disaggregation of revenue by geographic markets
is disclosed in Note 4(bj(iii).

Revenue represents contract revenue derived from
the design, procurement, production, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

@)

Revenue (continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group’s customer base is diversified. There
was no customer with transactions that exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers
in existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregated
amount of the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations under the
Group’s existing contracts is RMB9,867.2 million.
This amount represents revenue expected to
be recognised in the future from construction
contracts entered into by the customers with the
Group. The Group will recognise the expected
revenue in future when or as the work is
completed, which is expected to occur over the
next 48 months.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregated amount
of the expected transaction price of the potential
contracts (including tax) of which the Group has
won the bidding is RMB4,090.7 million.

The above amounts do not include any amounts
of completion bonuses that the Group may earn in
the future by meeting the conditions set out in the
Group’s construction contracts with customers,
unless at the reporting date it is highly probable
that the Group will satisfy the conditions for earning
those bonuses.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations of the construction contracts in a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. In view of the increasing
significance of the Group’s overseas business and the
continuous integration of its domestic business, the
Group has changed the way in how operating segments
are presented and reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment. The
five domestic operating segments were combined into
one operating segment, namely “Domestic” for the year
ended 31 December 2018. As a result, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

° Domestic: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the mainland China.

° Overseas: comprises construction contracts
carried out outside of the mainland China.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

In view of the increasing competiveness within the
curtain wall systems industry, the management
considers it is more important to focus on the
probability of the construction projects within each
of the segment identified by the Group. As a result,
certain information to be reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive has been changed
in 2018. Consequently, the measure previously
used for reporting segment result has been
changed to “adjusted gross profit” (i.e. gross profit
after impairment losses for trade receivables and
contract assets) from “gross profit”. Comparative
figures have been adjusted to conform to the
current year’s segment presentation.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments. No significant inter-
segment sales have occurred for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017. The Group’s
other operating expenses, such as selling and
administrative expenses (excluding impairment
losses for trade receivables and contract assets)
and finance costs, are not measured under
individual segments.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group’s most senior executive management
monitor the Group’s assets and liabilities as
a whole, accordingly, no segment assets and
liabilities information is presented.
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4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 WARDBHERE (E)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) () DEPIRE (E)

() Segment results (continued) () PEWWRWEE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable B E 20184 & 2017 5 12
segments as provided to the Group’s most A31BIEFE » A
senior executive management for the purposes of FAREBZSITHREIEA
resource allocation and assessment of segment BUADERERRT DS
performance for the years ended 31 December FRIBWAEE R BHR D H
2018 and 2017 is set out below. BEREINAT o

2018
2018 &
Domestic Overseas Total
A ZIN At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR

Revenue from external customers REINPEFRIMA
and reportable segment revenue Gl N 2,247,575 2,368,129 4,615,704
Reportable segment adjusted gross profit A B 24 AEEH 360,904 350,084 710,988
2017 (Note)
2017 F (Hi32)

Domestic Overseas Total

Al BN FeE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue from external customers REAIMDEFRABA

and reportable segment revenue KA R EMA 3,273,400 2415250 5,688,650

Reportable segment adjusted gross profit 7] B3 ¥R 73 2P 48 2 E F| 434,567 351,514 786,081
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and Hiat: A & B 201841 A
IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the transition 18 & X FE B BR B
methods chosen, comparative information is TR & 2RI 1558 &
not restated as a result of the initial application B PR B 5 i 5 AE RIS 9
of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9. See Note 2(c). Lo REBEFMEENB
BEFE AR EIRE
A B B B 75 R 2 2 A
1557 K BB B 7% 3R

ERERFE IR - LA
BATES - B
BR2RME2(C)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)
4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4

b)

Segment reporting (continued)

(ii)

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or

loss

Reportable segment adjusted gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses (exclusive of losses
for trade receivables and contract assets)

Expected credit losses of financial and
contract assets

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

WAR D EBH®E (&)
b) PEPFRE(E)

(i) TTERSBERZYE

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 &

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AREFT

(Note)

(Hiit)

A 2RDEEARER 710,988 786,081

HABA 172,741 108,949

HEEMR (91,112) (95,217)

TBAZ (TREE S

EYFKAREERSE) (565,949) (508,740)
CREERAREENEE

EEEEEES (3,739) -

BAERA (68,767) (232,801)

G IpAlE 154,162 58,272

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 at 1
January 2018. Under the transition methods
chosen, comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

KizE: AEBR2018 1 A
1 BB XER R
B EERFE 1555 -
BIRFMEENBES
FEBREBTTE
5 BREER2H
BizE2(c) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 WARDEBRE (Z)

(o)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEIRE (B

R

(iii) Geographic information (iii)

The following tables set out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s (i) revenue
from external customers and (ii) property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments (the
“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at
which the construction contracts are carried out.
The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is determined based on the physical
location of the assets. For overseas construction
contracts, the Group further divided the customers
based on regions, where each country within the
region shares similar characteristics as to the
depth of the Group’s penetration in the market and
industry practices.

TR BRIAKME ()R
BSMNERE P RO A K (i) ¥
X BEERBALE
NHEE(THEEFRRBDE
EDRMBLENEFR -
B EMIRME TR
TTIREARMMIE D -
I FEMEB B E R IR (U
BERBEENER MBI
gl - BB TRERM
5 AKEE-FRIE
ENEF  MEANBER
EAKE TS RITEED
2B IR E 7T E VIR
L
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 WARDBHE (E)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEIRE (B
(i) Geographic information (continued) (i) HEHEE(E)
a. The Group’s revenue from external a FEEFEINHE
customers: FHIMA
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
(Note)
(h7:)
Revenue from contracts with BRI REER
customers within the scope FE15EEE AN
of IFRS 15 REEFERZBA
Disaggregated by geographical BERPHIEMESD
location of customers
Mainland China R A 2,247,575 3,273,400
United Kingdom HE 674,327 517,771
Australia M 597,794 401,261
United States of America EHERE RE 582,202 366,559
Others Hit 513,806 1,129,659
2,368,129 2,415,250
4,615,704 5,688,650
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS Bt 7N &£ B 12018
15 at 1 January 2018. Under the F1A1BBE X
transition methods chosen, comparative FE B B R BA A%
information is not restated. See Note WmEAER|EAS
2(c). 5% o IRIRFTIRIE
RIEE A -
RENTTE

5l - BREAF 5
2HIEE2(0) °
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: A Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrAAEEAIN - AR RERL)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 AR D ERERE (&)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEIRE (B
(iii) Geographic information (continued) (i) HEHFE(E)
b.  The Group’s specified non-current assets: b. AKEEIEE IR
BEE
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREFT
(Note)
(H13z)
Mainland China R 783,240 1,208,171
Overseas BN 12,947 14,621
796,187 1,217,792
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS BraE: 7 & B 2018
15 at 1 January 2018. Under the F1H1HBE R
transition methods chosen, comparative FE A B B Bt 75
information is not restated. See Note w®EERFES
2(c). 5% o IRIRFTIRIEZ
HBE A 0
RERRTE

5| - BREFH1ERR
2B 2(0)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

5 OTHER INCOME 5 HflgA
2018 2017
2018 4 2017 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Government grants BRJFT e BN 24,776 6,828
Rental income from operating leases LEHER WA 521 1,394
Net income from provision of repairs RREMEE RIRE RS
and maintenance services DN 827 2,060
Net (loss)/gain from sale of scrap materials  $5%& EEEM FHAY
F(BR), M (1,276) 284
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and  HEWE « = k&
equipment, land use rights and assets T FRRE R DR RRRHE
classified as held for sale (Note (i) &S & ENFIES (A2 () 147,893 98,383
172,741 108,949
Note: Kt -
()  The amounts included a net gain of RMB100.5 million 0] ZREBEHESEABELESR
arising from disposal of land use rights and properties EE B T b {55 FRAE R W 26 7 A Y 3 IR
classified as assets classified as held for sale. Further details mARB100.5EETT - RIHHHE—

of the transaction are set out in Note 20. FEFIBERHTEE20 ©



HOKH BB A T % R4t

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
ot 75 3 = B = (40

g1

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

6  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6  BiAIRE

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): HATRE &R, (5 ) L TR&IE

&S -
(@ Finance costs: @ BREKA :
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
Interest on borrowings BEFE 145,853 152,680
Bank charges and other finance costs ~ $R{TFEE &
HAb g &R 27,174 17,124
Total borrowing costs (Note 19(b)) RIEE A (A2 19b)) 173,027 169,804
Interest income FEMA (4,797) (4,749
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss SNEE (Wzs) BB F R (78,923) 114,057
Net gain on forward foreign R EASNE & K0 e F AR -
exchange contracts:
— net gain on cash flow hedging — BREREHR SN
instruments reclassified from ReRsshTA
equity (Note 10(b)) e S RE
(K1t 100)) (4,476) (6,131)
— net gain on other forward foreign — E AR HAINE S 49
exchange contracts s 58 (16,064) (40,180)
68,767 232,801

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the year

ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMBNIil).

AE E2018F 12 A31 H I 4
B EEER A E AL (2017
F: ARBZL) -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

6

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 HAAEE
(b)  Staff costs": by BImKA:
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEMER 650,856 576,091
Contributions to defined contribution MR H R IR IR
retirement plans 74,805 74,649
725,661 650,740

Note:

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes managed by the local government
authorities, whereby these subsidiaries are required to
contribute to the schemes at rates ranging from 12% to
20% of the employees’ basic salaries. Employees of these
subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits, calculated
based on a percentage of the average salaries level in the
PRC, from the above mentioned retirement schemes at their
normal retirement age.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group established
outside of the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes managed by the respective
local government authorities, whereby these subsidiaries
are required to contribute to the respective schemes at
rates stipulated by the relevant rules and regulations of the
respective jurisdictions.

The Group does not have any further material obligations
for payments of other retirement benefits beyond the above
annual contributions.

Hist

ANER B R B R SZ A T BB 1 R e R
5 22 H3h 7 BURT BRI 19 S
FORKTRRIG B - iRt - R EIRES
RARZIESERTE 12% £ 20%
RZEFTEHK - PRMER R
BRERERRARFREGERZ L
ARG Bl F B R Bl 15 H 2K
FE DA ERRAET -

AR B FRBIE MK KB A A
HEB2EHER QM) BUSHKEAE
B R ERFRAKBHGE - IR
it BN B R B R IRE BARE R
AR RE AR B BOR R AT AR A L R ]

BB o

REE BB RASE XN il FE 5K
ASNO R R BARAIBAEAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Other items:

Depreciation and amortisation”
(Notes 12 and 13)

Impairment losses on trade and
other receivables and contract assets

Operating lease charges in respect of
land, plant and buildings, motor
vehicles and other equipment”

Auditors’ remuneration

Research and development costs”

Increase in provision for warranties”

(Note 26)
Cost of inventories” (Note 15(a))

e K"
(Bt 12 13)

B 5 R E MR &
EREERERSE

BT - BERETF
YE R H A SRR
ERERY "

A% B R B

B A

RISE G I (K722 26)

FEEKA" (K:E 15@)

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods
chosen, comparative information is not restated. See

Note 2(c).

Cost of inventories includes RMB468.9 million for the

year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB531.3
million), relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, operating lease charges,
research and development costs and provision for
warranties, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above
or in Note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BEERIN - IARBAEL)
BiATFIE (&)
) HMIER :
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETFIT
(Note)
(K1)
52,471 59,404
193,754 462,838
21,629 29,489
13,102 11,081
175,616 211,442
83,093 91,196
3,714,701 4,439,731

Hiat: AEER2018F1 1B E
X FE A BB B 7S R S 2RI B
15 55 K B R B 75 o 5 2E I 55
5% o RIRFTIRIZENBE S
o HEBERATTEY A
BAFHIBE B2 2(c) ©

! HZE20185F12 A31 HILFE
FERABEE TRA
EREERAY  CETRERM
X PAERARREREES
RARIR AR ARKE 468.9 B &I
(20175 : AR¥ES31.3EHE
JT) M M-S IRt A
323k P 7E 6(0) B 1 R A
R F -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

7 INCOME TAX 7 g%t
(@  Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (@ AEHBRRANMRETIE
represents:
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBT T
(Note)
(K1z)
Current taxation (Note 25(a)): BNERFLIB (Aat 25(a))
— Provision for corporate income tax —ER A AT IR
in respective jurisdictions TSRS 17,922 46,204
— Qver provision in respect of
prior years — AT FE R - (13,840
17,922 32,364
Deferred taxation (Note 25(b)): IRIERIIE (H1aL 25())
— Origination and reversal of — I EFEMEE
temporary differences K 48,069 (59,821)
65,991 (27,457)
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 MiiF - A& ER2018F1A1HE
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods IR FE R B R B 7 R S E RN 3
chosen, comparative information is not restated. See 15 5% K B B B 745 i 5 E B 28
Note 2(c). 95k c IRIEFTEZEMRE T

o HBRERATTE-F
HFHBR 2R 2()
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Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before taxation

Expected tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable
to profits in the jurisdictions concerned
(Notes (i), (i), (i) and (iv))

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of utilisation of prior years’
unused tax losses previously not
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Over provision in respect of prior years

Tax concessions (Note (v))

Income tax

BRI

BN BRRE R AR
R KRG BT
METEET A
() ~ @) ~ (i) & ()

TRHIBRAX OB E R E

FRBANTETE

BRI AR IBE
FEARPAHBAEE
MBBTE

RERRBATIABE
MG E &

BEFEEERE

IR R (HiE (V)

Pt

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods
chosen, comparative information is not restated. See

Note 2(c).

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREIEAI - UARKAE)
FriS®t (%)

b HEFAXEREAHRRAED
SRR

2018 2017
2018 £ 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(Note)

(Ki:E)

154,162 58,272
45,166 16,889
2,850 17,555
(7,698) =
(126) (21,754)
44,231 6,255

= (13,840)
(18,432) (32,562)
65,991 (27,457)

ANEBR22018F1A1HE
IR e FR BB B 5 3R 5 2RI EE
15 5% K B R B 75 3 o 2 B 28
9%k - IRIRFTIREMIRE S
o BERTTFEY A
Rt IEm2EME2C)

Hist
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEERAN  UARBEER)
7 INCOME TAX (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: 16.5%). No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMBNIl).

The Company and a subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands, respectively, are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25%
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 25%).

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in
countries other than the PRC (including Hong Kong),
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, are
subject to income tax rates ranging from 8.5% to 35%
for the year ended 31 December 2018 pursuant to the
rules and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation (2017: 8.5% to 35%).

One of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC has obtained approval from the tax
bureau to be taxed as an enterprise with advanced
and new technologies for the period from 2017 to
August 2020 and therefore enjoys a preferential
PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 15%). In addition
to the preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate,
this subsidiary entitles an additional tax deductible
allowance amounted to 75% (2017:50%) of the
qualified research and development costs incurred in
the PRC by this subsidiary.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7

4

FriS®t (&)

(b)

BIAR X B ERR R A ER
SETAEREER : (F)

Hrat -

)

(i)

(V)

AATRALEBRE B
BRSO BB A IR B 2 2018
F12A318 It & E A &
16.5% (2017 4F : 16.5%) Y
MEBMBEBFER - AR
AATRALEEBRE S
B SZ BB B A IR E 2 2018
F12AIAEFEHEA
BN 7S 1S B A FE AR B A
B M ESTIR BB RS R
BE(017F « ARBEZIT) -

RIBEE B MR ERE R
AROER - DRIRASES
Ko B8 i 2 BE IS et 1 AR A2 Y
ARREAEE—KMEA
BB BN EFIFTSH o

P e NSl VA O IEE RN
AR & E=20184F 12 A31 H
IF F E 7B $225% (2017 £F -
25% ) By 2= B 4 R B 1 S BT
(S

BIES B s Az B R 948
B ROEA - AEERPE (2
BES) FHEHERER
B 2 BE B ASNBI SR B AR A2
BB /B A A B R & £2018
F12A318 IEF E N &
8.5% & 35% TE /I AT{S i K
BN FT 5 F (2017 4F : 8.5%
Z35%) °

REEHAR —FKN A B
B HI A A B SR Bt
HEE 2017 FE 20204 8 A LE
WEFRIERRINBIMEE
BT IE - WA E20184F
12A31B L FE=Z5H15%
(20174 : 15%) Hy & B 1
EFMSHESTE - lREH
FRPEMSHERHEZ
SN ZMIBARIBEERER
R REEENEGERFERK
ANH)75% (2017 £ = 50%) A
FTHIBRSEE o
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IE. 4 Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
v WIS B 35 $R 3% BT 5 (30

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrAAEEAIN - AR RERL)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEMWS
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) BB AN BRI 383(1) = R A Al
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the (HBREBEEFZZER) 855 =2
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BOE=MeFBOT ¢

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2018
2018F
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits  Retirement

in kind scheme

Directors’ #¢ - contributions
fees EER RIKGHE Total
EzHe ENEA % #ct

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR AR%FTR  ARWTR

Executive directors BiTES

Mr Kang Baohua REELE - 188 37 225
Mr Znang Lei RERE - 321 35 356
Mr Li Hongren TEARE - 2,683 40 2,723
Mr Liu Futao i) =it - 2,412 40 2,452
Mr Ma Minghui SHBLE - 1,616 40 1,656
Mr Wang Hao TE2%E - 432 42 474
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES

Mr Poon Chiu Kwok EEEELE 211 - - 211
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond HRREE 211 - - 211
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny FHELE 211 = = 211

633 7,652 234 8,519
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

8

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Executive directors

Mr Kang Baohua

Mr Zhang Lei

Mr Li Hongren (appointed on 8 February 2017)
Mr Liu Futao (appointed on 8 February 2017)
Mr Ma Minghui (appointed on 8 February 2017)

Mr Wang Hao (appointed on 8 February 2017)

Mr Tian Shouliang (resigned on 8 February 2017)

Mr Guo Zhongshan (resigned on 8 February 2017)

Mr Wang Yijun (resigned on 8 February 2017)

Mr Wang Lihui (resigned on 8 February 2017)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny

YTES

REZLE

RELE

£ Ik
(R20t7E2 A8 AEZR()
fEErs
(R2017F2 A8 AEZR)
SEREE
(R201752 A8 HEZR()
FREE
(Ro01752 A8 AEZR()
AFREE
(R20t7E2 A8 AB)

BRLEE
(R2017E2 A8 ABHT)

IZERE
(R2017F2 B8 AEHT)

TUBRE
(Ro0t7E2 A8 AB)

BUFHTES
ARERE
HRRLE
PrERE

8 E=EMe(#E)
2017
20174
Salaries,

allowances Retirement

and benefits scheme

Directors’ inkind  contributions
fees 24 28 RIK Total
sy REDER HE @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT  ARETR ARET:
- 190 37 227
- 1,633 38 1,671
- 1,958 39 1,997
- 1,84 39 1,880
- 693 39 732
- 612 39 651
- 3 1 4
- 66 3 69
- 215 3 218
- 211 3 214
217 - - 217
217 - - 217
217 - - 217
651 7422 241 8314
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017:
two) of them are directors of the Company. The aggregate of
the emoluments in respect of the three individuals (2017: three)
who are not directors are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBENERER
Discretionary bonuses I TEAL
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIER

The emoluments of the employees who are not directors and
who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group
are within the following bands:

(In HKS) (B7T)
2,000,001-2,500,000 2,000,001 % 2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000 2,500,001 3,000,000

1
LY RS 3R R MY AE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrAAEEAIN - AR RERL)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 BEHFMAL

FEERHFMA LTS mMA(017
F2R)BARRES - WIHEEN
Z=HB AL (2017 F : 35) MF B2
B

2018 2017
2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

5,239 5,157
380 380
797 899

6,416 6,436

AEERERSFMELIFEZTZA

TN T AT &R :
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
2 2
1 1
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHEHIN

AARMEBERL)
10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 Hb2mka
(@) Tax effect relating to each component of other @ BEEMEEWESHEKXIS
comprehensive income RF TS s 2
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Exchange differences on translation of BEREERETHB AR
financial statements of the Company %R A2 SR
and certain subsidiaries into presentation bE R (BipT R Ai18)
currency (before and after tax) (17,017) 94,903
Cash flow hedge: BERELH
net movement in the hedging reserve P REEE)FE
— Before tax amount — BRI %E (1,625) 13,309
— Tax expense —TRIBRAY 404 (3,328)
— Net of tax amount — F 5 (1,221) 9,981
Other comprehensive income H b2 e (18,238) 104,884
() Components of other comprehensive income, including b)) BFEEMEEMEZAKITD -
reclassification adjustments BIEEHRHEFAE
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Cash flow hedges: REMELF
Effective portion of changes in fair RERERKE R TE
value of hedging instruments DREEEHNERDBS
recognised during the year 2,851 19,440
Reclassification adjustments for ER SRR RENEN
amounts transferred to profit or DR (K1t 6@)
loss (Note 6(a)) (4,476) (6,131)
Net deferred tax charged to other PAE M2 E U ESF0 R B IR A
comprehensive income (Note 25(b)) TIEFEE (M52 25 (b)) 404 (3,328)
Net movement in the hedging reserve REM 2 B ERE
during the year recognised in FREH BB FE
other comprehensive income (1,221) 9,981




HOKH BB A T % R4t
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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11  BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREERREBEEF

(@) Basic earnings per share @ BREARZF
The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 HZE2018F12A31AILFE
December 2018 is calculated based on the profit TR EAREFRIE AR R KR
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company EENBAREY7918 & T
of RMB79.1 million (2017: RMB60.7 million) and the (20174 : AR¥60.7EBET)
weighted average of 6,208,147,000 ordinary shares R AREE B 317 hntE F 15 2
(2017: 6,208,147,000 ordinary shares) in issue during 6,208,147,000 f% I 3@ f& (2017
the year ended 31 December 2018. F : 6,208,147,000 f% & & A% )

8 o

(b) Diluted earnings per share b)) EREERF
There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding R E E20184F 2017412 A
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. TEIEFEREAETEEN

FERI N AT ©
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 9% BERRE

Motor
vehicles
Machinery and other
Plant and and equipment  Construction
buildings equipment FER in progress Total
HERET BERRE 2Rt ERIRE s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTL
Cost: A
At 1 January 2017 20171 18 639,720 391,442 195,292 11,508 1,237,962
Exchange adjustments R (25) (248) (439) - (712)
Additions NE 244 - 815 585 1,644
Disposals e (55,545) (2,920) (12,987) - 71,459)
At 31 December 2017 201712 A31 B 584,394 388,274 182,681 12,093 1,167,442
Accumulated depreciation: ZE
At 1 January 2017 Ro017%1 A1B (154,314) (236,110) (151,812) - (542,236)
Exchange adjustments iR 28 25 436 - 489
Charge for the year ERHE (17,390) (18,307) (9,328) - (45,025)
Written back on disposals HEERE 22,3% 2,608 11,628 - 36,632
At 31 December 2017 R2017512 4318 (149,280) (251,784) (149,076) = (550,140)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2017 1201712 A31 B 435,114 136,490 33,605 12,093 617,302
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2018 MW2018%F1 A 1R 584,394 388,274 182,681 12,093 1,167,442
Exchange adjustments B i AR (205) (261) 785 - 269
Additions NE 10,749 39 756 - 11,900
Disposals e (17,008) (2,789) 7.710) - (27,506)
Reclassified to assets classified ENAEENEARE
as held for sale (Note 20) HEBE(W320) (150,298) - - (11,508) (161,806)
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31 B 427,632 385,620 176,462 585 990,299
Accumulated depreciation: e
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1 18 (149,280) (251,784) (149,076) - (550,140)
Exchange adjustments B R ©) 155 (589) - (440)
Charge for the year FRNE (16,287) (17,680) (6,607) - (40,574)
Written back on disposals HEED 4,103 1,522 7,22 - 12,846
Reclassffied to assets classified ENABENBARE
as held for sale (Note 20) LEBE (H#20) 15,838 - - = 15,838
At 31 December 2018 R2018% 12 A31B (145,632) (267,787) (149,051) - (562,470)
Net book value: SREHE
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31 B 282,000 117,833 27,411 585 427,829




12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2R B & ()

12

At 31 December 2018, property certificates of certain

properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB84.4
million (31 December 2017: RMB87.6 million) are yet to be

obtained.

LEASE PREPAYMENTS

Cost:

At 1 January

Additions

Disposals

Reclassified to assets classified
as held for sale (Note 20)

At 31 December

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

Reclassified to assets classified
as held for sale (Note 20)

At 31 December

Net book value:
At 31 December

13

A

»1A18

NE

BE

BN BEDEAFE
LEEE (Kit20)

W12 A31H

RETHES

»1A18

FAEA

S8

B DBEDEAFE
LEEE (Kit20)

»12A31H

BREFE -
W12 A31H

Lease prepayments represented land use right premiums paid
by the Group for land situated in the PRC. At 31 December
2018, land use right certificates of certain land use rights with

an aggregate carrying value of RMB5.2 million (31 December
2017: RMB5.4 million) are yet to be obtained.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RSB IEHAIN - AR REM)

W3 - BERZRE(E)

2018412 A31 B » & THKREF
BERARKES44BEIT(2017F12 A
31H : ARM87.6 EEIT) MWW
REBYIHFE -

FEAEE
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
707,389 718,878
- 558
= (12,047)
(272,384) -
435,005 707,389
(106,899) (95,232)
(11,897) (14,379)
= 2,712
52,149 =
(66,647) (106,899)
368,358 600,490

BRNESEASERARFEN T
FrZ e L F AL RS - 722018
F12H31H - WARGEBERIERSA
Riss2BET(20175 12 A31 8 :
AR5 ATET) AT I E AR
B 4 b 57 PR AR o
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RHEBLARZRE

TREJLHAEENEE  BEX
BEEEATEZMBRRIER -

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.
Proportion of ownership interest
Place of BRERLA
establishment/  Particulars of The Group's
incorporation  registered/issued effective  Held by the Held by
and business  and paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary RY/HEMAT  2R/ERAR KEEZ HRAF HEAR  Principal activities
(i Pk RERHE BERARFE LUy 3 KB ¥E TEER
Shenyang Yuanda Auminium Industry Engineering~ The PRC United States Dollar 100% = 100%  Design, procurement,
Co., Ltd. (‘Shenyang Yuanda')’ el ('USD") 323,298,200 production, sale and
BREAREIRARAR (TEGEX]) 303,008 20050 installaton of curtain
(1%7)) wall systems
HERTERRAR
Shanghai Yuanda Aluminium Indlustry Engineering ~~ The PRC RMB15,000,000 100% = 100%  Design, procurement,
Co,, Ltd. (*Shanghai Yuande)™ Gl ARH15,00000078 production, sale and
EEEAEETRERAR ([ LARAL) installation of curtain
wall systems
HERZEBEZS
Yuanda (UK) Co., Ltd. United Kindom ~ British Pound Sterling 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
BAREERAA %5 (‘GBP") 500,000 assembly, sale and
500,000 %8 ([ %8]) installation of curtain
wall systems
Rt KB AR
HERZEBRZG
Shenyang Yuanda Metal Coating Co., Ltd.™ The PRC RMB7,000,000 100% = 100%  Plating and coating of
EGEASEREAR A" i AEH7,0000007 metals

SRREREZ
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¥ | ‘ Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 RHEBLARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of BRERLA
establishment/  Particulars of The Group's
incorporation  registered/issued effective  Held by the Held by
and business  and paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary RY/EMAY  2R/ERAR 15E2 BAAF mKBAF  Principal activities
WEARAN RERHE BB ERELR K8 #E IEER
Foshan Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% = 100%  Purchase of materials
Co, Ltd** i AK20,000,0007 for and provision of
BLEREETRER A senvices to group
companies
REERARERIH
RmE RIS
LLC Yuanda Curtain Wall (*Yuanda Russia’) Russian Russian Ruble 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
BABBARAR (EARES]) Federation (‘RUBY) 280,000 assembly, sale and
R 280,000 & HER installation of curtain
([&%) wall systems
CERE AR
HERTEBRAR
Yuanda Australia Pty Ltd. Australia Australian Dollar 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
BEARARITERAR BAFIE (AUD") 1,069,291 assembly, sale and
1,069,201 7 ([27)) installation of curtain
wall systems
#it R AR
HERZEBRZS
Yuanda USA Corporation United States of - USD1,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
BAXEERAR America 1,000,000% 7 assembly, sale and
FHEATE installation of curtain
wall systems

HEREBERH
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 RHEBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of BRERLA
establishment/  Particulars of The Group's
incorporation  registered/issued effective ~ Held by the Held by
and business  and paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary RY/EMET  2R/ERAR KEE MALAR  EMEAF  Principal activities
HEADER RE£HY HERARRE LU 3 KB K6 TEER
Yuanda Ganada Enterprises Ltd. (*Yuanda Canada’) ~ Canada USD500,000 100% = 100%  Design, procurement,
EANEABRAR ([RAMER]) nex 500,005 assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems
Rt RE A%
HERTERRZS
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering (Germany) ~ Germany Euro100,000 100% = 100%  Design, procurement,
GrmoH i 10,0008 assembly, sale and
EANBXTR(ER)BRAA installation of curtain
wall systems
ok AR
HERTEBRAR
Yuanda Aluminium Engineering (India) Republic of India  Indlian Rupee 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
Private Limited (*Yuanda Indie’) (‘Inclia”) (‘INR") 1,476,200 assembly, sale and
EABETE(DE)LABRAH DA 1476 200 0B LY installation of curtain
(TEAHE ) (TE 1) (TEIEELL]) wall systems
Fit 5B A%
HERZEBRZS
Yuanda Europe Ltd. (*Yuanda Europe’) Swiss Swiss Franc (‘CHF') 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
EARNARAR ([EABM]) Confederation 1,000,000 assembly, sale and
il 1,000,000% L8 installation of curtain
(B ) wallsystems

e KB AR
BERZEREAN
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14 14 HRHBLARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of RRERILA
establishment/  Particulars of The Group's
incorporation  registered/issued effective  Held by the Held by
and business  and paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary RY/EMAY  2R/ERAR 15E2 BAAF mKBAF  Principal activities
WEARAN RERHE BB ERELR K8 #E IEER
Yuanda Curtain Wall (Hong Kong) Company Limited  Hong Kong 2,000,000 shares 100% = 100%  Design, procurement,
EABE(BE)BRAA BE 2,000,000 13 assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems
Hat R A%
HERTEBEZS
Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting for Buildings State of Kuwait ~ Kuwalt Dinar 100%° - 100%"  Deslgn, procurement,
Underes (Kuwait") (‘WD) 1,000,000 assembly, sale and
BAMBRGARERDERELAR M (R 1,000000MERERE installtion of curtain
(M) wall systems
CERRL AR
HERZERRZM
Yuanda Curtain Wall (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. Socialist Republic - USD100,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
BABE (E)BREALA of Vietnam ~ 100,000%7 assembly, sale and
HEreEE installation of curtain
Pl wall systems
HatRE A%
HERZEREZS
Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering ~ Kingdom of Saudi Arabian 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
Co., BR Saudi Arabia Riyal 500,000 assembly, sale and
BREARETEARATDHAT WERAR 500,000 installation of curtain
HAESR wall systems

AR
RERZERREAA
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 HRHEBARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of BRERLA
establishment/  Particulars of The Group's
incorporation  registered/issued effective ~ Held by the Held by
and business  and paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary RY/EMET  2R/ERAR KEE MALAR  EMEAF  Principal activities
HEADER RERHE HERARRE LU 3 KB K6 TEER
Well Galaxy Limited The British USD1 100% 100% - Investment holding
REERA Viign Islands 1577 REER
ABRAES
Yuanda (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% = 100%  Investment holding
BA (B BRERAA B 1R (A RERRK
PT. Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry Republic of USD750,000 99% = 99%  Design, procurement,
Enginesring Indonesia ~~ 750,000%7T assembly, sale and
EABETROERAZARAR DERREENE installation of curtain
wall systems
Rt A%
HERTERRAS
CNYD Aluminium Indlustry Engineering Malaysia Malaysia Malaysia Ringgit 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
SDN. BHD. il (‘MYR’) 750,000 assembly, sale and
EANBXIRERATIABRAR 750,000 5RFE R installation of curtain
LH(SRRE wall systems
2%)) CEREL AR
HERTEBRAR
Yuanda Curtain Wall (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Republic of Singapore Doller 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
EARR TR ARAR Singapore (SGD") 1,950,000 assembly, sale and
AR 1,950,000 13K 7T installation of curtain
(5rmsgr)) wall systems

e R AR
BERZERREAA
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 RHEBLARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of BRERLA
establishment/  Particulars of The Group's
incorporation  registered/issued effective  Held by the Held by
and business  and paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary RY/EMAY  2R/ERAR 15E2 BAAF mKBAF  Principal activities
WEARAN RERHE BB ERELR K8 #E IEER
Yuanda Mexico SA. de C.V. The United Mexican Peso 100% = 100%  Design, procurement,
EAREFNEERERAR Mexican States 1,000,000 assembly, sale and
2T 1000000 2R TR installation of curtain
wall systems
Rat A%
HERTEBRAR
Yuanda ltaly SRL. ltaly Euro20,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
EAEANERREAR BAH 20,0008 assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems
Rt R A%
HERTEBRAR
Yuanda Queensiand Pty Ltd. Australia AUD300,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
BARTHERAR BARIE 800,000 270 assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems
&t R AR
HERZEBRZG
Yuanda WA Pty Ltd. Australia AUD1 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
EAERANDERAR N 1871 assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems
Rt A%
HERREREZR
Yuanda SA Pty Ltd. Australia AUD1 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
EAERANEERAR BARIE 1871 assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

e R K
BERZEREAA
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
establishment/  Particulars of
incorporation registered/issued
and business  and paid-up capital
Name of subsidiary RY/EMET  2R/ERAR
WEARAN REXHE HERARRE
Yuanda VIC Pty Ltd. Australia AUD1
BABSHEERAA BATIR 1ET
Yuanda Pakistan (PVT.) Limited The Islamic USD60,000
RACENEERAA Republic of 60,0007
Pakistan
BEiA
(RETR AR
Canada Yuanda Aluminum Corporation Canada Canadian Dollar
JEINEYNEIN JIEY (‘CAD’) 100
100MEAT
(Tn7eJ)

*x

This company is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the mainland China.

These companies are limited liability companies established
in the mainland China.

The Group, through Shenyang Yuanda, owns 49% equity
interests in this company, where the remaining 51% equity
interests are held on trust for Shenyang Yuanda by an
individual resided in Kuwait. In accordance with the entrust
agreement, this individual does not have the right to vote or
receive dividends declared or participate in the liquidation
of this company. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider the Group effectively owns 100% equity interests
in the company.

14 RHBLARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

L Sl

The Group’s
effective
interest
5B
LT

100%

100%

100%

Held by the
Company
HAAT

ok

Held by
subsidiaries
HHEAE
S 8

Principal activities

IEEH

- 100%  Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

&t AR
HERZERRAM

- 100%  Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

CERRL AR
HERZERRZM

= 100%  Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

&t AR
HERTRBRAR

%N B AP R B A3 6K S B S
Bk -

o

%25 N A RN B H AR

= /T =
s1EAF] °

=

aj

REBFEBEBZRRKBEEZARN
49% 5 HE © TE#R51% BAE TR E
REEIEE A TSR AES
BRAKEE - REXEHZ - Z4@E
B = 3 2 4 R 5h 5% A Rl R 3R
BEZREREHDEER - At
ARABIEERE AEEER L
BZAA)EY100% A HE ©
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14

The following table lists out the combined financial information
of Yuanda Europe and its subsidiaries, a sub-group within the
Group, which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).
The summarised financial information presented below

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrAEEREIN - UARBARERL)

RB AR ZRE (&)

TERFINEARBON R EH B R E (K
SEEEAFEERE ([ JFEBE
m)WMERE) AHBEER - T
X 2B B ERRE RIRER R

represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Revenue for the period from
1 January 2018 to 31 March 2018
(date of acquisition of the remaining
non-controlling interests)/for the year

Profit for the period from 1 January 2018
to 31 March 2018 (date of acquisition
of the remaining non-controlling
interests)/for the year

Profit attributable to NClI

Non-current assets at 31 December
Current assets at 31 December
Current liabilities at 31 December

Net liabilities at 31 December

Net liabilities attributable to NCI at
31 December (Note (i)

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

R2018F1 A1 =
201843 A31H
(W EBER T IR 2
ER:EDE I AT ON

R2018F1 A1HZE
201843 A 31 H
(WEBeR T IE1E R A
A HR) 23R, F A A

FEAE s o 2 A )

W12 A31 BRZERBIEE

W12 A 31 BRRBI B E
N12 A31 BRREEE

W12 A31 B AGEFE

M 12 A 31 AR B

BB ML)
REKEEHZHERE
REBERHZRERE
REBELBZRERE

BIFHEIHIA R 2 AT S5 -

2018 2017
2018 FF 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
(Note (i)

(K7 ()

217,292 715,667
22,630 62,693
9,052 25,077
n/a 19,645

n/a 373,325
n/a (739,945)
n/a (346,975)
= (138,789)

3,577 768

219
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

15

Notes:

(0

(i

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

Pursuant to the respective equity transfer agreement
entered into between Shenyang Yuanda and the then
non-controlling equity shareholders of Yuanda Europe
Ltd. (“Yuanda Europe”), Shenyang Yuanda acquired all
of the remaining 40% non-controlling interests in Yuanda
Europe for a consideration of Swiss Franc 1 (equivalent to
approximately RMB7) on 31 March 2018. The aggregate
non-controlling interests acquired is a deficit of RMB133.9
million.

INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS

14 RHEBARZRE(E)

Hiat -

(i)

AEER201851 A1 BE X EAR
B B 765 3 5 2 B 2B 15 5% R B B B 75
MELERIFEON  BIBFTRIZENBE
T EEBREARATEY - AR
BB 2HME2()

RIEESREA RERABMNERAF
(TEARBM ) R SEERRR S B
I Rk ESE R T - A 20184F 3
A318 - &G AKERKBUMNA
BT A0%IEE R AERS - REAIImT
SRR (HERAREETT) o FTiiE3E
RS R B A AR 133.98
BT °

15 FERHEMERKAE

31 December 1 January 31 December

2018 2018 2017

2018 F 20184 2017 &

12A31H 1H1H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREFT ARETT

(Note () (Note (i))

(Hat () (Wit ()

Raw materials FRAH 242,535 283,446 283,446
Work in progress (Note (i) FEER K@) 167,576 155,148 -
Less: write down of inventories B EEMUR (2,986) (6,248) (6,248)
407,125 432,346 277,198
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INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method and adjusted the opening balances as at
1 January 2018. Comparative information has not been
restated.

Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, opening adjustments were
made as at 1 January 2018 to derecognise revenue for
construction activities that control were not yet transferred
under IFRS 15. This has resulted in an increase in inventory
as at that date (see Note 2(c)(ii)). Contract costs are
recognised in “Selling expenses” in the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which the amounts were incurred as the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract is not significant.

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense and included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss during the year is as follows:

15

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

FERAEMERKA (&)

MEE

(i)

AEEEFERARTEEELERER
B R B 5 i 2 2E AU 55 15 SR W AR A
20185F1 A1 AW AR - L&
BARTFET -

T B 4 B R B 75 R E R S5 1555
% BEF201841 A1 BEH EA1IA
B ARUHFERRAR 1R B B B s o o5 2
RIS 15 5% M R B R IT IR B 5OE
B A o EEINZARFERMN
(RHFFE2(c) (i) » & RAARERIE
mAM [HEER] PRER - HhE
BARELANBEXAT TERK °

RERNERB/AI L AR B
BaRANFESBEOMOT

2018 2017

20184 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREBTIT

Carrying amount of inventories FAREZESRRN

used in construction contracts FEREE 3,717,963 4,444,047
Reversal of write-down of inventories TF &R 7 a] (3,262) (4,316)
3,714,701 4,439,731
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16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

16 SREEREGRAR

(@)  Contract assets @ AREE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
2018 F 2018 4F 2017
12A31H 1A1H 12HA31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETTT ARETT
(Note (i) (Note ()
(Hiat) (HiEt ()
Contract assets EREE
Arising from performance under ZEAR TEAEL
construction contracts (B3 (i) % (iv)
(Notes (iii) and (iv)) 3,182,830 3,820,262 -
Less: loss allowance (Note (i) B ERRME (M) (351,127) (241,900) -
2,831,703 3,578,362 -
Notes: Kt
()  The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 ()  ANEEFHKER R 5®R

using the cumulative effect method and adjusted the
opening balances as at 1 January 2018.

(i) Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, opening adjustments
were made as at 1 January 2018 to recognise
additional expected credit losses on contract assets.
This has resulted in a decrease in this balance as at

that date (see Note 2(c)(i)).

(i) Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, amounts previously
presented as “Gross amount due from customers for
contract work” were reclassified to “Contract assets”
(see Note 2(c)(ii)). All of the amounts are expected to
be billed within one year from the end of the reporting
period, except for the amounts of RMB619.3
million at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
RMB821.8 million) related to retentions receivable
(net of loss allowance) which are expected to be

recovered over one year.

4 2RI 5 9 5% K B BB BA 75 o)
LXRAFEISRIRARETE

& WHAER20184F1 A1 H
RIERYI4E SR o

AR AN BB B 75 3R 5 22 RIS 9
5818 - 201841 A1 A E
HHMAENEREREE
WEEINEEEREBL - 58
BRE BziEsm > (R
20)) °

(i)

B4 B PR B 75 3R 2 2 RIS
1555 1% + ScAI 255 [ B
BEARIEREE] BEH
AR IEREE] (RHTE2()
(ii)) ° FT A SRIBTEEA R $ 5 HA
B —FANFREER  /R2018
F12A3THBEKRERS
(M BEEE) BEOAR
#619.3HEIL(2017F 12 A
318 : AR¥821.8HET)
FEHAA — F AR IR o

(i)
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16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(@)

Contract assets (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)  Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, opening adjustments
were made as at 1 January 2018 to derecognise
revenue from construction activities that control were
not yet considered as transferred and unapproved
contract modifications. This has resulted in a
decrease in contract assets as at that date (see Note

2(0)(ii).

(v) Included in the contract assets are amounts of
RMBO.7 million at 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: RMB1.0 million) due from the companies under
the control of the Controlling Shareholder.

The Group’s construction contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
construction period once milestones are reached, these
payment schedules prevent the build-up of significant
contract assets. The Group typically agrees to a one
to five years retention period after the completion of
construction contracts may be granted to customers
for retentions receivable, depending on the market
practice of construction industries in countries where
construction contracts are carried out and credit
assessment carried out by management on an individual
customer basis.

The amount of revenue recognised during the year from
performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in
previous periods is RMB666.1 million, mainly due to the
changes in estimate of the stage of completion of certain
construction contracts.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrAEEREIN - UARBARERL)

16 &

REERERAE(E)

BREEE)

Kt ()

(iv) REMBERI RS RIS
1557 1% + R 2018451 A1H
EHEAARE » AR IEHER
GENSICEN - P& i
ARIEFTMREEEBATES
WA - EHEBREBNE
RIEEm D (RHIEE2(c)) °

v) MR2018F12A31 8 » T
BRAR S I T A Rl A SRIB A
REE0.7EEITL(2017F12 A
318 : ARB1.0BE )&

ABRAE -

AEEREARBRRERH
EXRD RN RN RERE(—
BERER)  HENRARER
LRZREREREE - BT
RELARMEBRFKNELEE
mIZEN N EREBREFEP
HEEETNEENG A&H
BERAELEBLERESRTE
FREKZEARKRRE—=

TEMRER -

FRRRBERREZER (HED
EZRK) BAIREBHERHMA SRR
R/AREEGE61BET  T2H
RETRERRMMGTIE

EREBEH BTN -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES 16 EREERGEAE(E)
(continued)
(b)  Contract liabilities b)) ERAE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
2018 F 2018 4 2017 F
12431 H 1H18 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT ARET T
(Note (i) (Note (i)

(B1zZ () (B1aE ()

Contract liabilities EEEE
Construction contracts EEAR
— Billings in advance of — B AYAN R T AR &
performance (HTFE (i) & (i)
(Notes (i) and (i) 881,998 971,536 -
Notes: Hfat:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15
using the cumulative effect method and adjusted the
opening balances as at 1 January 2018.

Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, opening adjustments
were made as at 1 January 2018 to derecognise
revenue from construction activities that control
were not yet transferred and unapproved contract
modifications (see Note 2(c(ii)).

Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, amounts previously
presented as “Gross amount due to customers for
contract work” and “Receipts in advance” were
reclassified to “Contract liabilities” (see Note 2(c)(ii)).

Included in contract liabilities are amounts of
RMB10.5 million at 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: RMB16.5 million) due to the companies under
the control of the Controlling Shareholder.

All of the contract liabilities are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year.

()  AKEERERDBRMBR
&5 A QI 55 9 5% Ko B B B 7S 4R
SHEAFE1RRAREZE
& - WHER201851 A1H
BV ER SRR ©

(i) AEPER RS ERE
1555 %% + 201841 A1H
{EHEAFIAEE » AR IEFER
B AR B i R R I R
SEHE S RHERT R SRR S
FREEAE WA (R FIFE2(c)i)) ©

(i) TAERAN BRI TS HE RIS
16571 - SERI25I BRI ENE
FPaRIiEREE] & [FHEK
PR EEMABERIAREA
& (R HFE2()) -

(iv) H2018%F12A31H - fEfHE
ARAR S 5 T A Rl A SR IB A
R#1058 & (2017412
A31R8 : AR¥16.5B&T)

FFABRELE -

v FMERRAEEMN—FR
TR -



AT RERAERAT ZF— ) FEEHR

[ Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
57 0 AR5 SR R M 0
o (Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BBEEBE - UAREAEA)
16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES 16 AREEREGEAE(E)
(continued)

(b)

Contract liabilities (continued)

b AREEGE)

When the Group receives a deposit before the A ANEEREEEHFHEBATUK
production activity commences this will give rise to e Bl E R GE
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the ELXARAaE BEEHERRE
revenue recognised on the project exceeds the amount R ABBIES S -

of the deposit.

Movements in contract liabilities

Balance at 1 January

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result
of recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
billing and receipt in advance of
construction activities

Balance at 31 December

SRAGBHEE
2018
2018
RMB’000
ARBTT
B A1 BR&S 971,536
FAEERBAEERD
EREBE(FYEFAER
afE)
(646,711)
R L BIR R BRKIEA
EENERABELN
557,173

W12 A31 BE&ER 881,998



YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) IF
5 R R Y 0 ™

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

17 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 17 EBEZEURREREE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
2018 £F 2018 4F 2017 F
12H31H 1H1H 124311
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBFIT ARETTT
(Note ())) (Note ()

(HraZ () (HraE ()

Trade receivables for contract BRIIEE FEMEK

work due from (Note (i)): (BIaE i)
— Third parties —5E=7 4,308,837 4,265,862 4,272,751
— Companies under the control  — =32 J& Bk 5 322 4
of the Controlling H)A &l
Shareholder 183,187 185,586 185,586
4,492,024 4,451,448 4,458,337
Bills receivable for contract work 4 [a T2 e K ZE g 33,815 47,659 47,659

Trade receivables for sale of raw  $HE R EIE FEI
materials due from:

— Third parties =E=7 4,245 2,302 2,302
— Companies under the control  — 2352 AR AR B 52 i)
of the Controlling 0N
Shareholder 2,509 1,870 1,870
6,754 4172 4172

4,532,593 4,508,279 4,510,168
Less: loss allowance (Note (i) & = E1EEAE (B (i) (1,693,945) (1,837,426) (1,474,974)

Financial assets measured B EK AN G =8
at amortised cost SREE 2,838,648 2,665,853 3,035,194
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(0

(i)

(ifl

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, opening adjustments were
made as at 1 January 2018 to derecognise revenue from
construction activities that control were not yet transferred.
This has resulted in a decrease in trade receivables as at
that date (see Note 2(c)(ii)).

Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, opening adjustments were
made as at 1 January 2018 to recognise additional ECLs on
trade receivables (see Note 2(c)(i)).

At 31 December 2018, the amount of retentions receivable
from customers included in trade and bills receivables (net
of loss allowance) is RMB641.6 million (31 December 2017:
RMB1,062.6 million).

Except for retentions receivable (net of loss allowance) of
RMB223.2 million at 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: RMB454.7 million), all of the remaining trade and bills
receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

17

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

B RURRERRE (&)
Hiet:

0] AEBBER2018F1 A1 HERER
I3 5% B %5 s 2 2 BIJ 25 1.5 5% e B R B
TEIREAERIZE 5T o RIRFTERIZM A
ERE BRERTTEY - B
B2 M2

(i)  PAERANEEBR B 75 R S A RIS 15 5%
% > 1201841 A1 B{EH HI%)
B DU TR I 1 AR AR B
EERNEETBMEERA - &
BN E A E S E KRR
(RMI=E2(c)i)) °

(i)  PARANEIRR RS 2RI 9514 -
201841 A1 BIELERWIFAZE - BA
WHRE 5 RN EIINERE AR
K (RHEE20)()) °

201812 A31H » BT F &
B2 BERE IR RERER
(N EBEEB) RARKEM16EE
JL(2017512A31 8 : AR¥1,062.6
BETT) °

B 20184 12 31 A A R #223.2
A& (2017F12A831H: AR®
4547 A& ) EKIRE € (KR E
BEE) N ERFBESEKRZK
FEEBFEEIN —F AU o
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

17 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 17 BESERREBREVREREE)
Ageing analysis BRER AT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of HEREHR BRI REKE
trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice date and net B (MR EERE) FEE B HNRR
of loss allowance, is as follows: DT ¢
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
2018 F 2018 4 2017 F
12H31H 1H1H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTT ARBTT AR®TR

Within 6 months ~MEAA 1,150,098 863,620 933,087
More than 6 months but less HRE N EAE DR —F

than 1 year 190,413 175,562 202,024
More than 1 year HBiE—F 1,498,137 1,626,671 1,900,083

2,838,648 2,665,853 3,035,194

The Group generally requires customers to settle progress REBEBEESERTEIRIES HIERLE
billings and retentions receivable in accordance with EREREREKRZES - BEARE
contracted terms. Further details on the Group’s credit policy B (= B IA E U BE 2 I e = g
and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills receivable EAEERREE — SIS

are set out in Note 29(a). $29(a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBIERN - UARBAEN)
18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18 & ANRREMERK
RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYET T ARETT
(Note (i)
(i)
Prepayments for purchase of inventories BEGFEETENK AL 6)
(Note (i) 214,681 246,891
Prepayments and deposits for operating KERERNTR RS
leases 17,875 15,458
Prepayment for miscellaneous taxes HMERTE R 36,498 29,448
Deposits for construction contracts’ BEEREERELD
bidding and performance (Note (i) =e (B7a2 (i) 106,165 115,621
Deposits for purchase of forward BB RHRE A NiRe
aluminium contracts 9,013 5,518
Other deposits Hitizs 55,971 44,889
Receivable for disposal of property, HEWE  BE RRE
plant and equipment, land use rights THEREN DA
and assets classified as held for sale e EEERERGR 234,895 75,784
Derivative financial instruments: TESBTA :
— held as cash flow hedging instruments —BHEIRE RS T A - 1,638
— other derivatives —HMpHTAET A 55,451 54,517
Amounts due from the Controlling Ui 5 S B R 2 EL R I Y
Shareholder and the companies R RFIE (K172 (v)
under his control (Note (iv)) 6,719 18,111
Amounts due from non-controlling U & B IEIE RS e s
interests of the Group (Note (iv)) SKRIA (BT (iv) = 2,671
Others Hib 58,741 58,478
796,009 668,919
Less: loss allowance W R E (6,145) (5,077)
789,864 663,842
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHEHIN

UARE RERL)

18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii

(i)

(iv)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018.
Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

Included in the balance are prepayments of RMB3.8 million
at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: RMB3.8 million)
made to the companies under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder.

The balance represented deposits placed with customers
for contracts’ bidding and performance of contracts in
progress. The deposits will be released to the Group upon
the completion of the related bidding and contract work,
where applicable.

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

Except for amounts of RMB26.3 million at 31 December 2018
(81 December 2017: RMB10.6 million), all of the remaining
deposits, prepayments and other receivables are expected to

be recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

18 2% ANHRRHEMERR(E)

wizt

(i)

(i)

)

AEER2018F1 A1HEXERAR
BRI RS R 2ERISEO5R - IRIRFTIEIE
BBER % - EREMTTEY -
BRFERE2HME2C)

ZEESHBIENR2018F 12 A31 B A
R#38H8(2017F12A318 :
ARSI 8EET) M MZIERAR R
2 E) A RIE L TR R o

HEBEREE A RNE RRER
BRORZPXNNEE - ZEEE
R IERRAR A R T2 (RER)
FELREDALHE -

ZEFRAERELR 2 EAEEE

BR20185E 12 A31 B S EARKE
26.3BHB (201712 831H : AR

¥10.6 B&EJT) Hh

HBMAERSE

FEN R E TR ISR —F A
WE SR DT ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

19 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER CASH 19 FHERRASRBITHFRREMRER
FLOW INFORMATION &

(@) FERERBITHEREHE -

(@ Cash on hand and in bank comprise:

2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 £F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTIT
Cash on hand and in bank FHER® RIRITER 1,299,410 1,708,772
Time deposits with banks R1TEHTFR 403,341 96,819
Cash on hand and in bank in the EHFIBIRRAERF R
consolidated statement of FEBR S MIRITER
financial position 1,702,751 1,805,591
Less: restricted deposits to secure B EREESRELY
the performance and retentions R AREE AR 2R I
of construction contracts R (230,341) (96,819)
Less: restricted time deposits to B ERSRITE SR
secure the bank loan B 52 PR ) & HATF 5K (173,000) =
Cash and cash equivalents in the AHBRESRERTH
consolidated cash flow statement REe NEESEEY 1,299,410 1,708,772
The Group’s business operations in mainland China REEMFREAERAAR

BEtE - ARETITATERA
BOEE  ELPEARBNE
& X BT E i # 51 E E
FTARBR

are conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of funds out of mainland
China is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by
the PRC government.
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19 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER CASH 19 FEEAESRBOTERREMBE SR
FLOW INFORMATION (continued) &R (&)
(o)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (b)) ®BMEBEEBELEMNAGZHE
Amounts
due to the
Controlling
Shareholder
and the
Companies Restricted
under his time deposits
control Amounts to secure the
ERER dueto bank loan
RERS  third parties BETER Interest
Bankloans ~ HEWNAE  EA%EZrF  ERERA payable Total
ROER bi it 5B THEH EAHE 4%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AEETT ARETT AEETT AEETR AEETT
(Note 23) (Note 22) (Note22)  (Note 19()) (Note 22)
(Hi23) (Hit22) (Witzz) (i 19p) itz
At1 January 2018 RO18E125318 2,943,551 307 - - 2,936 2,949,558
Changes from financing HERLTELY
cash flows:
Proceeds fomnewbankand  FRR(IREMER
other oans oo 1,974,792 167,223 41,703 - - 28078
Repayment of bank oans ERBAER (2,565,697) - - - - [2565607)
Payments fortme epoststo  XTERRRUAER
secure the bank oan FOETRIER - - - (173,000) - (173,000)
Borrowing costs paid BREERA - - - = (168,344) (168,344)
Total changes from financing WERL S LT
cash fows (593,905) 167,223 44,708 (173,000 (16834 (126329
Other changes: Hfpgd:
Fxchange adjustment BN - k) - - - k)
Total borowing costs (Note 6 () EERALE (264 - - - - 178,027 178,027
At 31 December 2018 R018E12A318 2,349,646 170,326 41,703 (173,000) 7,619 2,396,204
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

1

19 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER CASH

19 FRESRBITEFRREMRER

FLOW INFORMATION (continued) &R (#E)
(b)  Recondiliation of liabilities arising from financing activities b BMETDEENBEZIHE
(continued) (%)
Advances
due to
the Controlling
Shareholder of
the Company
and his
subsidiaries
BAARF
ERERR R Interest
Bankloans  EHIBARA payable Total
RITER FE FERTFIS &3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETr ARETR
(Note 23) (Note 22) (Note 22)
(Hiz#23) (frat22) (frit2z)
At 1 January 2017 R2017%181H 3,560,000 3,290 4,102 3,567,392
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ RERSREELHNEE
Proceeds from new bank loans R TER eI 3,605,551 - - 3,605,551
Repayment of bank loans ERBTEN (4,222,000) = - (4,222,000
Net decrease in advances received from  WERAR R IR
the Controlling Shareholder of the RERBARER
Company and his subsidiaries R = (219 = (219)
Borrowing costs paid BAfEERE - - (170970) (170970)
Total changes from financing cash flows AR & REENS SR (616,449) (219) (170970) (787,638)
Other changes: Hit2%
Total borrowing costs (Note 6()) EENAER (/260 - - 169,804 169,804
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 831 R 2,943,551 3,0M 2,936 2,949,658
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(BRBHEERI  AAREABN)
20 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 20 SEARBELHEEE
2018
2018 &
RMB’000
AR®F T
At 1 January 2018 R20184F1 A1H =
Reclassified from property, ENOEEYE  BEREE
plant and equipment (Note 12) (Hiat 12) 145,968
Reclassified from lease prepayments (Note 13) BN EAENES (W 13) 220,235
Disposals k= (229,962)
At 31 December 2018 M20184F 12 A31 H 136,241

During 2018, Shenyang Yuanda has entered into a land
resumption agreement (the “Agreement”) with a third party in
respect of the disposal of certain land use rights and properties
of Shenyang Yuanda at a consideration of RMB550.0
million. The carrying amounts of these lease prepayments
and properties are RMB220.2 million and RMB144.6 million
(gross amount of RMB245.7 million and net of associated
government grant of RMB101.1 million), respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the disposal of lease prepayments
and properties with a carrying amount of RMB141.2 million
and RMB87.4 million has been completed according to
the schedule set in the Agreement, and the Group has
received RMB100.0 million out of the total consideration of
RMB330.0 million in relation to these assets. The remaining
lease prepayments and properties to be disposed of with a
carrying amount of RMB79.0 million and RMB57.2 million
(gross amount of RMB107.4 million and net of associated
government grant of RMB50.2 million) are reclassified to
“Assets classified as held for sale” as at 31 December 2018.

At 31 December 2018, the disposals of the above assets
classified as held for sale are still in progress, and the directors
of the Company expect the disposals to be completed within
one year.

20184 « EZIRAHE=FRHE
EIGIRARE T L fE AR R
iR (B - REAARE
5500 B8t - ZZEEMNEE R
WEEEED B AARK220285 8T
F1446BET(RBRBHARKE 2457
B & JT - R A B8 BT B A R
101.1 BETT) °

R2018F 12 A31 H ' BREEEAA
RE1MN2EBTEARKETAEE
TR ® RYEEREHZEIS
FrEITUALE  RASEE WA
ZEEELRREARKEIZ00BET
FEARE100.0B 8T ° 1R 20184F
12A318 ' REEBERARKE79.08
ETRARES7T 2 BB TR NER
ekl (BEAEARKE1074EE
7T HRABEBRA /AR 5027
EBL)ENHEER [ DBEABELEE
Ele

MN20185FE 12 A31H - H&E Lt A
EREREEENEETE - MARQ
RIESEEHHEBR—FRTK °
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - AAREREN)

21 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 21 BEZENRRENERE
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Trade payables for purchase of ENATHEEFE
inventories due to: BN
— Third parties —EH=7 1,250,594 1,746,425
— Companies under the control — SRR AR R
of the Controlling Shareholder EOF/NE! 2,986 4,268
1,253,580 1,750,693
Trade payables due to sub-contractors ERYBEHESEMNR 662,687 831,117
Bills payable ENEE 1,082,365 733,048
Financial liabilities measured at REESHR ARG 2R
amortised cost SRBE 2,998,632 3,314,858
All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be settled BB ZENARENERERN—
within one year or are repayable on demand. FRBEHARENREE -
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of HERSEHR  BEHRNRARENE
trade and bills payables, based on the maturity date, is as BIRE|EE MBREE AT T ¢
follows:
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Within 1 month or on demand —{E A AR EK 2,272,377 2,724,867
More than 1 month but less than 3 months  #B3:@—{& A8 R =1E A 270,049 193,096
More than 3 months HBE=1EA 456,206 396,895

2,998,632 3,314,858
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAN - AR RER)

22 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

22 RSB R EMEMNRK

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBT T
Payables for staff related costs &SI B THERARK AR 119,157 122,152
Payables for transportation and eS8 B M ARBR R 2
insurance expenses 45,215 37,404
Payables for interest expenses FERT A BB 2 7,619 2,936
Payables for construction and BERBEYE -
purchase of property, plant and R B K 5tk K
equipment and land use rights 308 AR R 40,426 39,073
Deposits from sub-contractors HEEENRRE 27,005 38,078
Amounts due to third parties JEREE = 508 41,703 -
Deposits from suppliers for HERZ AR E RIRE
contracts’ bidding and performance NEXR® 20,890 244,571
Amounts due to the Controlling Shareholder fE{#% Hxﬂxi SZEPEHE
and the companies under his control A RIRIFRIR
— Non-interest bearing (Note (j)) —Net B (H1E () 3,103 3,071
— Interest bearing (Note (i) — &R (KT ) 167,223
Others Hih 40,183 38,158
Financial liabilities measured RS ARG 2/
at amortised cost ca =k 512,524 525,443
Payables for miscellaneous taxes RS HERR 22,465 34,995
Derivative financial instruments: TSR TH :
—held as cash flow hedging instruments —BHERS RS TN T A - 13
— other derivatives —HMOTETA 31,343 6,332
Provision for outstanding legal claims REMERRERE 25,948 25,023
592,280 591,806
Notes: Htst -
()  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have 0] ZHEBEER T EREEE
no fixed terms of repayment. B o

HK#T}AIEE%?KW &.)—\E%‘J D+
BER—FARER -

(i) The amounts are unsecured, with fixed interest rate and (i)
repayable within one year.

BR720185F 12 A31 HRARK9.0B
B (2017612 A318 : ARK 4.1
BET)NEEN  FERTRIR
recognised in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on HMEMNZFEBHER —FERNEEIRN
demand. BaRERIIZERKEE -

Except for amounts of RMB9.0 million at 31 December 2018
(31 December 2017: RMB4.1 million), all of the accrued
expenses and other payables are expected to be settled or
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(BBHEBEN - AAREREN)

23 BANKLOANS

The Group’s short-term bank loans are analysed as @ AEBNEHRITERS TN
follows: T 8
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYT T ARETTT
Secured by property, plant and AR E Y - BB R
equipment and land use rights SR DA e -t (55 PR
of the Group (Note 23(c)) YRR (M5t 23(c)) 300,000 300,000
Guaranteed by the Controlling FRIZR PR ER Ko Bk S2 EL o Y
Shareholder and/or a company NEER
under his control 750,000 1,032,000
Guaranteed by a third party M= HER(KE23a)
(Note 23(d) 200,000 -
Secured by property, plant and ST AR AR SR A I Y 8 B Y
equipment and land use rights of ME - BB REREN
and guaranteed by a company (5 R RV EHE IR 2
under the control of the B 52 PR AR AR R 2
Controlling Shareholder A Bl E R 411,792 400,000
Unguaranteed and unsecured AR R BRI 50,000 250,000
1,711,792 1,982,000
Add: current portion of long-term o REBSRTTEFRAYBNER
bank loans (Note 23(b)) 5 (Hfst23(b)) 576,085 240,000
2,287,877 2,222,000

23 RITEX
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23 BANK LOANS (continued) 23 MITERE)
() The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as b)) AEBHRBRITERIFTN
follows: I
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Secured by property, plant and AR BRI - BB R
equipment, land use rights and & TR E
assets classified as held for sale of ~ AiF{EHEEE
the Group (Note 23(c)) VB8 (M12£ 23(c)) 480,000 961,551
Guaranteed by a company under SRR A SR A I A )
the control of the Controlling EREAREBTEHETR
Shareholder and pledged by K& 5 MR VB 1R
time deposits and trade receivables  (477%23(c))
of the Group (Note 23(c)) 157,854 —
637,854 961,551
Less: current portion of long-term B RESR1TE R A BN ER
bank loans (Note 23(a)) &5 (W3 230) (576,085) (240,000)
61,769 721,551
The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as AEBMNRBRITERNER
follows: BRAT
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Within 1 year or on demand —FANIZENR 576,085 240,000
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNR 61,769 480,000
After 2 years but within 3 years MERB=FA - 241,551

637,854 961,551
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23 BANK LOANS (continued)

(©)

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate carrying value of
the property, plant and equipment, land use rights and
assets classified as held for sale pledged for the Group’s
bank loans is RMB843.2 million (31 December 2017:
RMB1,050.9 million).

At 31 December 2018, the carrying value of the time
deposits and trade receivables pledged for the Group’s
bank loans are RMB173.0 million and USD161.9 million,
respectively.

At 31 December 2018, the short-term bank loan is
guaranteed by a third party, where a company under
the control of the Controlling Shareholder provides a
counter-guarantee to this third party, and the Group
pledged its right to collect proceeds amounting to
RMB450.0 million for disposal of property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and assets classified as held
for sale to this third party.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to RMB1,140.0 million (31 December 2017:
RMB2,991.6 million) were utilised to the extent of
RMB1,140.0 million (31 December 2017: RMB2,943.6
million).

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the loans would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
29(b). At 31 December 2018, none of the covenants
relating to the bank loans had been breached (31
December 2017: None).

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARKRERL)

23 RITEXR(E)

(©)

R2018F 12 A31H » M A&
ERRITEREERODE -
B K& L ERAERS
EAREFHEEAENREKRAE
BANREE843.2HE T (2017 F
128318 : AR¥1,05098 &
JT) °

MR2018F12 A31H » miAEE
RITEREBHRNEHERLE
SEWFHEmEI IAAR

1730 E LK 161.9B8EE
ﬁo

R2018F 12 A31H » /& B4R
TERBE=ZFER  mMXE
BB ERIE S — R AR % %
=HEBERLENE  BE

wE - THMERERDER
REHEEENMEREBAR
#450.0 B BITHERN T2 =
Eo

R2018F 12 A31H » REEH
BITRERBARKE1,1400E 8
JL(2017F 12 8318 : AR
2991.68E87T) EFRAARK
1,140.0 B&7T(2017 5 12 A 31
H: AR¥29436HET) °

REBWSE TRITER KA
ERHESBEEITIVNERE
PR HZER AT IEE - AR
EEERERE  QERERE
BTHEBARE ANEBEEER
FERERNE—FFBEIHR
Bf 5E29(b) © 720184 12 A 31
B #EEZRTMAMERETER
BN (20175128318 -
=) o
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(% REHERIN - LAARKE AEA)
24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 24 LIRALERS
On 10 April 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the directors of the M2013F4 A10B ([EFRMBEH]) - &
Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award NEIFBFRM— AR 2Bt 8l (AR
Scheme”) as a mean of rewarding and retaining certain HigENETEl ) - {ERIEE R B ARE
employees of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for BETEE  URABAEEH#E B
further development with the Group. A trust has been set up BRS|IEEAE - B AE BN EE
for the purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme. FTEIRKAZSRE ©
Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may purchase RIBRR (D HEB)=T 2] - % =sER] LAEA
shares in the Company from the Stock Exchange with cash ANEBIRENIES @ RESPTES AN
contributed by the Group, and to hold such shares until they REMRD  UARFEZEROEEZ
are vested. ERDEEB AL
The directors of the Company may, from time to time, at its ARARESA TR ATRISTEAE
sole and absolute discretion, select any employee of the Group EEmE 8 (H RE T ERTE
(other than those classes of employees specifically excluded HHZZEREERIN) 25 5=
as stated in the Share Award Scheme) for participation BIstEl - A REE AR R AR E
in the Share Award Scheme and grant such number of BlEER T EBEE R GD - A
awarded shares to any selected employee of the Group at nil NalEEFERE B EENI D EINE
consideration. The directors of the Company are entitled to A (BN ER R EE RS AE
impose any conditions (including a period of continued service BV ERRE ) ©
within the Group after the award) with respect to the vesting of
the awarded shares.
The Share Award Scheme came into effect on the Adoption A% 1n 22BN T I B4R B HAAE R » LA K
Date, and shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth AR A TER B E 4R UE « () AR HR
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (i) such date FEHEBAEER  R(i)AARESER
of early termination as determined by the directors of the RIERPR B -
Company.
Details of the shares held under the Share Award Scheme are R SR ET 25 A RO IS0 T ¢
set out below:
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 4
No. of No. of
shares Value shares Value
RGEAE BE fx{nErE BE
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR AR%®TT T ARETT
At 1 January and R1A1EK
31 December 12 H31H 587 210 587 210




AP R AT B R

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - AAREREN)

/4 ‘ Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 24 LIRAZEERS ()
(continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no ordinary HZE2018F 2017412 A31 B IEF
shares held under the Share Award Scheme were awarded to E - BERERNERTEFENYT
or vested by any employee of the Group. BRFETAEBEMAESSKES -

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25 EHEIIERIRRARETEH
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@ Movements of current taxation in the consolidated @ AHYEARR KR KRB ER 1
statement of financial position are as follows: FEnT
2018 2017
20184 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
(Note)
(H152)
Income tax payable at 1 January ®1 A1 BRER
(Note 2(c)) FriSHi (A 2(c) 197,379 205,086
Exchange adjustments b 5 AR (513) 1,841
Provision for income tax on the F A h T ERTFE
estimated taxable profits for BIFTIS R 1
the year (Note 7(a)) (K15t 7(3) 17,922 32,364
Income tax paid during the year FRNEFTEH (12,675) (27,763)
Income tax refund FIEHRE 21,971 -
Income tax payable at 31 December 712 A 31 B&IER FriSHt 224,084 211,528
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 Hiet - AREBN2018F1 A1H H
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods IR EFBIRR B A R & XERI 5
chosen, comparative information is not restated. See 1555 & B BS B 16 3R &5 2Bl 55
Note 2(c). 9k o IRIRFTRIBMIBE S

% HLBRERTTE A
RIS R2BRTRE2(0) °
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(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

25 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

25 EOHMBRRERABRES ()

(0) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) EERAECHEZERAE:

K& FR B AR R R AR
MBREEERBBENHARID &

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position and the movements during the year are as FAZBOT -
follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related
depreciation,
and Loss allowance
government on trade Remeasurement
grants and and other of the fair value
related receivables of derivative
depreciation and contract  Provision for financial
Unusedtax ~ BEFERENR assets  wananties and instruments
losses WESHE  Write down of BAR  legalclaims EfitE
AR URBARE  inventores  ZfEURH fBR  fiESMIA Total
i) i NEERE TEHE HERE  EREEE WAAEE it
Deferred tax arising from: RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB000
RPSIREEE HEERA: ARETTL ARETTL ARETT ARETTL ARETTL ARETT ARETTL
At1 January 2017 Rt7E1A1A 78210 27,83 2642 213,46 06,362 3632 392,128
Exchange adjustments B 5% 1422 - - (145) 43 - 1720
(Chargea)/credied fo te AGERER (F1)/
consoldated statement o A
proftoross ote 7 (14.410) 6237 (109 1771 1744 7889 59821
Charged toresenves (ore 100) R fRHIR i 100) - - - - - (33%9) (33%)
At 31 December 2017 ROTE12A31R %22 21,59 1,563 331,02 68,519 (7,584 450,34
Impact oninfa applcationof B REREEE LR
IFRS 15 (Note 2 ESHE (et 20 9070 - - - - - 9070
Impacton it applcation B R RS
of FRS 9 Note 261 E0RMEE W0 - - - 143522 - - 143522
At 1 January 2018 NI8E1A1H 44.29 21599 1,563 474544 68,519 (7,584) 602,933
Exchange adustments Eisg 31 - - 8 319 - 8
(Charged)reded fo e RAKBRRR(R)/
consolidated statement of A7)
proft o loss (Note 7(8) (26,302 (2,150) (817) (19.224) (1,969) 2387 (48,069)
Charged toresenes (Note 1) REEMIR M 100) - - - - - 404 404
At31 December 2018 R018E12A31H 18,381 19,449 14 455,328 66,875 4,793) 555,086
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25 SRR RANTER (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) EEIAELEHBEEENREE:
(continued) (%)
Note: Upon the initial application of IFRS15 and IFRS 9, Bt - B &R FE P B R B s R s 2
the Group has recognised deferred tax assets on the BIIZ5 15 55k K2 B B B 75 i 45 2
unused tax losses arising from the derecognisition of RISk AEBEERER
the revenue from construction activities that were not BEUEER R AW BEE
yet considered as transferred and of the additional ERNEERINRTEERN
credit loss recognised under the ECL model (see Note RE A TIE 518 R AR 1R 78 B
2(c)). EABKERNEMEHAE
KZBEFRIEAE (LM
2()) °
(©) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and liabilities (€ BFHBERREAEREET
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial HIAEEMB R -
position:
31 31
December 1 January December
2018 2018 2017
20184 2018 F 2017
12A31H 1H1H 12 H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARETT ARKETT
(Note) (Note)
(Bizt) (Hzt)

Deferred tax assets recognised A& GBS AR & A

in the consolidated statement REELEHIEEE
of financial position 558,844 606,904 454,312
Deferred tax liabilities recognised A& BT AR 7 A
in the consolidated statement REELEFIHA E
of financial position (2,858) (8,971) (3,971)
555,986 602,933 450,341
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 Wi - AEBEFERRFIFELE
using the cumulative effect method and adjusted the IR FEFA B B 7 R 5 22 R 9
opening balances as at 1 January 2018. 5% N BB B 75 & 2RI 28 15

SR FAEEN20184E1 A1 HEY
HR YR o
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(BrREEAN - AR RER)

25

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
2(r), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences arising from certain subsidiaries of the
Group of RMB1,046.5 million at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: RMB806.4 million), as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. Except for the amount of RMB529.0 million
which will not expire under the relevant tax legislation, the
remaining unused tax losses at 31 December 2018 will
expire on or before 31 December 2038.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2018, temporary differences relating
to the retained profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC amounted to RMB2,392.5 million
(81 December 2017: RMB2,733.1 million), of which no
deferred tax liabilities in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these profits was
provided as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it
is probable that such profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

25 EHPBRRRANAER (&)

REREIEHIAEE

RIEM FE2(r) FTE & 5T BUR
ANE B I K H20184F 12 A 31
HEASBEETHEBARES
B AR ) A A TEES 18 e T R
=8 ARK1,04658 & T
(201712 831H: A R ¥
806.4 A B L) RELEIAE
E RESAEBEHKEEER
M EEBRARRTA g E ERTR
A AT B R &S -
BARES0BEE TS E
EEAMBERTER  B8TR
2018412 A 31 HM AR BRI
BB 20384 12 A 31 H kA
A JE R °

AEREIERIAAE

MR20184F12 A31H » A
SRR RN BR RN
REBFENEREZERARE
2,392.5 B & T(2017 12 A 31
BH: AR¥27331HE&T) @ &
HR B B 9 R 5% S5 N
B IBH RS 1B B E &
% RER AN A B 6 5
BARMKRERK MEEE
EZEF BTN RR
RIEDIK °
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PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES 26

At 1 January ®m1A1H

Exchange adjustments bE 5, B

Additional provisions made EEHEREINE

Provisions utilised BEEREE

At 31 December ®12 A31H

Less: amounts included as B RS AR B IEE
current liabilities at the end mEBEANNEEE

of the reporting period

Under the terms of the Group’s construction contracts with its
customers, the Group will rectify any defects arising within one
to five years from the date of completion of the construction
contracts, as required by industry regulations in respective
jurisdictions and depending on the terms negotiated with each
customer. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of
the expected settlement under these construction contracts
in respect of construction contracts completed within one
to five years prior to the end of the reporting period. The
amount of provision takes into account the Group’s recent
claim experience and is only made where a warranty claim is
probable.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEIEIN - UARK BERL)
RIGEE

2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
309,395 273,429
(1,409) 741
83,093 91,196
(87,341) (55,971)
303,738 309,395
(63,365) (52,277)
240,373 257,118

REASBEERPIIVHEESR
3R ARERERENE FDAER
MITERMPIMRER AT RERTFE
BEVRK - B IEEAREESRTT
BRI —ERFNEEARRE
It BB ERRI —EREFA
TRHNZEARMBRBEZFEEER
ML R BN REDT MR - &
e RAREI N B REER -
WERA A gL LR IRIERARETETEE
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@)

27 BX - #ERERE

Movements in components of equity @@ BRI DRE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REENE HEDSSHEKI D
balances of each component of the Group’s #Y B 47 K2 BR A% A5 e O S BR B0
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated SEHEREFHERP  c FEYERE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in 4R HA R AN A B A 51 48 2 4B AR
the Company’s individual components of equity between o E B FIFEIIT ¢
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Shares
held under
share award
Share Share scheme Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium  BRERGRE reserve loss Total
i ReE EMERG B ZiER h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETT ARETn  ARETT  ARETn  ARETRH
(Note 27(c)) ~ (Note 27(0)fi) ~ (Note 27(cl)fi)) ~ (Note 27(d)fv)
(Witong)  (WEomgy)  (Wetenom)  (Wetzno))
At1 January 2017 R2017E151R 519,723 574,047 (210) 36,824 (69,391) 1,070,993
Changes in equity for 2017: 2017 £ 2 RS :
Loss for the year FRER = = = = (16,399) (16,399)
Other comprehensiveincome~~ Etb 2% & - - - (64,538) - (64,538)
Total comprehensive ncome 2 EKi£EE = = = (64,538) (16,399) (80,987)
At31 December 2017 R0 124318 519723 574,047 210 7,714) 7579 990056
At 1 January 2018 R2018F151R 519,723 574,047 (210) (27,714) (75,790) 990,056
Changes in equity for 2018: 2018 2R 2E) :
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (3,289 (3,289
Other comprehensive income  Et2EliE - - - (40,882) - 40,882)
Total comprenensiveincome 2 ENHEE = - - (40,882) (3,283) (44,165)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12831A 519,723 574,047 (210) (68,596) (719,073) 945,891

Note: The Group, including the Company, has initially
applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. There
has been no impact on the Company’s individual
components of equity.

M - AREE (BIEARR) R 2018
F1 1 B &k mERREBERE
R RIS 1557 & B S B A%
HELERIF 5 - HEANA
W M BB AR I I R

20,
2
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 27

(b)

(@)

Dividends

(i)

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of

the Company attributable to the year

The directors of the Company do not recommend

the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$NIl).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders

of the Company attributable to the previous

financial year, approved and paid during the

year

No final dividend in respect of the previous financial

year has been approved during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$NIl).

Share capital

U)

Issued share capital:

Ordinary shares, issued
and fully paid:

At 1 January and
31 December

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARKRERL)

BX - RERKRE(E)
b)) BE

() BERFAMNEMELR
BB B

RATESEZDIKTE
Z2018%F 12 A31 HIL&F
ERR B (2017 F : T
7T) e

(i) BERL—MBRFENE
FELTRERE - ER
FEEHERIRNM

REZE2018412 A 31 H
WAL B £ — BB
& B R Hi B B (2017 4F

T -

i) BETIRA:

2018 2017
2018 2017
No. of No. of
shares shares
RBEE BEIE
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR AR%TZR TR ARETT
TEk - 2ET
RER
M A1BR
12A31H 6,208,734 519,723 6,208,734 519,723

At 31 December 2018, 587,000 ordinary shares
are held by the Company under the Share Award
Scheme (31 December 2017: 587,000 ordinary

shares) (see Note 24).

(i) 2018128318 &
N AR R (D 2Bt &I FF
A587,0000% & BA% (2017
%12 A31H : 587,000 %
Tmps) (RHRE24) ©
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration paid for
shares held under the Share Award Scheme.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the difference
between the carrying values of the non-
controlling interests acquired by the Group and
the considerations paid; (i) the surplus/deficit
of the carrying values of the controlling equity
interests in subsidiaries under common control
disposed of over the considerations received; (iii)
the difference between the carrying values of the
controlling equity interests in subsidiaries acquired
and the considerations paid under the Group’s
reorganisation completed in 2010; and (iv) the
difference between the carrying value of the net
assets acquired and the consideration paid for the
acquisition of a business under common control in
2012.

27 BX RERRE(E)

EHENMEE KRB

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

B niRR

AR RERIHSE
ERNTNEF 225 (19614
B=IEAR - EERE R
21) BB 34 KEEE o

1R 1% B {7 BE W &t B4 A B
3

&R RIRIE R D 22 Bt
AN THORE -

ot (i 08

H A E4E () AR E AT
BRI ERAREED
MR EZENZEE (i)
BEHEXEREHMNEA
] A 122 AR AR R ) AR TED (B R
BRREHERG B4
(iii) T B BT /B 2 B Y 2 A%
MRERRE A AR IR AR
R 20104F Fepk AR S Y
REZEANZE : RivVR
2012 F YIS RIE HI 2
BT FEERMmER
TRREZENEZE -
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association of the
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC,
these subsidiaries are required to set up certain
statutory reserves, which are non-distributable.
The appropriation to these reserves is at discretion
of the directors of the respective subsidiaries.
The PRC statutory reserves can only be utilised
for predetermined means upon approval by the
relevant authority.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
regulations, with effect on 1 January 2012, a
reserve for production safety is required to be
set up and to be appropriated at a fixed rate
on the revenue of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC. The reserve can be utilised
for expenses or capital expenditures incurred in
connection with production safety.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into
the presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(u).

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in the fair
value of hedging instruments used in cash flow
hedges in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in Note 2(f).

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARKRERL)

27 BX RERRE(E)

(@

EEER B (F)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

PE L E R

RIBA K B B LAY
i /B8 X B Y 4B A = A2 AR
8] ZEHEARIARY
AT AR DK #)E E
o MZERHEN DR
EMBEBRRNEZTRER
E o MEAEREERR
TR AR LR TR
EERE -

BEoN - RIEE 2012F1 A
1 H B A XAy 18 A R A
] NEERPEIKA
B AR ERSIRE X
HEE L PIR L T2 E
e o ZEE I RESN
ERREEEMEEMNR
XA EARFRK o

B R 5 il

FE S 5 LR L 51
BT BR B 2T E A
BAERNELE - K
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(€)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
the Group defines adjusted net debt as total debt (which
includes bank loans and trade and bills payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity other than amounts recognised in equity
relating to cash flow hedges, less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During 2018, the Group’s strategy was to maintain
the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at an acceptable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to equity
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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/4 ‘ Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 27 EBX - RERRE(E)
€) Capital management (continued) e BAREE(E)
The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 R 20184F K 20174 12 31 H
December 2018 and 2017 was as follows: RSB KA FEREE R
L= -

2018 2017

2018 2017 &

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Current liabilities: mBBE :
Trade and bills payables = A NE S 2,998,632 3,314,858
Bank loans RITER 2,287,877 2,222,000
5,286,509 5,536,858
Non-current liabilities: FERHAE
Bank loans RITER 61,769 721,551
Total debt BIETS 5,348,278 6,258,409
Less: cash on hand and in bank o FEEIR S NERTTER (1,702,751) (1,805,591)
Adjusted net debt RARFER 3,645,527 4,452,818
Total equity Ry 3y 2,708,127 3,198,266
Less: hedging reserve W DR = (1,221)
Adjusted capital KRAREAR 2,708,127 3,197,045
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio & /FEKEG AL R 135% 139%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are AR R s E A A I B A R84

subject to externally imposed capital requirements. KON FEINE) B AR E R o
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EARBHAIRES
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRI S S SRR E M I D BRI
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material related S RESRIN - AEBRFERNEILNE
party transactions entered into by the Group during the year RN ZESAT o

are set out below.

(@) Transactions with the Controlling Shareholder and the (@ BHEIERBRRRZEZESNAAF
companies under his control H3Z 5
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETRT

Purchase of raw materials B RME 500 1,277
Net increase in interest HERARSE T WA AT B

bearing advances received I NNFEE

from related parties 167,223 -
Net decrease in non-interest T REsE RS

bearing advances granted to BB A FEE

related parties 11,392 -
Net increase in non-interest R T WA TS S

bearing advances received BT ANF R

from related parties - 1,125
Further details on guarantees provided by related parties RaBs 7 TE AR B IR 1T B IR A B (R
for the Group’s bank loans are disclosed in Notes 23(a), B — S IB R EE23(a) © 23(b) &

23(b) and 23(d). 23(d) 155 o
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the directors of the
Company as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits SEEISSEER
Retirement schemes contributions RIRFTEIE R

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note
B(b)).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@  Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables and contract
assets. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents, bills receivables
and derivative financial assets is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
high credit standing, for which the Group considers to
have low credit risk.

28

29

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARBAERL)

BEXRBLRS (&)

(b) EEEEAE B

AEEFZEBEASNETMH -
BRAMESHENARRES

SATRIFIEWT
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

8,479 8,246
234 241
8,713 8,487

FMRBEEER[EIRA] K
G ET R

MHEEREEREMTANDIAE
=]

AEBASZNBEEBBIEPEEN
EE -  nEe AXRLEERR -

TXE AR AR N ZEF R LA
SEERNEEZZRARNMEER
EEBRRIED -

@ FERER

EERBEXZHEERES
MEEMERAKERZRH
BERZRER AEENEEE
REZHFANEZEBUARE
REE - AKREXRERE KR
EHFEERE  BUREBRITE
EREENEERRER  F
RRGUFHRAEERR/E
ESEEFMBRNRITR SR
&
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Except for the guarantee letters given by the Group
as set out in Note 31(a), the Group does not provide
any other guarantees which would expose the Group
to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in Note 31(a).

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At 31 December 2018
and 2017, there are no significant concentrations of
credit risk through exposure to individual customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. The Group
generally requires customers to settle progress billings
and retentions receivable in accordance with contracted
terms and other debts in accordance with agreements.
Except for retentions receivable, trade receivables and
contract assets for contract work are considered past
due once billings have been made and revenue has
been recognised, respectively. Retention terms of one
to five years may be granted to customers for retentions
receivable. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets as at 31 December
2018:

Current (not past due) mE) (RmEp)
Less than 6 months past due  #1H3 7 6 @ A
More than 6 months but less 1 HAEE A 6 {E A

BAR1EF
BAES—F

than 1 year past due
More than 1 year past due

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEREIN - UARBAERL)

29 B¥EREEREMIBENAAE
B (&)

(@)

EERR &)

RABURREREE(Z)

AEBIZEE ML A B H R
FEZFEREMERBLN
CHABEIRETEARE
EZEREE BRNAKEZ
BEEEFRERLERTE
BEPDHBTNEABRERAZ
2 REBMRESE ZER
BRELIEXASETREFPE
RzEE—TED -

TREERBEAREEN20184F
12A31 BB SR WFHKRER
BEMBERZEERRRES

EREBEXZER :
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEEE HERHEE EERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARETT AR®ETT
6.8% 362,041 24,699
7.2% 1,644,602 118,916
8.8% 557,780 49,231
36.2% 5,117,185 1,852,226
26.6% 7,681,608 2,045,072

BHEREREBEBEIFHER
EIEQREL - ZFLEXET
AR R E W B ERE D
B2 B B AT R
AEBEH EYHR 2 ERFHA
ZEENRBRZEMER
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Comparative information under IAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence
of impairment (see Note 2(j)(i) — policy applicable prior
to 1 January 2018). At 31 December 2017, trade and
bills receivables of RMB1,713.1 million were individually
determined to be impaired. The aging analysis of trade
and bills receivables that were neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired was as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

Less than 6 months past due

More than 6 months but less
than 1 year past due

More than 1 year past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to bills receivable from the issuing banks and
retentions receivable within retention terms and from
customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

AR F

BEEAREEREMIANDAE
B(#&)

(@)

BERI8 B TR Rk (B

BN efEA
BB EABIKAF

EERR (&)

B E s EAEIMM TR
BEH

R201841 A1 HAT - JHIEEE
EEHRBE . FERE (R
F2()()— 201841 A1 BAlE
Bz BT gMER - 12017
F12A31H ' BHERBFAR
W1, 7131 BEETEBET AR
B WRAEFENEFTER
WERNE Z R R ERER
HBRER DATZA T -

2017

2017

RMB’000

AREFTT

238,191
1,076,110

2,244,865

2,797,084

BR 2R 780 50 7 J8 R {1 A R MKk
BITRITVERERE LB MR
B HIR e B R R 2 AR R
REETPEHELNES -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Comparative information under IAS 39 (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of customers that have a good
track record with the Group. These receivables mainly
relate to construction projects either in progress or
at final inspection stage. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
iS necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of

trade receivables and contract assets during the year is
as follows:

Balance at 31 December 2017

under IAS 39 20175 12 A 31 B#Y4&AER
Impact on initial application of EpNElE s 3 e
IFRS 9 (Note 2(c)())) SRR E ([T 2(c))

Balance at 1 January M1 A1 BRI

Exchange adjustment HE 5, 8 BE
Amounts write-off during the year F R ) & 58

Impairment losses recognised
during the year (Note (i)
Impairment losses written-back FAREREEBE

during the year

Balance at 31 December

W12 A 31 B4R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrAEEREIN - UARBARERL)

29 BF¥EREEREMIBENAAE
B (&)

(@)

RIZEFR &R 393N

FARCHERBERRE (A )

EERR &)

EPREs EREIMATHLL
BEH(E)

B aHE AR E B YR S
TEAREEARFERLED
EPHEME - ZERYHKEEH
REZANZERERERZ
SETIRAAM - RIBBELR
EEERSBARZSEHRE
HRERE RARGEEER
WEEANES  BZEEHRD
WAR QA DD - REBE W
B SRR A TR -

FRABEMEZEREFEERE

EREERERESH T
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
1,474,974 1,029,606
604,352 =
2,079,326 1,029,606
8,401 (17,470)
(232,670) =
211,432 515,273
(21,417) (52,435)
2,045,072 1,474,974
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Comparative information under IAS 39 (continued)

Note:

(i) The impairment losses recognised during the year are
contributed to the origination of new trade receivables
and contract assets net of those settled and the
increase in days past due.

Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed by the Group,
which includes the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on current rates at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest dates the Group can be required to pay:

4

BEEAREEREMIANDAE
B(#&)

(@)

SERR (&)

B E s EAEIMM TR
BEH(E)

HiaE -

) FARAESEIRDREBEERER
MESRWHREREE (0
BREAEE) WEEKEHH
SRR

MEE AR

AEESTERYHIMA &
ERAEESRNENRENER
EXmEEBREH R  AE
BHRRERERERERDE
EHREREETEELENE
o ARERE 55 RN &
BREETESRBBERETM
MAEBRERE  UmeHEE
HERPRDHESHE -

TRALRAKEFEITES B
BERTESREBEER RS Y
REEENBRTARZIHA -
DENRBRIFFRRASRE (B
EERA R XFHEHFER
Rk (HBFBH X)) LS HmE
HIFAE AMBRTHE) RA%
EFENFHNKFBHREDL
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 FEEKREEREMIANAAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) () mBETRER ()
2018
0185
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BEFERR SR
More than 1 year More than Carrying
Within 1 year but lessthan 2 years but less amount at
or on demand 2years than 3 years 31 December
-£R A% BBME Tota  R12A31A
JEEX BOWWE BHR=F szt HIREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Trade and bills payables BT RENER 2,998,632 - 5 2,998,632 2,098,632
Accrugd expenses and IR AT R R
other payables measured R RE (T
at amortised cost 512,524 - - 512,524 512,524
Bank loans RTER 2,351,454 62,661 - 2414115 2,349,646
2018
20185
Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
ARFERRL (R /KA
More than More than
Within 1 year  1yearbutless 2years but less
or on demand than 2 years than 5 years
—£R BB-F BBmF Total
HEER BHYRME BHREE - H)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR AR%TT AR%TR AR%TR
Derivatives settled gross: BEENAETAES
Other forward foreign exchange ~ EftizHISNEA L)
contracts (Note 29(a)i): (Brz290))
- outflow — it (1,015,758) (651,056) (221,755) (1,888,569)
~ inflow —mA 1,022,583 664,830 226,210 1,913,623
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 HBREREERERTIANOAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (#E)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) () mBECRER (&)
2017
N17F
Contractual undiscounted cash outfow
ARAERR SR
More than 1 year More than Carrying
Within 1 year butlessthan 2 years but less amount at
or on demand 2 years than 3 years 31 December
—EpR BE—F BEME Total R12A31A
JREX BORAE BIR=F &t HEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEETR ARBTT ARETR AEETT ARRTTC

Trade and bills payables BARMTRENEE 3314858 - - 3314858 3,314,858
Accrued expenses and IR ARG 2 RS
other payables measured % REMER
at amortised cost 525,443 - - 525,443 525,443
Bank loans BIER 2,293,866 497,594 244,559 3,036,019 2,943 551
2017
017%

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow

ARAMRBRS (RH),/ KA

More than More than
Within 1 year 1yearbutless 2 years but less
or on demand than 2 years than 5 years
—5R Bh—F EBWE Total
HEEK BARRIE BAREE h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT

Derivatives settled gross: BREEMAETREE:
Forward foreign exchange contracts #{EB 48 Him T A4
held as cash flow hedging RHNERH
instruments (Note 29(d)\(): (Ht290)) :
~ outflow — it (47,855) - = (47,855)
- inflow —RA 49,508 - - 49,508
Other forward foreign exchange  EEEISNEASA
contracts (Note 29(0)i): (Wi 290)) -
— outflow =i (1,243,184) (596,282) (286,240) (2,125,706)

- inflow —RA 1,285,575 603,436 285,816 2,174,827
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(©)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s
interest rate risk arises primarily from interest bearing
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting
period:

Fixed rate borrowings: BEEH=EE

Bank loans FATER

Interest bearing advances W ET S AR
received from related parties

Variable rate borrowings:  ¥EIFIZEE

Bank loans FITER

Total borrowings E-E

Fixed rate borrowings BEFREEEEE
as a percentage of BEANL

total borrowings

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

BEEREEREMIANDIAE

MERERESBRTANAAE
1B 3 R RIR & 5 B T 35 I R
SBMRBORR - AEBEH
MEEBRETEXRAFEEE -
123 B R N B TE ) K A
EEIRSCARBEAZRESR
ENERR LD A BENEE

PSR

TRFMAEEEENR
EHREFREE

2017
17F

Effective

interest

rate

BIRM=
% RMB'000
ARBTT

4.19% 1,872,000

n/a -

4.04% 1,071,551

2,943,551

29
B(#E)
€ FIEER
i o
(i)
2018
20185
Effective
interest rate
BRF=
% RMB’000
ARBTR
5.76% 1,190,000
4.28% 167,223
4,73% 1,159,646
2,516,869
54%

64%
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after tax and the Group’s retained
profits of approximately RMB9.9 million (2017:
approximately RMB9.1 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied
to remeasure those non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk at the end of
the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expenses of such
a change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2017.

29 B¥EREEREMIENAAE

B(#&)

(€ FIxRREkE )

(i)

HBES N

2018412 A31H » &
FHF R EE B, R
1001E £ % - AT A HAtb
AEREERFTE  KRE
BB fE kA E R
BREE D RIR D, 1N
AR 9EE L(2017
F:HARKOIEE
JT) °

EXHBRESITBTA
S B M EFERRE R
BN E ) - BRERFIE
R EE RN REHARTIE
BEERUEFRGTERS
EiFfE B AEER TS
HIRA R IR REF R R
BEIENTESR T E o ¥
REER T2 AERIRB
FMENEBTERE AR
EEFHNERFAZNFE
b2 T UAhET - BURXE
DT TH3ZEA 2017 FHERIHY
BEAEELT o
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
revenue from and costs incurred for contract work,
purchases of imported materials which give rise to
receivables, payables, inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group, and cash balances that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
USD, Euro, SGD, AUD, GBP, CHF, Japanese Yen
(“dPY"), MYR, CAD, RMB, HK$, Qatar Riyal (‘QAR”),
Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) and RUB.

A significant portion of the Group’s business is overseas
construction contracts, and these contracts are
generally settled in currencies other than RMB. The
Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts to
minimise its exposure to currency risk arising therefrom.

(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions

The Group hedges portion of its estimated foreign
currency exposure in respect of highly probable
forecast revenue from overseas construction
contracts.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(M

Hedges of foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions (continued)

The Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to manage its currency risk until the
settlement date of foreign currency receivables or
payables. The Group designates those forward
exchange contracts as hedging instruments in
cash flow hedges and does not separate the
forward and spot element of a forward exchange
contract but instead designates the forward
exchange contract in its entirety in a hedging
relationship. Correspondingly, the hedged item is
measured based on the forward exchange rate.

The Group determines the existence of an
economic relationship between the forward
exchange contracts and the highly probable
forecast transactions based on their currency
amounts and the timing of their respective cash
flows. The main sources of ineffectiveness in these
hedging relationships are:

(@ the effect of the counterparty’s and the
Group’s own credit risk on the fair value of
the forward exchange contracts which is
not reflected in the change in the value of
the hedged cash flows attributable to the
forward rate; and

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 HMREREERERTIANOAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

B (#&)

o EERRGE)

Hedges of foreign currency risk in forecast (i) #HHPFEAXZPEIER

transactions (continued) B% (&)

(o) changes in the timing of the hedged (o) HEHRZH R E
transactions. EEE) o

The following table provides a reconciliation of TREHBBINERRD

the hedging reserve in respect of foreign currency 0 7 s 2 ¥RR I 1| TR

risk and shows the effectiveness of the hedging SREIERM AR

relationships:

Balance at 1 January
Effective portion of the cash
flow hedge recognised in

other comprehensive income

Amounts reclassified to profit
or loss (Note (i)
Related tax

Balance at 31 December (Note (i)

Change in fair value of the
forward exchange contracts
during the year

Hedge ineffectiveness recognised

in profit or loss

Effective portion of the cash
flow hedge recognised in

other comprehensive income

2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARETRT

A A1 B 1,221 (8,760)
REA 2 MU R AR
EMENF 2 B D

2,851 19,440
B EEERNFE
(K ) (4,476) (6,131)
HERATIE 404 (3,328)
K12 A 31 A& (A1) - 1,221
FRRINESO AR EE
1,625 (13,309)
B S HERR A A0
1,226 32,749
RE At 2 U 25 SR AY 2R
A R
2,851 19,440
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(M

(i)

Hedges of foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions (continued)

Notes:

(i) Amounts reclassified to profit or loss are
recognised in the “Finance costs” line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss (see
Note 6(a)).

(i) The entire balance in the hedging reserve
relates to continuing hedges.

Recognised assets and liabilities

Change in the fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts that economically hedge
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies is recognised in profit or loss
(see Note 6(a)). At 31 December 2018, the net
fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
used by the Group as economic hedges of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies was a gain of RMB24.1 million
(31 December 2017: a gain of RMB48.2 million)
recognised as derivative financial instruments.

In respect of the remaining receivables and
payables denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4

29 B¥EREEREMIENAAE

=

()

o #
0
(i)

[\ (&)

B RRZ 5P a5 R
169

() EBFHBPEBERIHOXK
BHRAFBRERAR
[REERKA | THE g
RRHIEE6(@) ©

(i) EhRERE AR
FAEEh AR o

CHRRERAR

T4 SR AN ST E
NEBEERBENER
MNEERBMAREEE
R ABE (R ME
6(a)) ° 2018412 A 31
H - NEBREAINEET
ENEEEERABEBENE
BT AR R INE S A9
FARBEREAARE
241 BET(2017 12 A
318 : s ARK482H
Bx) DERBITES
BTH-

AR EREENIIEE
AN B EHER AR
JEW R R TR S+ A
SERBERFERIRE
BEBENHEINELAE
BE BN EEER - R
[ B AE H 7R AT B2 4 K



KPP R AT B R

| Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
& 6 4R R M 5F (0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEBEN - UAREREN)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 HMREREERERTIANOAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) EERRE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) AZHEREE
The following tables detail the Group’s exposure T RPN EE PR E ER
at the end of the reporting period to currency RAEAZAHEEEAE BN
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities REEBIINEEFTENE
denominated in a currency other than the REENBEEENE
functional currency of the entity to which they BER e MEFME @ 5
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of LR K 2B AARE
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using 5 - EARIRERS
the spot rates at the end of the reporting period. REERHBE  WABE
Differences resulting from the translation of the BT INSE TS B A RS 2R R
financial statements of foreign operations into the RAEBENESNEBESE
Group’s presentation currency are excluded. HYZ%E ©
2018
185
UsD Euro S6D AUD (8P CHF Y MYR CAD RMB HKS OAR ND RUB
EXED

0 ELoFma M M Rt om0 ¥ om0 ARE ET FERAR MBR E6
RMBONO  RMBO0  RMBUOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOOD RMBOOO  RMBOO0 RMBUOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RMBUOOD  RMBOO  RMBONO
ABRTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARRTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR

Oontctase' REE 1608 - - - - - . - - - . -
Trade and bl recevables ERRIERENES 700652 19662 48405 178059 206741 112416 500 1049 2164 N 1 T/ | I <V
Deposts, prepeyments it BRAR
and other receivables EfRA3 165368 41,470 - - % 178460 5,698 - - 200 327890 1319
Gash on hand and n bank FEREREE 126,050 3020 26 131 2057 - m - 120 114 -
Tred and il payebles BRRMARENEE 429 (376 - - -y > - 4] = ]
Roedeenses andorerpayetles  ERFRREARRS (4609 (2380 - - . - - - - (%490
Gross expostrearisg fom BEIEERSE
Tecognised asses and ebites EfhERER 8000 63704 49028 178190 220365 260080 1678 104X 27740 (9%8%76) 428749 20066 45 220

Notorelamounts of ot forsipn.—~ RfEEE 38R
exchange Contcts Usedas ERNE5EE
goonomic hedges (16742 (10332 (47060 (50367 (206,741)  (31967)

Net eposearsng fom recogised — EEAZEREE
assets and fabiifes ELHEREE 01288 B33T2 443 1G03 13614 29606 11678 10420 27740 (9%0%76) 428749 20086 2451 2820
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 HBREREERERTIANOAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d ErERRE)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EBRHEWERE(Z)
Il
g

W B0 S AD G F M DR D RMB HS OR WD RB
oo B o B 8 R A TREx m ARR BT RNE WmE 0 &
RBUD RWBOD AU RBOO AWBOO RVBOI MBI RVBOD  RMBUI RWBOD RUBOD  RBOO  AVBOO  RVBUD
ARMTRL ARRTE ARMTL ARMTE ARMTR ARKTR ARBTR ABRTR ARMTR ABMTR ARMTL ARMTR ARETZ ARMTR

Gossamoun e fomastomes. - ENEFAR R4S

for contract work 11,441 = R = = = = = = = = = = =
Trade and bil recelvables BARMRENEE g5t 28815 HT609 2619 M0 6739 6599 16182 15017 - %M TR UM% 2768
Denosts, pepaymentsand 8 BAR

other receiveoles L 16263 1082 50 0 1006 17857 6,601 - 13 - e

Gash on hand and n benk FERERBAA 123721 85 n a7 m - - - 12 114 -

Trade and bispayebes BREfRERZE 7852 - - - 0] - - = = = @

Aoonedeqensesandoberpaebles  ETERREMERE  (16608) - - - - % - - - (1033319

(Gross expostre asngfom BRIEEREE

opkelassaditlies  EEAEREE RS N0 RER MY AT M BN B0 BE (M OB 7R u% O
Notonl amouns o fovard R EE RS

foregn exchenge conracts ERNE5EE

used as economic hedges Q19612 094 (800G (221 (112120 (380 - - - - -

Net eposrearsng fom recogised — EEASEREE
assets and labiftes ELhERE 608905 10768 61 20496 1667 0167 13200 16182 15382 (1033209 4073 U8R B 278
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 HMHEREERERTIANOAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d ErEREE)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (iv) BBESHR
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRETHASERRE
change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained HRA R B AR R AN
profits that would arise if foreign exchange rates EERRNZBHAEMES) -
to which the Group has significant exposure at the RER AT A E b m] 2 3 bR
end of the reporting period had changed at that EHRBFIE - AEEMT
date, assuming all other risk variables remained 1% 78 R AR B A E A BB
constant. 23 -
2018 2017
2018% 017%
Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
Increase/  profit after Increase/  (decrease)in
(decrease) tax and in (decrease)  profit after tax
in foreign retained inforeign  and in retained
exchange profits exchange profits
rates R rates HiEnE

HEEX  RRERR SNEEX  RREME
L#/(TR)  #m/(RS)  L#/(FR)  #m/ (i)

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TT AREFT

uUsD e 10% 79,270 10% 55,403
(10)% (79,270) (10)% (55,409)

Euro BT 10% 5,223 10% 917
(10)% (5,223) (10)% (17)

SGD AT 5% 1,884 5% 28
(5)% (1,884) (5% (28)

AUD BT 10% 10,846 10% 21717
(10)% (10,846) (10)% (21,717)

GBP it 10% 1,172 10% 1,001
(10)% (1,172 (10)% (1,001)

CHF LA 10% 21,770 10% 17,142
(10)% (21,770) (10)% (17,142)

JPY B 10% 993 10% 1,122

(10)% (993) (10)% (1,122)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 HHEREERERTIANOAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) E¥RERE)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (ivy BBERR(E)
2018 2017
20185 017§
Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
Increase/  profit after Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease) taxand in (decreasg)  profit after tax
in foreign retained inforeign  and in retained
exchange profits exchange profits
rates Gk gl rates MEFIE

HEER  RREAE SNEEZ  REREME
L#/(TH)  &m/(BS) L#/(TR)  #n/080)

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR AREFT

MYR SREELE 5% 443 TER TER
(5)% (443) TEm @A

CAD T 10% 2,358 5% 654
(10)% (2,358) (5% (654)

RMB ARH 10% (93,338) 10% (103,321)
(10)% 93,338 (10)% 103,321

HK$ BT 10% 38,098 10% 36,179
(10)% (38,098) (10)% (36,179)

QAR REBFIHE 10% 1,721 10% 1516
(10)% (1,727) (10)% (1516)

VND HEE 10% 2,083 10% 2,941
(10)% (2,083) (10)% (2,941)

RUB Eff 20% 3,956 20% 3870
(20)% (3,956) (20)% (3870)

IDR Bl TER TER 10% 1,375

TER TER (10)% (1,375)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 HMREREERERTIANOAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) =N =D
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) EERRE)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (ivy HRBESHE)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit/loss after tax and retained profits
measured in their respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period for presentation
puUrposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The sensitivity analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

J:EEEEEHE@"ﬁﬁ ERIES

HARBEZERBUASED
Ij]ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘l’i%%ﬂfﬁ%”
518 AR T AD
R - DRSS RE
ﬁ%[$ﬁ IRARE -
25z o

FREEDITREZE AN
MERMNEESASHTE
AEEFAEMSAEER
& HAR AT SN R BR Y
SEBIEA  BEUERA
KB AR TN B B W LASN
WEBTENAEERQR]
MRS KRB - DT
TEEBBREESINEBD
MEHE AR EBHZT
B MEAERZTE o BUK
ED T THIRER 2017 F 48R
RYEXEELT o
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(B=BEHEHIN

PARE REA)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

29 MERREERERIANDAE
E(#&)

€ ~R~A{EEE

() BARFEHEHEBRSE
ERAR

B EEER

TREFR IR F BB 53R
HEEAFEASRAAEER
B EHRNBEHEEHR
AEAKEERTACA
REBEIBRR=FRAE
EBEER - 2ERMEENE
Frig ABUER R B IE R
EZMEFEATRBIERE

s FIEMBME: EE
REIEE ARIE
(BNt EHEIE A48
FEEXEELR
M5 E R ARG HE
RE)FENAAE
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. FoEME: ERE
2 8 A B (BD T
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AEATTRES
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Recurring fair value BERQAEES
measurements:

Assets EE

Derivative financial instruments: PTESRT A :
— Forward foreign exchange —RHIINEE KT

contracts

Liabilities afE

Derivative financial instruments: PTEEMIT A :
— Forward foreign exchange —RERINER LY

contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end
of the reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts in Level 2 is determined by discounting
the contractual forward price and deducting the
current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived
from the PRC government yield curve as at the end
of the reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

29

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARB ARERL)

BEEAREEREMTIANDAE
H(#E)

€

DRBEFEE)

(i)

BARAEHENSME
ERAMR(E)

Fair value measurements

categorised into Level 2

PERF2BNDIAEEE

2018 2017

2018 & 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
55,451 56,155
31,343 6,345

REZE2018%F 12 A 31 H
IEFE MERE1EH
FoME L ERERE - KE
ERBRAEAREEBER
B 2 R AR RS B
RETEEITIER ©

REZBHLA BETE
BRI B R A R B A B
&

EZHINEGHONAAEE
(F2) EBEMEAR
EZHREERRNGRRE
FERFHE - BRETIEN
HEHRH BB ZE R
BIMEREEEZERESL -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)  Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2018 and 2017.
30 COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments
At 31 December 2018, the outstanding capital

commitments of the Group not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements were as follows:

Commitments in respect of buildings, FHIET - #428 K &k

machinery and equipment Ry HE
— Contracted for —B&14
— Authorised but not contracted for ~ — B IZRE(E R ET4Y

20 HUBERMREEREMIANAAE
B'#&)

©)

30 EiE

(@)

NABENEE)

(i) FEFRIABEINENHS
MEERARHARKE

#2018 4F K 2017 12 A
318 NEEIRK AN E
SHRK AT AR R & B T AR
HEHEAREBEITES
RER o

BRI

2018512 A31 8 - RAGHE
BwmE P L ABEE 2 ARER
BEEAALEMT :

2018 2017

2018 £ 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT

7,104 12,612
15,547

7,104 28,159
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30 COMMITMENTS 30 AHiE(#E)
(b)  Operating lease commitments (b) AREHEEAYE
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease 201812318 » AKEIR
payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating BAAREEEHERMNAR
leases are payable as follows: REEHSERENT ¢

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Within 1 year —FE R 6,417 4,625
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 7,224 547
13,641 5,172
The Group leases certain plant, buildings, motor vehicles AEBREBELLZHEMBEES TK
and other equipment under operating leases. The leases B 8F "REREMSZE - %FH
typically run for an initial period of one to five years, E—RNLBP1EE - WHEERE
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are RESHEEMBERASGEEES -
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent MERERSAEE °

lease rentals.

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 HAEE
(@) Guarantees issued @ BELER
At 31 December 2018, the Group has issued the R2018F 12 A31H » ZEEE
following guarantees: B TEIER -
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTFT  ARETT

Guarantees for construction BEARKIEZ  EBY
contracts’ bidding, performance MIRER & HIPEIR
and retentions 2,054,923 1,780,253
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31

PARE REA)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(@)

Guarantees issued (continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the directors of

the Company do not consider it probable that a claim

in excess of the provision for warranties provided by the

Group will be made against the Group under any of the

guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group as of the

end of the reporting period under the guarantees issued

is the amount disclosed above.

Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

M

In December 2009, Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India, both wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Group, jointly received a notice that they are
being sued by a former sub-contractor in India in
respect of Shenyang Yuanda’s and Yuanda India’s
non-performance of the terms as stipulated in the
sub-contract agreement entered into between
Shenyang Yuanda and this former sub-contractor.
Shenyang Yuanda has made a counterclaim
against this sub-contractor for non-performance
of the sub-contract agreement. On 30 September
2016, a first instance court judgement has been
rendered in favour of Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India and pursuant to which the former
sub-contractor shall pay to Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India damages in the amount of INR81.8
million (equivalent to approximately RMB8.0
million) plus accrued interest.

31

4

REE(E)

(@)

BRLER(E)

BERSHR ARAAEER
73T A] e IR R IR FER
BAKEIRDBBARKEME
HEHNRERBENRR - AEH
R EHRBIEE % L ERFRA
KB IR EXFRENEE

BRZEBERNAARE

R2009F 128 - A& E
MR AN B A REEGR
AREBEANHEAREES
M- BEEWEE /R
DEERELREARER
AHNETEBITEREAX
ey =B NI VA )
B 14 7% FT 5T B &Y {6 S 1R
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

U

(i)

(continued)

The former sub-contractor and Shenyang Yuanda
and Yuanda India later on filed appeals and as
at the date of these financial statements, the
lawsuit is under reviewed before the Hon’ble
High Court of Delhi. If Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately INR1,410.8 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB138.1 million) plus accrued
interest. Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda India deny
any liability in respect of the appeal filed by the
former sub-contractor and, based on legal advice,
the directors of the Company do not believe it is
probable that the court will find against Shenyang
Yuanda and/or Yuanda India. No provision has
therefore been made in respect of this claim.

In November 2014, Yuanda Canada, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, received a notice
that it is being counterclaimed by a contractor
in Canada alleging damages due to additional
costs incurred for project delays caused by
Yuanda Canada and costs incurred in completing
and rectifying Yuanda Canada’s work. This
counterclaim is derived from a claim registered
by Yuanda Canada against the contractor in
respect of its non-payment of CAD2.9 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB14.7 million) for
the value of work performed by Yuanda Canada.
If Yuanda Canada is found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately CAD6.8 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB34.2 million) plus accrued
interest. Yuanda Canada continues to deny any
liability in respect of the counterclaim and, based
on legal advice, the directors of the Company
do not believe it is probable that the court will
find against Yuanda Canada. No provision had
therefore been made in respect of this claim.
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(i)

On 20 April 2016, Yuanda Russia, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, initiated an arbitration
proceeding against Rasen Stroy LLC (“Rasen
Stroy”), a contractor of Yuanda Russia, in the
arbitration tribunal in Moscow to demand payment
of the outstanding construction payable of USD6.5
million (equivalent to approximately RMB44.6
million) and applied for a protection order in
relation to letters of guarantee of USD7.6 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB52.2 million)
issued by Shenyang Yuanda to Rasen Stroy.
Rasen Stroy filed a counterclaim against Yuanda
Russia on 27 July 2016 claiming for USD37.4
million (equivalent to approximately RMB256.7
million). Shenyang Yuanda also sued Rasen Stroy
in Intermediate People’s Courts of Shenyang
(“Shenyang Court”) for the same incidence and
requested China Construction Bank (“CCB”, the
counter guarantee bank) to stop payment of the
deposits to Yapi ve kredi Bankasi A.S., Esentepe
Corporate Banking Center Branch (“Yapi Bank”,
the trustee for the bank guarantee letter) in relation
to letters of guarantee issued. On 25 April 2016,
Shenyang Court ruled in favour of Shenyang
Yuanda.
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(i)

(continued)

In respect of Yuanda Russia’s claim, on 9
September 2016, the arbitration tribunal in
Moscow ruled that Rasen Stroy shall make
payment of an outstanding construction payable
of USD2.8 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB19.2 million) to Yuanda Russia and Yuanda
Russia’s application for a protection order in
relation to the letters of guarantee was dismissed.
In respect of Rasen Stroy’s counterclaim, on 5
October 2016, the arbitration tribunal in Moscow
ruled in favour of Rasen Stroy and that Yuanda
Russia shall pay 50% of the amount Rasen Stroy
claimed for, which is USD18.7 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB128.3 million). Based on
the above judgement, Yapi Bank made unilateral
payment to Rasen Stroy of USD7.6 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB52.2 million)
under the letters of guarantee, and requested CCB
to pay the same amount to Yapi Bank.
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(i)

(continued)

Yuanda Russia disagrees with the above ruling
and filed an appeal against the ruling. The appeal
by Yuanda Russia was dismissed by the relevant
tribunal. Yuanda Russia filed a second appeal. On
2 May 2017, the arbitration tribunal in Moscow
ruled in favour of Rasen Stroy and that the claimed
amount Yuanda Russia is liable for was reduced
to USD3.4 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB23.3 million). In June 2017, Yuanda Russia
and Rasen Stroy both filed further appeals. In
August 2017, the arbitration tribunal in Moscow
rejected both appeals. Meanwhile, Shenyang
Yuanda sued Yapi Bank in Shenyang Court for the
malicious payment of USD7.6 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB52.2 million) to Rasen
Stroy. On 11 April 2018, Shenyang Court ruled
in favor of Shenyang Yuanda. Yapi Bank later on
filed an appeal. As at the date of these financial
statements, the lawsuit is under review before
Shenyang Court. If Shenyang Yuanda is found to
be liable, the total compensation is estimated to
be the deposits of USD7.6 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB52.2 million).
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(i)

(iv)

(continued)

As at the date of these financial statements,
Yuanda Russia continues to deny any liability
in respect of Rasen Stroy’s counterclaim and
Shenyang Yuanda continue to deny the application
of the deposits from Yapi Bank, and based on legal
advice and taking into account of Yuanda Russia’s
financial position as at the end of the reporting
period, the directors of the Company believe that it
is not probable that the outcome of the lawsuits will
be unfavourable to Shenyang Yuanda or Yuanda
Russia. No provision has therefore been made in
respect of claims by Rasen Story or Yapi Bank.

In addition to the lawsuits mentioned in Notes
31(b)(i) to 31(b)(iii), certain subsidiaries of the
Group are named defendants on other lawsuits or
arbitrations in respect of construction work carried
out by them. As at the date of these financial
statements, these lawsuits and arbitrations are
under reviewed before courts or arbitrators. If
these subsidiaries are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately RMB232.9 million, of which
RMB13.8 million has already been provided
for. Based on legal advices, the directors of
the Company do not believe it is probable that
the courts or arbitrators will find against these
subsidiaries of the Group on these lawsuits and
arbitrations.
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(©

Contingent compensation payable

In July 2016, it was reported that certain construction
materials supplied by the Group was found to contain
asbestos in two construction projects in Australia.
The Group is cooperating with relevant authorities on
investigation into the reason for the reported cases. As
at the date of these financial statements, asbestos was
not found in other projects constructed by the Group and
there was no related legal action against the Group in
Australia. As the investigation is yet to be completed and
claims against the Group from contractors have not been
quantified, the directors of the Company cannot reliably
estimate the repair cost and potential compensation for
projects found with asbestos. No provision in this regard
has therefore been made.
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COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B A RIHIKE
Current assets REEE

Prepayments and other

TR 70 % LA R

receivables
Cash on hand and in bank FEEE® MRTER
Current liabilities REBERF

Accrued expenses and
other payables

JE 15 S K B R 55K

Net current liabilities RBAEFHE
NET ASSETS REE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR #E
Share capital [N
Reserves e
TOTAL EQUITY AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARB ARERL)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 March 2019.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the changes in
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2(c).

Certain information reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment has been changed
for the year ended 31 December 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current
year’s presentation. Further details are set out in Note 4(b).

32 AEEENIEARTRE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kiat ARET T AREFIT
2,050,058 2,000,019
805 628
1,948 1,558
2,753 2,186
1,106,920 1,012,149
(1,104,167) (1,009,963)
945,891 990,056
27
519,723 519,723
426,168 470,333
945,891 990,056
FE=2 201943 A 29 B #b A N 5
i o
33 LtkEEz

AREBPR 201841 1 HE X ERE
R BAAE ¥R A5 E BI 55 15 5 K BURR BA #5 R
HERE N - BIBFTRIENBES
% WBREMTTES - g BES
B — S BEREERIE2(C) °

HRERPEREREZALEE RS
THERBABRTZ2HRZE TERRN
HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFEHEE
o Bt - BTHREFTE FARN
HAFEEWMRF—H - BBFES
2HMIEE4(0)

283



284

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 65 3 7 B = (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAIN - AARBRER)

34 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 34

The directors of the Company consider the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company as at 31 December
2018 to be Best Outlook Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 35
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

B SHRERELZ EeREE 2390 « AEMEE R ZH T T4
IFRS 16, Leases

BRI R 5 ERIE 165% - HE

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2018 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
the IFRS 16 which may have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for IFRS 16, the actual impact
upon the initial adoption of this standard may differ as the
assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may be
identified before the standard is initially applied in the Group’s
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2019.
The Group may also change its accounting policy elections,
including the transition options, until the standard is initially
applied in that financial report.

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(j), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.

35

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrAEEREIN - UARBARERL)

BE2018F 1231 HILFECHE
1A 1B ol R A RR BB ET ~ T EAIR
RETREKNTE ()

REBIEFEZEERER] - #a]E
Bl & 2T 725 FE A B P EE A Y TE R
FE - BRALL - AEEE#HAIBEK
B R 2ERI 25 16 SR T 5 E A A
SHEHPBRRENTE - BEFK
BRE—DFBER T o R
B IR 2RI 55 16 SR AT E B A BT
B REIRIRNZERIRNER S
AREEMER  RERESBIETK
MRHE T A RS B B AT B ER
RER - RINAEEBE2019412A8
31 B FEMIEHREPEREALE
Al ZATAI BRI E — P - MR
BIR it B 75 S5 R B R FE R AL -
SBIN A REE B A SR BUREE -
RIS o

@ B

BIFRA s R 1658 - FHE
BRANPRE2) FT IV ER - ARG
ENHEREHEREEMHE - TR
BROBDRIANR - AREESLE
AT A THL - WERABARIL
HAHA

285



286

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018

B 765 3 2% B & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAN - AR RER)

35

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2018 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. However, once IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not
to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2018 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. As allowed by IFRS 16, the Group plans
to use the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or contain,
leases. The Group will therefore apply the new definition of
a lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on
or after the date of initial application. In addition, the Group
plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying the new
accounting model to short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of IFRS 16 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and will not
restate the comparative information. As disclosed in Note
30(b), at 31 December 2018, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to RMB13.6 million for properties and other assets.
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Results
Revenue

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finances costs

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Income tax

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders

of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) for the year

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

EF

]
mafiE/ (58)
BianFlmE,/ (BE)
{5 H
ENFIE/(BE)
PATR AL
NG 2

JEE R
FRFE/(EE)

BENARE
FRBEE

RBEE
mEAE

RBEEFE

REERRDAR

FRPAE
REE

BAR A
A

R
ARARR

EipESER

IS

X 3

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2018 2017 20164 20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETT ARET:R
4,615,704 5,688,650 7,324,415 8,594,364 10,038,653
222,929 291,073 173,640 (168,395) 295,929
(68,767) (232,801) (86,446) 1,107 (234,398)
154,162 58,272 87,194 (167,289) 61,531
(65,991) 27,457 (10,577) (443) (10,424)
88,171 85,729 76,617 (167,731) 51,107
79,119 60,652 87,039 (192,257) 25,597
9,052 25,077 (10,422) 24,526 25,510
88,171 85,729 76,617 (167,731) 51,107
1,355,031 1,672,104 1,716,027 1,728,283 1,635,986
8,706,332 9,809,008 11,463,726 12,610,538 12,804,657
7,048236  7,300206 9,936,815 10,817,304 10,521,672
1,658,096 2,508,802 1,626,911 1793234 2,282,985
3,013,127 4,180,906 3242938 3521517 3,918,971
305,000 982,640 235,285 478,458 130,697
2,708,127 3198266 3,007,653 3,043,059 3,788,274
519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723
2,188,404 2,817,332 2,633,717 2,658,041 3,425,653
2,708,127 3,337,055 3,153,440 3,177,764  3,945376
= (138,789) (145,787) (134,708) (157,102)
2,708,127  3,198266 3,007,653 3,043,059 3,788,274
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